
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   Tuesday, 28 October 2014 
 

 
Committee:  
Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: Wednesday, 5 November 2014 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 
6ND 
  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
Members of Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 
Martin Bennett (Chairman) 
David Lloyd (Vice-Chair) 
Joyce Barrow 
Gerald Dakin 
Steve Davenport 

Roger Evans 
Vince Hunt 
Miles Kenny 
Alan Mosley 
Dave Tremellen 

 
 
Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Jane Palmer  Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:   01743 252748 
Email:   jane.palmer@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions  

 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
 
 

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2014 (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 11 June 2014. 
 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any questions, statements or petitions from the public of which 
members of the public have given notice.  Deadline for notification for this 
meeting is Friday 31 October 2014. 
 
 

5  Member Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given notice.  
Deadline for notification for this meeting is Friday 31 October 2014. 
 
 

6  Final report of the Public Service Network [PSN] Task and Finish Group 
(Pages 9 - 26) 
 
The Chairman of the PSN Task and Finish Group, Councillor D Carroll, will 
present the Group’s final report and recommendations to the Committee. 
 
 

7  Scrutiny of the progress in delivering the Council's Financial Strategy 
(Pages 27 - 208) 
 
Members will consider the progress in delivering the Council’s Financial Strategy 
[and therefore the Business Plan] and help inform the refresh and any refocus 
for 2015/16 onwards. 
 
The Committee will work with the Financial Strategy and the Business Plan as 3 
year rolling documents.  Members will be given the opportunity to undertake 



proactive scrutiny by feeding back and sharing issues and thoughts on the areas 
that may require updating or refocusing in the coming year’s refresh of the 
Business Plan [as the delivery part of the Financial Strategy] to achieve the 
required savings. 
 
The following documents are included: 
 

a) Performance report and dashboards relevant to the Committee’s specific 
remit [TO FOLLOW]  

b) Quarter 1 performance report and dashboards [from 15 October 2014 
Cabinet meeting] 

c) Business Plan and Financial Strategy document [from 27 February 2014 
Council meeting] 

d) Financial Strategy [from 30 July 2014 Cabinet] 
 
 

8  Date/Time of next meeting of the Committee  
 
The Committee is scheduled to next meet at 10.00am on Wednesday 26 
November 2014. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

��
�

����������	�
�	���
�

���
�����	��������������	�
�����	���������
�

�������������������������������  �!����"# $�
"%&#�'��(�$% #�'�����������)�*�+�),�����-����)��.��-��++�,�
�)��.��-���)�*�+�),-�

��)�'���)�-���"�/�0�
�
�
� ���'����+�������1�)������������	
���
� �
�
	����������	
����������
�����������������	�������������� �
�
� �)�������
� !���"
		���#��$
��%����$$�&!��
�
��'�
� !���"
		����(��
)�*	�+)�&,
"��!��
�
��'-���+"��%����.-�/���	)�(��
�-�
� 0$����(�������$-�1�������������)�(�������
�		���
�
�
�� ���1��������	�.�)�.���
�

�����2�03�
�

���$�!���"
		���#�%����$$�2���	�"$�)����!��
�
����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�
� 0"��$
�+�!�


$$���3���$�������
���
��
"
��	�+�����
�
�
�� �'����������)��+���1��.�����+������������
�

4��	��
���3����2���"��.������"�
��)�3��
�!���"
		����,�5��$�60�2��!���"
		���%�
7
		
�
�8���)�4�#��	�+��

�
�
�� �''������������2�1��	�.�)�.���
�

�����2�03�
�

���$�!���"
		���(�*	�+)�2������
�$�)����,
"��!��
�
����3�$������3��
��"��
#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$���3���$�������
���
��
"
��	�+�����

�
�
�� 0��1���.+�����1���.),�����)������
�

9��
�$����$��.����)�"	���)��
�
�
�� ������������������������������� 4��.)1��"# $��
�

�����2�03�
�

���$-���2��"$�$��$����))
$
���$��$���3��
�	���"��)��3�$���
��$
����3�$���.�
$$���
���������$��#�������:���2	
"�;���$
��-�$���

��$����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



#
��$����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$�����	)�����������������

�

��
�

0"��$
�+�!�


$$���
��$
�����	)�����<�#��"�������2���������)������"����"$���"��)�
��)��
���)�2+�$���!��
�
����

�
=� ��+��1�5��������������
�

������.�������;���$
������"�
��)�3��
�
�
2�����3�$�����2	
"��
�

�
�� ���+�)�5��������������
�

������.�������;���$
������"�
��)�3��
�#�
2�����
�

�
 � ��+��1���)6�1�����*�)7��
�

���� 5��)� �3� !��$�
��� >���	��
��$� ������$�)� $��� )��3$� $��
�� �3� ��3����"�� 3���
�"��$
�+��3� $�����2	
"�0���
"��9�$.���� 6�098���)� $���
��
$���3���$�2	
��
����������
��)�?
�
���/�����$����)��$����$�
��.�������

�
5��)��.����$
"�	����$$��$
���$��$����2��"$
�����3�$�
��.���-���
�	+��

�

�� @�)���$��)
���$�����$
���	�3��
�.������;�
��
��$��

�� 5�.�$���!���"
	�
���))����
���$����09�"�
$��
��

�� >)��$
3+
���$����33�"$���3�$���3��
�.������;�
��
��$�����$���!���"
	:���	���-�
� 3����A�
�	����
����)�
�2
	��.���
���

�� @�)���$��)
��� �A��"$�)� 3�$���� ��;�
��
��$�� 3��� $��� 3��
�.���� ��)� ��+�
� 

�	
"�$
����3���$���!���"
	�

�� >)��$
3+
���$���2���3
$���3��""��)
$�$
���$��$���3��
�.����
�

� 1�3���
��� $�� $��� 
�$��)�� $�� 2�� ���)� 2+� �� ����� ��)� ?
�
��� /����-� �� #�
2���
��;���$�)�$��$� $��� 

�	�
��$�$
����A���
��"���3� $���!���"
	� B��)�#�
2���:�����	)�
2�� $��"��)�� � >�� ��������� $�� ���$���� #�
2��:�� "��"���� .��$���� .���� 
�� $�
�� �����
.��	)�2���3���+�2���3
$��
����$���/�����
��$:���$�����	��)�
��$�
������-�$���5��)��3�
!��$�
���>���	��
��$��A�	�
��)�$��$�$�����.��	)�2��	
$$	��	�$
$�)��
��"���
)��
�����.�
$���!���"
	�
�$�"�
�	
��"��� �5���))�)�$��$� $�����.��	)�2��2���3
$� 
�� 
����$
��$
���
��.�$���"�������.��	)� 

��"$����$���!���"
	-�#�
2������)��$�33���)�"�

��$�)�
$��$�
$�
�+��	���2������
2	��$��
)��$
3+�
��������$��

	
$�$�����
��$���+����2	�
���

�
� ����!�


$$���!��
�
���"�

��$�)�$��$�.����
��$�
�������
�+��		�.�$���!���"
	�$��

��$�B����)��3�$�����
�:���)��$�����)�$��$�>��.�����"����
�$��)��3�����
"����)��
���
��)�����
"��)�	
���+���5���))�)�$��$�$���������$�)��������)�?
�
���/�����.��	)�2��
�2	��$����
�����
��
��$�
�$��$���!���"
	:��3�$����)���	��
��$���)�2���2	��$��
�3	���"��
$�
��)���	��
��$����

�
� ���� 5��)� �3� !��$�
��� >���	��
��$� �))�)� $��$� $��� .���� �3� $��� ����� ��)� ?
�
���

/����� "��	)� ��	�� 3��
�� ��)� ������ �� ��.� >�� �$��$��+� 3��� $��� 3�$���� .�
	�$� 2�
���


�)3�	��3�$���!���"
	:�����)�$��
�
�$�
��
$��"�
�	
��"����#�
2������$�)�$���
������
�����)
��� $��� !���"
	:�� ��$.���� ��$� ��� ��)� $��� 
�
$
�	� 	�"�� �3� "	��
$+� 3��
� $���
/�����
��$:�� ��$� "�
$��
�� ��)� 	�)� $�� ��
�� "��3��
��� ��)� ��)� $����� $

�� $��
����"�
��� � ���� 5��)� �3� !��$�
��� >���	��
��$� ������)� $��� !�


$$��� $��$� $���

Page 2



#
��$����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$�����	)�����������������

�

��
�


����
$+��3�!���"
	����)���.��"�
���)� 3�		�"�
�	
��"����)� ��3����)� $�� $�������
���
	
�
����2�$.������$���
$
���$�������$���0C!>�#�61��
���	�>��#�������8���$.������

�
�����2�03�

�

'� ���$�$���)��3$�$��
���3���3����"��3����"��$
�+��3�$�����2	
"�0���
"���9�$.����2��

�������)D��
�



'� ���$����������)�?
�
���/�����2����$�2	
���)�$����)��$����$�
��.���D�
�



'� ���$� $���5��)��3�!��$�
��� >���	��
��$� $���� $��� ��	�� �3� *��)�C33
"��� 3��� $�
��

�������)�?
�
���/����D���)�
�

�'� ���$� $��� ����� ��)� ?
�
��� /����� �����$� 
$�� 3
�)
���� $�� $��� ���3��
��"��

#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$���
��0��$�
2����������
�
�
<� 0��1)�����.),����������.,������80��9��.�7�.���
�������)��'�����������
�

����!��
�
����3�$���(5���������)�?
�
���/�����������$�)�
$��3
�)
����$��$���
!�


$$�����5���$�$�)�$��$�$���
�
2�����3�$���/�������)�3���)�$���.����$��2��

�$����$
�����)�$�����)�$���C33
"����
���	��)�
��������$
���$���/��������

�
5��)��.��$$��$
���$��$���3�"$�$��$��	$������$�����.�����2���)�3��
�.����3���$���
�		�"�$
����3�(5�-�����+�
�)
�
)��	�"������)�)
33����$�"
�"�
�$��"��D�����))�)�$��$�
$���/�������)�2�����2	��$��"���
)�������
2����3�"�����$�)
�����)�$�
����)���	��)�
"���
)���2	+�
��)��.
������
$��"��"	��
�����5���))�)�$��$�$����������)�?
�
���/�����
��)��	���2����
�)���.�����3�$�����.����"��������)����"�)�����$��$�.����2�
���
)���	���)�3���$�����.�$��
��3��$�33�.�����.����������	���
�"	�)�)�$���0�����$���)�
������$
���?��)���
�
>��)��.
���#�
2���:��$$��$
���$��$����������)�?
�
���/����:����"�

��)�$
���-����
)�$�
	�)����������=���)����3�$��������$-����)��.����$
"�	����$$��$
���$��
��"�

��)�$
���=�6��	�$
���$��$���
�"	��
����3�(
��2
	
$+�*
�
���4		�.��"��(*4�.
$�
��
$���"�	"�	�$
���3���(5�8���)���"�

��)�$
���<�.�
"���
��	
��$�)�$�������$�����3���
��)���2�)���
�������$
���$��$�������$�)�����	��3��
�)�.��
E
���$��
����
�������
�$���""�

�)�$
���3���$��
�����)���
�
>�����������$����#�
2��:��;���+-�$���!��
�
����3�$����������)�?
�
���/�����
"�

��$�)�$��$�$���/�������)�.
���)�$��������$��(5�����	
"��$��3�"��$��3�"��2�$-�
��3��$���$�	+�$������	
"��$����)�2����$���)���$�)�$��2��
�$���
�.�)�2+�!���"
		����
��)���)�)�"	
��)��
�
>�����������$�����$����#�
2��:��"��"����������)
���$���
�"	��
����3�(*4�.
$�
��$���
"�	"�	�$
���3���(5�-�$����������)�?
�
���/�����!��
�
���"�

��$�)�$��$�$�����.�
���"��������)����"�)�����2�
������)�2+�$�����.��$�33�$��
�
�"	�)�)�"	�����.���
���
.
$��������$�.���������)�����
���)
�	�������$����$����2�
��������+�������2���)�
������
��$���>$�.���3��$������$�)�$��$�"���
)���$
����3�"�����$�)
�����)����.��$��$�
��
����"�����	
"��$����)��A"����
�"�
��������A���)
$���D�(5������	)�2��
"���
)���)����������$�$��
��$�������.�
	�$��$����.����$�����$��"�
��$����	������$��
�
��	�$
����
�

Page 3



#
��$����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$�����	)�����������������

�

��
�

4�#�
2��:���������	�$���A"	�)��(*4�3��
�$���(5��"�	"�	�$
�����)�$��
�"	�)��$�
��
����"$��������+����$��3�$�����"�

��)�)�=�
��$�����
�.�)
)���$���"�
�����33
"
��$�
������$�3��
�$���!�


$$���������
����
$+�.����������$
����3���"�

��)�$
���=�
3��
�$����������)�?
�
���/�����$��$�)
)���$��A"	�)��(*4�3��
�$���(5��"�	"�	�$
���
.�
	�$���"���
�
���$��$�$�
��.��	)�3��
�����+����$��3�$���=�
��$�����
�.��3�$���
!���"
	:�����
��)����"�������
�
1�3���
���$����#�
2��:��;���+�.��$����$�����.�����+������	����"���-�����))�)�$��$�
$�����.����"����
�"	�)�)���1�"���
)���$
���%���)�$��$�����
)�)���������$��
$+�$��
���
�.���)���"���
)������	
"�$
�����
�
�����������)�?
�
���/�����!��
�
�����"���
��)�#�
2���:�"��"�����$��$�(5��
3��)
���$��$�.���������$�.�����$����)�$��������
��$�2�$�������������"���$��$�$���
�������)�?
�
���/�������)�2������$
�3
�)�$��$�(5��3��)
���.���2�
������)�3���
$��

�$��)�)���������-�.���2�
����		�"�$�)��������
�$�	+�$��������$����	
"��$����)����)�
.���2�
���
�$���5��"�

��$�)�$��$���+��))
$
���	�(5��3��)
�����"�
��)�2+�$���
!���"
	�.��	)�2������$�$��������$�$������)���)��������)�$��$�#�
2����.��	)�
��"���
���$��$�
����
��+�����$���
��
���.��	)�2����)������$���)�
���$����+�����
$�����
�+�2��
�������	
"��$��$����3��)
������
	�2	����4����)���$��)
����3�B���):�
.�����"���
��)����2�
������
�$����	����$��3�$������	
"�$
������"�����
�
>�����������$����#�
2��:��;���+����$���
�"������
��(5��3��)
�����"�
��)�2+�$���
!���"
	-�$���7�	3����1�3��
���)�0�����$�#��������A�	�
��)�$��$���
�����	
"��$��
���)�)�$��
��3��)
����.��)�)�3�����	���������
�)��3�$

��
����)���$���		�.�$��
�$��
"������$��
���
$��$
�����)�$�
��"��	)�$����	������$���"�
�����
�

�
� �����2�03�
�
� ���$�$���3�		�.
�����"�

��)�$
����3��
�$���(5���������)�?
�
���/�����2��
� ��)����)�2+�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$�����)�"���
)���)�2+�
� !�2
��$��
�

��� ���� /����� 
�� "��"����)� 
$� 
�� ���2	�� $�� ��
)��"�� ��
�
��	� �������	� �3� $���
� �"��
����)�$��$�
$�
�+�2��$

�	+�3���!���"
	�$����F��������$�����	
"+�.
$����
� ���$
"�	���"	��
3
"�$
����3�$���!���"
	:���2��"$
����3���$��������3�(5����

�
��� /
���� $��� 

��"$� �3� 7�	3���� 1�3��
� ��)� �$���� ���������� $��� /�����
� �"���.	�)����$���

���$��"���3�(5�����)�$���������$�
$�"�������
)��$���
� $����$���$���$

���3�"�������
�
��� ���� /����� 2�	
����� 
$� 
�� 

���$��$� $�� ������� $��� ���� �3� 0������
��:��
� �		�"�$
���
��
�A


��)�$��������$�$������)��3�0������
���$����$���
�
��� ���� �$�$
�$
"�� ��� ����$� ��)� ��3���	�� �3� �.��)�� ���� ����
)�)� 3��� $��� (7��
� .�
"��)����$��
�����3�		��
"$�����3�$����"��
�:�������$
��������/�����3��	���
� 	�"�	���$��3�
�)
"�$����.��	)�2��2���3
"
�	�
����)���$��)
���
$�������$
�����)�
� ��$"�
����
�
��� ����/�����������$��$���
�$��)�"$
����3�$������
��)����"����3��
���$���������
� ��
����3	�A
2	�-��

�	
3
�)�������"���>$�������$��$��$� 
$�� 

��"$�2�����
�.�)�
� 
��=�
��$��:�$

��2+�$��������G�?
�
���/������

Page 4



#
��$����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$�����	)�����������������

�

��
�

�
=�� /
���� $��� "�

��$��+� .
$�
�� $��� �����$-� $��� /����� 2�	
����� $��$� �$� $���
� ������$�$

��(*4�����	)���$�2���A"	�)�)�3��
�$���"�	"�	�$
���2�$�$�
������	)�
� 3��
�����+�����"$��3�$���=�
��$�����
�.���3����)�$��
����"�

��)�$
�����$��
� �������$������)���3�)
��2	�)�$����$������2�
���
�$��
�
��� 7�
	�$�
��$����	
"�$
�������� 3��
���"
�	� ����
��� $����$�-� $��� �"��
���	���
� ���	
���$��$����$��
��$�����
��$�����$�)���"$�����������������
��$������
� �����)�)
33
"�	$-� $���/�����2�	
����� $��$��$$�
�$������	)�2��
�)�� $��2�$$���
� ������$���
��$�����$�)�$����$��$�������$��������3�(5����
�
 �� ���� /����� ��)� )
�"���
��� �2��$� $����$:�� �.�������� �3� (5���� �������
� �2�
���	+�0�����$�7���������)��$���������.�		� �����)� 
��(5��� $���/�����
� 3�	$� $����� ����	)� 2�� �� ����$��� �.�������� 2+� $����$�� �3� (5��� ��)� $��
��
� ���������
�
<�� >$� 
�� "	���� $��$� 
��+� ���	
"�$
���� ��	�$�� $�� $��� 

��"$� �3� $��� 0����� 1��
�

0�2�
)+��7�
	�$�����
2����3�����	�������2�������
�$�)�$��)�.��
E��$��
����
�������
�$�� �""�

�)�$
��-� 
$� 
�� "	���� $����� 
�� �� ����$���� �3� ��"��
�""�

�)�$
���������������������$�
)��$����"�����3�����"���
)���$
��-�$���
/����� �$����	+� 2�	
���� $��$� 3�$���� )���	��
��$� �3� ��"
�	� ���$�)� ����
���
���)��$��$�����""���$��3�$�
������$3�		���)�)���	��
��$�������

������)�$��
�		�.� 3��� 
�"����
��� $��� ���
	�2
	
$+� �3� ���� ��)� $.�� 2�)���
� ������$
����
7�
	�$�
$�
������
2	��$��$�$���3�$������	
"+�3��
�.����"��	)�"�����-�$���/�����
3��	�$��$�$�
��
����������.��$�+��3�3��$����"���
)���$
���2+�0"��$
�+��

�
�
��� 5�.)��)�$���)��)�.�1����'�)��"# &: $��
�

�������3��
��"�����$3�	
��5�	)�����)��
��(���$+�������$�)�$���H���$�����
���3��
��"��
��
$��
���
�3��
�$
���
		��$��$�)�2+�$��������
��$
���	����	$���"����
"��)���)����3��
��"��)���2���)��$��$���)�2�������)�"�)������	����$�
�)
"�$����3���
��"���3�$���!���"
	:����
��
$
��������������$���

��
��)�$���	�$��$����3��
��"��

����������	�$
���$��$���!���"
	:��3������
��
$
��-���
�	+��

�

�� I���
���!�
	)����0�3��

�� 5
���H��	
$+��)�"�$
���

�� *���
���43$���,�	����2	������	��

�� �"���

"�/��.$��
�

�������3��
��"��#��������A�	�
��)�$��$�������$�$
����3�$���)���2���)���$�$�
��

��$
����33��)�)�#�
2����$��������$��
$+�$��$������2���)������
�.��3�$����
$��$
���
��)����������)�$���!�


$$���$��$�$�����	����$�)���2���)��.��	)�3��$�������$���
����)����3�$�����
�
�
���0"��$
�+�!�


$$��������������
�$����5������)�$���
�����"$
���0"��$
�+�!�


$$���!��
���$��	
�
���.
$����	����$�(
��"$������)����$3�	
��
5�	)����$����"�������
���
��3�	�"���
)���$
����3�$���
�������
��	
��$�)�
��$���
)���2���)���

�
�������3��
��"�����$3�	
��5�	)����))�)�$��$�
$�.��	)�2���������
�$��3���$���
C����
��$
���	�5��	$��0"���"��)�$��2��������$�)�$����"��0"��$
�+�!�


$$���
$���$����.
$��$���)���2���)J���������
�$��$��$���!�


$$��:����

$��

Page 5



#
��$����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$�����	)�����������������

�

=�
�

�
�����2�0�

�

'�� ����$�$���H���$��������3��
��"�������$�2����$�)���)�������$�)D��

�


'� ���$�$���C����
��$
���	�5��	$��0"���"��)�$���$����.
$��$���)���2���)J��

�������
�$��$��$���!�


$$��:����

$�2��������$�)�$����"��0"��$
�+�!�


$$��D�
��)��
�




'� ���$�$������$3�	
����	)��-��
��(���$+���)���#�
2���7���
���/�����"��$
����$��
��3
���$������3��
��"�������$
���
�"���
�
���)�.����.
$��$���0"��$
�+�
!�


$$����$���������$��$�$�����3
��
��$������	$�
��������$�����)�"	������
��)���$��)
����3�$���
�3��
�$
���������$�)��

�
�
��� ;�)7��)��).�����
�

�������3��
��"��#�������������$�)�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�
!�


$$��:��)��3$�7����������

��������!�


$$���!��
�
�����

�)�)�#�
2����
�3�$������)�$���������$��$��"��$
�+��"$
�
$+�.�����$"�
��2���)���)�)��.��$$��$
���$��
$������)�$��"�
�	�$��$����"��$
�+����F3��
�������+�
�����$��$�#�
2����
�+�.
���$��
��
���3�����$��$
�	��"��$
�+��"$
�
$+��

�
4�#�
2���������$�)�$��$�"���
)���$
�������	)�2���
����$��������$�
��
���.
$�
��
$���*�"�	�0�����$���)�������$
���?��)�������!��
�
���"�

��$�)�$��$����C33
"���
2�
�3
������������$�
��?��)�)�$�
	
�����.�$���
��
���.����2�
�������$�$���$����.
$��
$�����������3������		�"�$�)�3��)
�������	)�2�����$�$���		�#�
2����
��$���3
��$�

��$��"��������
����
$+������)�$��$-���"��$�
��
�3��
�$
�����)�2����"
�"�	�$�)-�$���
!�


$$���.��	)�2��2�$$����	�"�)�$��
�������
�3��
�)�)�"
�
������.��$���������$�$��
�))�$���
$�
�$��$���7����������

��2���)������$"�
��2���)��"��$
�+��"$
�
$+��
�
4��$����#�
2���������$�)�B3��"�
��:����������
2	��
�����3���3�$�����"��$
�+�.������
4��
�-�$���!��
�
�������)�#�
2����$����
�����+�
�����-�
)��		+�
$�
��$��$���	�$�)�$��
�	�
��$���3�$���!���"
	:��%��
������	��-�3�����$��$
�	��))
$
���$��$���!�


$$��:��
7����������

��
���""��)��"��.
$��$����"��$
�+�������
��$����F3��
��
��$
���)�
���	
���
��$���)�2�$����

�
� �����2�0�
�


'� ���$�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$��:��)��3$�7����
������

��6)�$�)�������������8�2���������)D���)�

�


'� ���$��������
�$��C33
"�������)�"����)�"
�"�	�$��$���		�#�
2������%�
�3
���������

���$���*�"�	�0�����$���)�������$
���?��)�$��
�"	�)����������3���
��
�������$�
��)�������$D���)�
�




'� ���$-�
��$���	
��$��3�$���
�3��
�$
�����"�
��)�2+�#�
2�����$�

'��2���-�$���
!�


$$���"���
)�����$���3�$����
��$
���.��$������+����
$
�����$"�
���"��	)�
2��)��
��)�3��
��"��$
�+�
���	��
��$�
��$�
��
������
�
�

��� 0.��:����������<�����������������	����������

Page 6



#
��$����3�$������3��
��"��#�����
��$�0"��$
�+�!�


$$�����	)�����������������

�

��
�

�
� >$�.�����$�)�$��$�$���!�


$$���.��	)���A$�
��$��$�������
����7�)���)�+�<���	+�
� ������
�
�
�
�
0
���)� � &!��
�
��'�

�
�
(�$����

� �

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
Performance Management 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday 5th November 
2014  
 

 Item 
 
6 
 
 
 
Public 
 

 
 

Public Service Network (PSN)  
TASK AND FINISH GROUP 

 
 

Responsible Officer Nigel Bishop 
e-mail: Nigel.bishop@shrosphire.gov.uk Tel:  Fax:  
 

1.0 Summary 
This report presents the findings of the Task and Finish group that examined the 
Council’s approach to meeting the Cabinet Office’s PSN framework requirements. 
The scope of the group included an understanding of the national framework; how the 
Council is addressing PSN; any impact and/or implications that this is likely to have 
on ICT policy now, and in the future; and benefits associated with PSN connectivity. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 

 
Members are asked to agree: 
 
A. That the need to maintain PSN compliance is appropriately recognised e.g. 

considered for inclusion on the Corporate Risk Register, within the Customer 
Involvement Strategy and as part of the Council’s Commissioning Strategy. 
 

B. Consideration and action is taken to ensure that appropriate resources are set 
aside – including within contingencies - to ensure that PSN compliance is 
maintained and that sufficient budgetary controls are put in place to allow ICT and 
Information Governance to deliver a coordinated approach to accreditation, 
including the recommendation that a council wide hardware and ICT equipment 
replacement programme should be adopted to ensure PSN compliance is 
maintained. 

 

C. Performance Management Scrutiny Committee (PMSC) should have a single 
focus meeting of the committee to receive a presentation / series of presentations 
on how the Council is preparing for and enabling mobile and flexible working for 
Officers and Members, taking account of the findings of the PSN Task and Finish 
Group.   

 

D. That the PMSC revisits the additional benefits of PSN accreditation in the future, 
as this develops and in the light of the Council’s response to the 2015 PSN 
accreditation submission. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



 

 
REPORT 

 
3.0 Background 

 
3.1 This year, the Cabinet Office significantly increased the compliance standards around 

connection to the Public Services Network (PSN). 
 

3.2 Shropshire Council, alongside almost all local authorities, has identified a business 
need to connect to a number of government departments using the PSN network; 
these include access for a number of fundamental services, for example DWP data 
for Revenues and Benefits purposes and also for emergency planning and electoral 
services. Therefore, it has agreed to meet the appropriate PSN standards to facilitate 
this. 

 

3.3 Shropshire Council’s Performance Management Scrutiny Committee, established a 
task and finish group to examine the Council’s approach to meeting the Cabinet 
Office’s PSN framework requirements, including understanding the national 
framework; how the Council is addressing PSN; any impact and/or implications that 
this is likely to have on ICT policy now and in the future; and benefits associated with 
PSN connectivity. The terms of reference were agreed at the meeting on 11 June 
2014. 
 

3.4 The task and finish group consisted of five cross party Members: 
 

Councillor Dean Carroll (Chair) 
Councillor Martin Bennett (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Dave Tremellen 
Councillor Madge Shineton 
Councillor David Lloyd 

 
The group was also supported by two Council officers: 

 

Nigel Bishop - Head of Customer Involvement (including ICT) 
Roy Morris - Information Governance Officer 

3.5 The work of the Task and Finish Group was expected to help set out how the  PSN 
security standards informed the Council’s future IT Strategy and Implementation Plan 
and how PSN, and the wider benefits it offers, will also inform that strategy for the 
Commissioning Council model e.g. infrastructure. 

 
 

4.0 Context 
 

4.1 The Public Service Network (PSN) is a national framework set out by the 
Government, and managed by the Cabinet Office, that provides an assured network 
over which government can safely share both communications and services. 
 

4.2 Any organisation that has a business need to communicate directly with individual 
government departments through the PSN network, needs to achieve appropriate 
accreditation from the Cabinet Office.  

 

Page 10



 

4.3 The Cabinet Office sets out a series of technical standards that each organisation will 
need to meet in order to secure that accreditation. Accreditation is reviewed on an 
annual basis and the Cabinet Office (and CESG, The National Technical Authority 
for Information Assurance) regularly update the technical standards needed to meet 
compliance. 

 

4.4 This year, the Cabinet Office adopted a ‘zero tolerance’ approach to meeting PSN 
compliance standards which represented a significant change in policy and required 
many local authorities, including Shropshire Council, to undertake substantial 
remedial activity to achieve the Code of Connection (Co-Co). 

 

4.5 This remedial activity fell into two main areas of action: 
· Withdrawal of all unsupported software, including Windows XP 

· Withdrawal of access to PSN services from unmanaged devices, including from 

personal computers, iPads, Laptops and mobile phones. 

 
4.6 This programme of work included the upgrading of 4,500 computers to Windows 7; 

the withdrawal of access to Outlook Web Access client (OWA); removal of Citrix 

access from personal/home computers and the upgrading and/or migration of a 

number of line-of-business systems. 
 

4.7  Whilst this overall change in direction by the Cabinet Office and subsequent 

investment needed to meet the criteria has been challenging, the PSN should not just 

be seen as a connection mechanism between Public Services. Though the ability of 
all public sector agencies to share PSN connectivity (a network of networks) is 

intended to support new models of joint service delivery, it is also about the 

Government’s aim of creating a procurement framework where goods and services 

can be purchased from accredited providers and accessed through the PSN 
connection to provide simpler procurement and greater competition. 

 

5.0 Scope 
 

5.1  The scope of the Task and Finish Group was set out in the Terms of Reference 

[attached as appendix A] that were agreed by Performance Management Scrutiny 

Committee (11 June 2014). The terms of reference are made up of five key 
objectives: 

 

i. Understanding the national framework requirements. 

ii. How the Council is addressing the PSN criteria. 

iii. Identifying the effects of the framework requirements on the Council’s plans e.g. for 

home and mobile working.  

iv. Understanding expected future requirements for the framework and any 

implications for the Council.  

v. Identifying the benefits of accreditation to the framework.   

5.2 The expected outcome was that the report will help improve understanding of  how 
PSN accreditation and connectivity will maximise the potential and impact of the 
Council’s future IT Strategy and Implementation Plan, and inform shaping PSN locally 
for the Commissioning Council e.g. infrastructure.. 
 

Page 11



 

5.3 To undertake this, the Task and Finish Group sought evidence from a wide range of 
sources, including the Council’s Head of Customer Involvement (who has 
responsibility for ICT) and the Information Governance Officer (representing the Head 
of Legal Services who is the Council’s Senior Information Risk Officer - SIRO). 

 

5.4 Alongside Shropshire Council officers, the group also sought evidence from a range 
of other relevant sources, this included discussions with:  

 
· Mark Smith - PSN Head of Compliance & Transition at the Cabinet Office - Mark 

provided information on the PSN framework, this year’s zero tolerance approach to 

PSN accreditation, insight into future compliance requirements and the value of the 

PSN as a procurement, joint working and service delivery framework. 
 

· Andre Woodward and Mark Fiddler – Local Government technical specialists from 

Microsoft who provided information on the work that Shropshire Council has done 

to meet current connection requirements and the work that is being undertaken to 

support a PSN compliant architecture and mobile and flexible working in the future, 
including Mobile Device Management Software (MDM) and compliant Cloud 

computing solutions. 

 

5.5 The group also considered video evidence from: 
 

· Noelle Godfrey – Head of Digital Infrastructure at Cambridge County Council 

 

This presentation discussed (from a County Council’s perspective): 

o Background to PSN (from 2009/10) 
o Experience of 2014 implementation 

o Potential of the PSN for colocation and cross-agency working,  

including information assurance  

o Dialogue with the Cabinet Office on future implementation 
 

· John Stubley – PSN Authority Director at the Cabinet Office 

 

This presentation discussed:  

o Future of the PSN roadmap and collaboration, 
including the supplier and connectivity frameworks 

o Central Government savings already realised through the PSN 

o Changes to Central Services and Cyber Operations 

o Aligning PSN and Health connection frameworks (N3) to support future 
collaboration. (Since the Committee met the Government has now 

suggested that these plans may be reviewed). 

o The PSN as a foundation for sharing services in the future 

 
5.6 In addition, the group looked at The Cabinet Office’s detailed guidance on the Public 

Service Network (.gov.uk) and the Information on Service Orientated Architecture 

(SOA). 

 

6.0 Findings 
 
From the information provided and evidence that has been gathered, the group has: 

Page 12



 

 
6.1 Understood the background to the PSN and the requirements that the framework 

imposes, as well as the changes by the Cabinet Office to the implementation of in this 

year’s accreditation (zero tolerance) requirements. 

 
6.1.1 Members recognised and understood that the Cabinet Office PSN guidelines 

were, in principle, best practice for information security and IT infrastructure 

management. However, based on the available evidence, the group remained 

concerned at the risk to Council, both operationally and financially, from any 
unilateral changes to PSN connection requirements.  

 

6.1.2 Whilst these risks remain outside of the Council’s control, Members 

recognised that these risks were acknowledged and under contestant review 
by the Council. 

 

6.2 Considered, particularly through the evidence from Cabinet Office, questions around 

the benefits of PSN framework accreditation. It is was recognised that there was a 
significant business need to access data from, and connect to, the PSN network for 

key services such as Elections and Benefits and without this access the Council could 

not easily discharge key statutory functions. 

 
6.2.1 It was felt by the group that the wider benefits of the PSN, the procurement 

framework, the service delivery platform and the interconnectivity/ sharing with 

other public service organisation offered the potential for both joint working 

and service delivery savings, but that the product was not yet sufficiently 
developed to be able to draw reasonable conclusions as to the scope or scale 

of any long term benefits. 

 

6.2.2 As other public sector organisations are required to join the PSN i.e. Police, 
Fire Service and the NHS, the potential for joint working and sharing of 

accommodation and resources becomes more realistic. The group felt that the 

work on mobile and flexible working options and work on the development of a 

commissioning council needs to be mindful of the possibilities that this affords.  

 
6.2.3 The group were also keen to see how this would impact on the work of parish 

and town council, partners and the voluntary sector. 

 

6.3 Received, from the Head of Customer Involvement and the Information Governance 
Officer, details about how the Council is approaching PSN compliance, including the 

methodology employed in gaining this year’s accreditation and details of the work 

programme for compliance in March 2015.  

 
6.3.1 This information also included background on the new Customer Involvement 

Strategy, which will include the ICT strategy and architecture roadmap, 

including the move towards a more component based IT infrastructure, a 

Service Orientated Architecture (SOA) and the use of Cloud services and how 
PSN requirements are factored into these plans. 

 

6.3.2 The group also sought assurances that the ICT requirements of Members 

were also understood and accommodated within all of the PSN compliance 
plans, as it was felt that their requirements - in fulfilling their democratic 

Page 13



 

obligations - differed significantly from those of Council officers accessing line 

of business systems. Also, in the light of information received about the 

development of security standards, questions were asked about the provision 
and cost of council provided broadband lines for Members.  

 

6.3.3 Work following the final group meeting identified the PSN compliance costs for 

2014 to be in the region of £800k plus a significant contribution of staff time 
from ICT services – which had led to delays in other work streams. It is 

acknowledged that a precise figure is difficult to quantify as some of the work 

identified within these costs was for work that was ‘brought forward’ and not 

commissioned specifically to meet PSN accreditation.  
 

6.4 Consideration was given to the impact of PSN implementation on the Council’s plans 

and the Head of Customer Involvement assured the group that, as far as could be 

known, anticipated future PSN requirements were being built into the Customer 
Involvement Strategy as well as other relevant work streams and services, and that a 

programme of activity was in place to address accreditation in 2015 and that forward 

planning was also taking place for 2016/2017.  

 
6.4.1 The group considered evidence from the Cabinet Office, Microsoft and from 

council officers on the impact that PSN requirements had on mobile and 

flexible working, particularly the difficulties encountered with the withdrawal of 

access from unmanaged (in this case non Shropshire Council owned) devices 
and the challenges now encountered with the implementation of a ‘bring your 

own device’ (BYOD) policy.  

 

6.4.2 Whilst it was accepted that the withdrawal of access and the restrictions on 
BYOD had caused a delay in the speed of implementation for mobile and 

flexible working, and that the organisation would now need to provide 

additional financial resources to facilitate this model of working, the delay was 

short term and was not a barrier to the implementation of mobile working as a 
whole.  

 

6.4.3 Evidence was also provided that whilst the zero tolerance approach had 

caused additional workload and expenditure, the underlying direction of travel 
was still in line with the Council’s ambition to be a mobile and flexible 

organisation - one with a small asset base as agreed in the 2014 – 17 

Business Plan and Financial Strategy. Decisions taken around meeting 2014 

PSN compliance, including replacing older equipment (workstations) with new 
laptops and tablets and moving line of business systems to the Cloud, rather 

than upgrading servers ‘on site’, were fully aligned with this direction of travel. 

 

6.4.4 Microsoft, as a key technology partner, also provided assurance that the 
architecture currently being deployed was PSN compliant and that new 

developments, including work in the BYOD field, would open up new 

opportunities in these areas in the not too distant future.  

 
6.4.5 The group also looked at the relationship between ICT and individual service 

areas, including the emergence of IT as an enabler role in recent years with 

services taking on more devolved responsibility for their line of business 

systems and IT equipment. The Head of Customer Involvement explained the 

Page 14



 

reasoning behind this and the implementation of a new ICT Governance 

framework that was recently agreed by the Audit Committee (see appendix B)  

 
The group felt that whilst this was valuable, individual service areas did not 

always have the necessary visibility or understanding of the PSN and its future 

requirements to plan their own ICT provision in isolation, nor necessarily fund 

the required investment to maintain compliance standards which may have 
inadvertently led to some of the issues around this year’s compliance. In the 

light of this, the group felt that there should be a more strategic ICT overview 

and potentially the need to consider centralised budgeting arrangements. 
 

6.5 Considering evidence from the Cabinet Office that this year’s zero tolerance approach 

to PSN was a ‘one off’ and that compliance in future years was likely to be ‘cheaper 

and easier’, the group identified that there were significant challenges in meeting 

future compliance requirements alongside the organisational risk presented by any 
unilateral changes to PSN compliance standards. 

Members sought assurances that this was accounted for both on the corporate risk 

register and also by ensuring that there was a sufficient contingency budget that 

specifically reflected the need to meet the PSN requirements should they arise. 
 

6.5.1 From the evidence presented there was little to suggest that known future 

PSN requirements are not already being taken into account in the existing 

programme of activity and on the ICT roadmap. However emerging threats, 
including cybercrime could change those requirements in an instant and the 

organisation and Customer Involvement Strategy needed to be mindful of this. 

 

6.5.2 Evidence from Microsoft also demonstrated that the zero tolerance approach 
had also provided a challenge to suppliers, but that the market was adjusting 

and that new solutions were being developed that would help address 

organisational need around compliance. 

 
7.0 Conclusions  
 
7.1 Having reviewed all of the evidence provided, the group recognises the significant 

business requirement to access the PSN in order to deliver key services and 
discharge key statutory functions. 

 
7.2 It is understood that maintaining PSN accreditation, whist essential, also requires a 

significant commitment and coordination both organisationally and financially and 
there are additional risks to business operations from not meeting the criteria or from 
unilateral changes to the PSN connection regime. 

 

7.3 This year’s accreditation has proved to be challenging for many local authorities, 
primarily due to the Cabinet Office’s zero tolerance approach to certification, and the 
result of this has been to place an additional financial burden on this authority and on 
the services who have been working on the accreditation requirements. This has led 
inevitably to delays in the deployment of mobile and flexible working, resources being 
diverted from other work programs, expense to the authority and has impacted on 
Members and Officers. 

 

Page 15



 

7.4 To ensure that future compliance is maintained and that changes to the compliance 
regime do not detrimentally impact on the council’s future ability to meet its strategic 
and business objectives, it is important that awareness of both the existing and 
anticipated future requirements are recognised in both the strategies for delivering 
ICT and in adopting a Commissioning Council model, alongside any potential benefits 
for joint working that may emerge. 

 
8.0 Additional Recommendation  
 
8.1 The PSN Task and Finish Group would also like to recommend that the provision of 

Council funded broadband lines for Members is reviewed. The security requirement 

for Members to have dedicated Council lines is no longer in place and many 

Members already have their own provision in place.  

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 
 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
Mike Owen  

Local Member 
 

Appendices 

A – Terms of Reference  

B -  List of evidence reviewed 

C – ICT Governance Framework, Audit Committee report 

D – Glossary of terms 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

Appendices 
 
A. Terms of Reference (including context) 
B. List of Evidence Reviewed  
C. ICT Governance Framework, Audit Committee Report 
D. Glossary of Terms 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 17



 

A. Terms of Reference 

 

Context 
 
The Public Service Network (PSN) is a national framework set out by the Government, and 
managed by the Cabinet Office, that provides an assured network over which government can 
safely share both communications and services. 
 
Any organisation that has a business need to communicate directly with individual government 
departments, through the PSN network, needs to achieve appropriate accreditation from the 
Cabinet Office. The Cabinet Office sets out a series of technical standards that each organisation 
will need to meet in order to secure that accreditation. Accreditation is reviewed on an annual 
basis and the Cabinet Office (and CESG) regularly update the technical standards needed to 
meet compliance. 
 
Shropshire Council, alongside almost all local authorities, has identified a business need to 
connect to a number of government departments using the PSN network. These include access 
to DWP data for Revenues and Benefits purposes and also for emergency planning and electoral 
services. Therefore, it has agreed to meet the appropriate PSN standards to facilitate this. 
 
This year, the Cabinet Office increased the compliance standards around both unsupported 
software and unmanaged devices. The changes to unsupported software standards has 
accelerated the requirement to upgrade software across the organisation and has resulted in a 
significant number of devices being withdrawn from operations - as they are not suitable for 
upgrading. 
 
The unmanaged device requirement has resulted in this Council, and others who were pursuing 
the ‘bring your own device’ model to enable staff to do their work, having to stop this activity and 
meet the frameworks criteria. This has had a significant impact on a number of mobile and 
flexible working initiatives. 
 
Whilst the change in direction and investment to meet the criteria has been challenging, the PSN 
is not just about a connection between Public Services – though the ability of all public sector 
agencies to share PSN connectivity will undoubted support new models of joint service delivery – 
it is also about the creation of a procurement framework where goods/services can be purchased 
from accredited providers. 
  
“The Public Services Network (PSN) will substantially reduce the cost of communication services 
across UK government and enable new, joined-up and shared public services for the benefit of 
citizens. PSN is creating one logical network, based on industry standards, and a more open and 
competitive ICT marketplace at the heart of the UK public sector.” Gov.uk website 
 
Objectives 

· Understanding the national framework requirements 

· How the Council is addressing the PSN criteria 

· Identifying the effects of the framework requirements on the Council’s plans e.g. for home 

and mobile working 

· Understanding expected future requirements for the framework and any implications for 

the Council 

· Identifying the benefits of accreditation to the framework 

Information Required From Officers 
 

Page 18



 

· Evidence to show the benefit of the framework to a Commissioning Council, including any 

current and future savings  

· The local plan, timescales and costs to deliver the PSN framework 

· The difference between current and future Council networks in supporting new models of 

working e.g. mobile and flexible working and how, through PSN, non-secure wireless 
networks can be secure 

· Whether there is a difference between the needs of the Council Members and Council 

Officers and how these are being/will be met 

· The current challenges and future benefits of sharing networks and data with partners and 

providers 

· Implications for the Council’s use of assets and whether PSN is and will enable joint 

working 

 
Other Sources of Information 
 

· The Cabinet Office Roadmap  

· Expected developments in technology and when they are expected to impact on the PSN 

arrangements 

· Cabinet Office representatives 

· IT supplier (Microsoft Partner) representatives 

 
Methods to Be Used 
 

· Desktop research 

· Presentations 

· Visits 

· Tracking the implementation experience of the Council 

 
Timescales 
 
End of July 2014  
 
Key Results Expected 
 
Informing the Council’s future IT Strategy and Implementation Plan 
Informing shaping PSN for the Commissioning Council e.g. infrastructure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

B. List of Evidence Reviewed 
 
Cabinet Office: Used to deliver detailed guidance on PSN and Service Orientated Architecture. 
 
 https://www.gov.uk/  
 
Microsoft: Spoke to Local Government technical specialists from Microsoft who provided 
information on key issues such as current connection requirements and PSN compliant 
architecture. 
 
Technical Specialist: Andre Woodward  
Technical Specialist: Mark Fiddler  
 
PSN: Spoke to PSN Head of Compliance & Transition to gain understanding on PSN framework 
and approaches.  
 
PSN Head of Compliance & Transition: Mark Smith 
 
Shropshire Council: Spoke to sources within Shropshire Council to gain a wider scope of 
knowledge and evidence. 
 
 Head of Customer Involvement (including ICT): Nigel Bishop 
 Information Governance Officer: Roy Morris - representing Claire Porter, SIRO. 
 

Videos: Viewed videos in order to gain further understanding in PSN background and future 
frameworks. 
 
Noelle Godfrey – ‘Socitm Spring 2014 - PSN: Where next?’ 
 
 http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=tKmGyUE2cYA  
 
John Stubley - ‘Socitm Spring 2014 - PSN: Where next?’ 
 
  http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=tKmGyUE2cYA  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

C. ICT Governance Framework, Audit Committee Report 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Implementation of IT control improvements and risks 
 

Responsible Officer Nigel Bishop 
E-mail: nigel.bishop@shropshire.gov.uk 
 
1.0 Summary 
 
1.1  This report provides an update on work being undertaken to ensure that the ICT 

infrastructure is, and continues to be, fit for purpose; robust; PSN compliant; 
improving business continuity and mitigating risks. It is also to ensure that the 
direction of travel is aligned to both business and strategic objectives to provide 
the necessary assurance levels required. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the committee note the progress made in addressing 

assurance and risk around ICT infrastructure. 
 
REPORT 
 
3.0 Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 
3.1 ICT operations and infrastructure remains central to supporting the Council in 

delivering its strategic objectives and business activities. Increasing reliance on 
ICT coupled with changes to organisational structures has meant that 
resourcing allocation and the requirements of external compliance frameworks, 
including PSN connectivity, have placed significant demands and requirements 
on the delivery of corporate ICT. 

 
3.2  These demands are represented on the strategic risk register and regularly 

reviewed, as the risk to both business continuity and the delivery of the 
Council’s strategic objectives from any disruption or loss to ICT provision carries 
the potential for significant consequences, operationally, financially and legally. 

 
3.3  Work continues to take place around both addressing known risks and 

identifying new risks as they emerge. This activity is fed into existing work 
streams and also included in future work programmes and forward planning. 

 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1  ICT budgets remain under constant review and whilst operation savings have 

Committee and Date 
 
Audit Committee 
18 September 2014 
 

Page 21



 

been identified as part of routine business rationalisation, additional resources 
have been allocated where necessary to address specific risks or matters that 
fall outside known or planned operational activity, including this year’s changes 
to PSN compliance requirements that were mandated by Cabinet Office. 

 
5.0 Background 
 
5.1  Customer Involvement is responsible for ICT Services; Customer Services; 

Digital Services; BluPrint (Print and Mailroom services), the Local Support and 
Prevention Framework; Discretionary Housing Payments; and the 
commissioning of Communications from ip&e. 

 
5.2  The development of a Customer Involvement Strategy is an important strand in 

providing a clear direction of travel and activity roadmap. The draft strategy 
includes a number of outcomes that support the implementation of IT control 
improvements and seek to address and/or mitigate risk. Work on PSN 
compliance for 2015 is progressing well – but remains challenging. 

 
5.3  As part of the previous report to Audit Committee, reference was made to the 

development of a new ICT Governance Framework. This framework will ensure 
that there is sufficient control, robustness and risk management around the 
development and/or procurement of IT systems, whether centrally managed, or 
operated by individual service areas. It will also ensure that all developments 
are in line with the Council’s strategic objectives and are standards compliant, 
including for PSN accreditation. It is likely that framework will be in place and 
operational by January 2015. 

 
5.4  A key part of the strategy includes the driver to move infrastructure and line of 

business systems to a Cloud based environment and in doing so increase 
business continuity and mitigate the risks associated with loss of access to, or 
failure of, one of the Council’s data centres. 

 
5.5  Aside of the development of the ICT governance framework (as part of the 

Information Governance Group IGG), work is in progress to adopt ITIL 
(Information Technology Infrastructure Library) standards for IT Service 
Management. It is anticipated that work will be completed by January 2015. 

 
5.6  The Information Governance Group, chaired by Head of Legal, Strategy & 

Democracy (the Council’s Senior Information Risk Owner – SIRO), ensures that 
measures are in place to manage Council information to meet legal and external 
compliance requirements and in accordance with Council’s Information Risk 
Policy. This includes ensuring that the Council has appropriate assurance and 
security controls in place for IT services. 

 
5.7  Work in this area has already advanced and the migration to Office 365 

(including Outlook email) and Lync telephony to the Cloud is now almost 
complete. Work is also underway to move other significant line of business 
systems to the Cloud, including those used by Revenues and Benefits and 
Property Services. Other systems are at the early phase of the procurement 
process and progress on these can be reported on in due course. 

Page 22



 

5.8  Ten key IT systems have been identified and where these systems are not 
already Clouded, work is being undertaken on to assess their suitability for 
Cloud hosting. In meeting the Cabinet Office’s 2015 PSN compliance standards 
we will also be required to upgrade parts of the Council’s main server farm, 
therefore hosted solutions will be the preferred solution for this work wherever 
possible. 

 

 
 
5.9  Work on the ICT systems register continues and is now available to be shared, 

at a high level, with the Audit Committee. The next phases of development 
include chronicling system inter-dependencies and subsidiary software – which 
is required to ensure that PSN compliance is maintained. The system register is 
also being aligned with the Emergency Plan and individual service area 
recovery plans. 

 
5.10  Aside of the development of the ICT governance framework (as part of the 

Information Governance Group IGG), work is in progress to adopt ITIL 
(Information Technology Infrastructure Library) standards for IT Service 
Management. It is anticipated that work will be completed by January 2015. 

 
5.11  Considerable work has been undertaken on the future plans for both disaster 

recovery and business continuity. Disaster recovery (DR) represents the ability 
of the organisation to recover data and/or restore systems in the event of a 
catastrophic failure of the primary datacenter and represents the Council’s data 
‘backup’ provision. All key systems have disaster recovery contingency in place, 
but processes and procedures are constantly under review. 

 
5.12  Business Continuity relates to the ability of the organisation to operate a 

‘business as usual’ service during an emergency that could include the loss of 
(or access to) the primary datacentre. As technology evolves, and reliance on 
ICT systems increases, the requirement to restore system quickly following 
interruption to service from disruption, for example from flood, power or internet 
loss becomes paramount. 

 
5.13  Direction set out in the Customer Involvement Strategy, includes moving key 

systems to Cloud based provision which includes disaster recovery and 
business continuity as a precursor and work is already underway to Cloud a 

Page 23



 

number of key line of business systems. The development of the ICT 
Governance Framework will also ensure that this ethos continues to be 
embedded in the development of all future ICT provision. 

 
5.14  Business continuity requirements are though constantly evolving, as both 

technology and infrastructure change, and a paper is being prepared for 
Directors which will outline the options around a number of different approaches 
to enhancing and providing assurance around future provision. This is currently 
being aligned with the Customer Involvement Strategy and ICT architecture 
roadmap. 

 
5.15  Subject to financial approval, and as part of this process, the programme 

includes the relocation of the secondary data centre by January 2015. 
 
5.16  ICT, like all Customer Involvement Services, is subject to significant audit 

observation and all audit recommendations are accepted, addressed and 
factored into ongoing work programmes and are accounted for within the 
Customer Involvement strategy and relevant service plans. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

D. Glossary of Terms 
 
BYOD policy – ‘Bring your own device’ policy 
CESG – National Technical Authority for Information Assurance 
CIS – Customer Involvement Strategy 
Co-Co – Code of Connection 
DWP data – Department of Work and Pensions 
MDM – Mobile Device Management Software 
OWA – Outlook Web Access 
PMSC – Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 
PSN – Public Service Network 
SIRO – Senior Information Risk Officer 
SOA – Service Orientated Architecture 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet – 15 October 2014 – Quarter 1 Performance Report 2014/15

Committee and Date

Cabinet 15 October 2014

12.30 pm

Item

9
Public

Quarter 1 Performance Report 2014/15

Responsible: Tom Dodds, Performance Manager
e-mail: tom.dodds@shropshire.gov.uk 01743 253068

1. Summary

1.1 The report is produced based on the new performance management framework
and reporting methodology. This has been developed following work with the
Portfolio Holders and Scrutiny members during the Performance Management
Rapid Action Group in January - February 2014.

1.2 At the corporate level performance is monitored using an overall change info-
graphic (See Appendix 1). The delivery of the outcomes for Shropshire stated in
the Shropshire Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 is
being monitored through a basket of indicators grouped in technical dashboards.
The key intelligence from the 4 technical outcomes dashboards (signed off by
Directors and considered by the relevant Scrutiny Committee) are not included with
this report but are available on request. The intelligence is summarised in the
outcomes infographics dashboards (Appendix 2).

1.3 This report summarises the latest measures of performance relating to the four
outwards focusing outcomes for Shropshire Council:

Your money – ‘Feel financially secure and to believe in a positive future for
myself and my family’

Your environment – ‘Live in an attractive, vibrant and safe environment,

in a place that is right for me’

Your life – ‘Feel valued as an individual and to live my life, with my choices
respected and with as few compromises as possible’

Your health – ‘Live a long, enjoyable and healthy life’

1.4 Information from the Change info graphic dashboard reflects the progress towards
the fifth council outcome:

Your council – ‘Feel confident that the council is doing the right thing with

my money and that my needs are at the centre of any decisions taken about

my life’

1.5 As part of developing and further refining what is measured to demonstrate
progress and the impact of commissioning decisions and changes to services,
work is taking place with Scrutiny Committees. A Task and Finish Group is

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



Cabinet – 15 October 2014 – Quarter 1 Performance Report 2014/15

currently in operation with the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee
looking at measures appropriate to the new operating model for Adult Social Care.
Alongside this, the Portfolio Holder for Performance has discussions with fellow
Portfolio Holders to understand what actions and developments are planned and/or
in place to respond to the issues and ensure outcomes are achieved.

2. Recommendations
Members are asked to

A. Consider the key underlying and emerging issues in the reports and
appendices.

B. Identify any performance areas that they would like to consider in greater
detail or refer to the appropriate Scrutiny Committee.

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Poor performance could have implications for vulnerable people (including
children) who are supported by Council services and the economic growth in
Shropshire. In turn, there may be significant financial, legal and reputational risk to
the Council, Schools (and Academies), and partners from across the public and
voluntary and independent care sectors.

3.2 Effective monitoring and follow-up against key measures of success provides the
opportunity to manage risks and ensure that Children and Young People and
vulnerable adults in Shropshire remain safe and achieve the desired outcomes.
Increasingly, performance reporting will reflect the impact of commissioning
decisions by the Council, linking directly with the management of contracts and
building on the current approach of looking at how effective the Council is at
delivering its outcomes.

4. Financial Implications

4.1 This report does not have any direct financial implications, but presents service
and financial information to support decision making. Accountable officers and
senior managers may use the information to inform actions or interventions for
improving service performance and the prioritisation and use of resources.

4.2 Full financial details are presented as part of the Financial Reports.

5. High level Change Infographics dashboard

5.1 The high level graphic shows the four measures which are used to show the
Council’s performance in managing the budget, its staffing levels, its expenditure
and residents satisfaction in the area they live.

5.2 The projected revenue forecast for the year, at Quarter 1, shows a potential
overspend of £3.225m on a net budget of £223.45m for the full year. This is being
monitored and will be revised each month. Full details are presented in the
financial reports.

Page 28



Cabinet – 15 October 2014 – Quarter 1 Performance Report 2014/15

5.3 The number of non-school posts has reduced from 5096 (3,393 FTE equivalent) in
July 2013 to 4524 (2855 FTE equivalent) in June 2014. The average number of
layers of management between Chief Executive and staff has remained at 4.9 over
the same period of time.

5.4 In Q1 2014/15, The Council spent 47.8% of its original gross revenue budget with
external organisations (therefore excluding staffing costs, transfer payments and
recharges). This is broadly in line with the profiled minimum standard 48.3% for the
quarter and reflects progress of the Council’s approach to the way services are
being delivered.

5.5 The first quarterly survey to track satisfaction with local areas was launched in
Quarter 1. When asked: “Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with your
local area as a place to live? By local area we mean within 15-20 minutes walking
distance from your home.” 73% of respondents (net score) reported being either
very satisfied or fairly satisfied. The survey conducted through Shropshire
Council’s People’s Panel will be repeated on a quarterly basis to reflect the
residents’ view overall about the impact of the outcomes delivered by Shropshire
Council and its partner organisations.

6. Summary Outcomes Infographic Dashboard

6.1 The summary outcomes presents the key messages from the intelligence captured
by the technical performance dashboards using infographic images – one for each
outcome prioritised by the Council. The infographic has been developed as a result
of responding to the Members’ Task and Finish group work to enhance
performance reporting and focus more on the key performance intelligence to
inform decision making and scrutiny.

6.2 The latest published Office of National Statistics (ONS) data shows that the
average life expectancy at birth in Shropshire (79.8 for males and 83.8 for females)
is above the national average both for males and females. As contextual
information Shropshire’s results for healthy life expectancy is also better than
England average.

6.3 The rate of Looked After Children (LAC) per 10k population has again risen but
remains below the average level for statistical neighbours and England. The
absolute number of LAC has been rising since August 2011 when it stood at 195.
At the end of Q1 there were 286 LAC, representing a 47% increase over this
period.

6.4 Children’s Social Care Services are being re-designed with a focus to reduce the
need for children to be looked after or the period of time that children are looked
after in a safe way. More support is being provided to the children on the edge of
care. For children deemed in need of permanency care due to significant harm,
more focus is put on ensuring timely care planning. Early Help strategy
developments included support from social workers for partner organisations to
help manage risk at lower level or in case of significant harm to act promptly.

6.5 Data for the first quarter of this financial year shows an improvement in
performance regarding the percentage of Children who are subject to a second or
subsequent child protection plan within two years and only less than 1% of the
active cases with a child protection plan that was started more then two years ago.

Page 29



Cabinet – 15 October 2014 – Quarter 1 Performance Report 2014/15

6.6 The level of reported crime for period ending March 2014 has shown a slight
increase compared to previous quarter, the first increase from one quarter to
another since Dec 2011. However, the overall trend shows a reduction since March
2010. The fear of crime survey shows there has been a reduction in the fear of
crime from 32.9% for the 12 months to Dec 2013 to 25.8% for the 12 months to
March 2014.

6.7 The amount of household waste that is re-used, recycled or sent for composting
has increased when compared to the previous year.

6.8 Average house prices in Shropshire are now 7.32 times average earnings
compared to 8.42 in 2008. Although this makes housing slightly more affordable
the ratio of earnings to house prices remain above the West Midlands average.

6.9 Claimant numbers for the Job Seekers Allowance have continued to decrease
during the year with numbers now at the lowest level since Oct 2008. The
percentage of claimants remains below the average for England and the West
Midlands region. Long-term claimant numbers are reducing, albeit at a slower rate,
and remain above pre-recession levels.

6.10 Permanent admissions into residential care homes (as a rate per 100,000
population) reduced year on year for both 18 to 64 and 65+ age groups.

6.11 Delays in transfers from hospital due to social care have continued to reduce
continuing the trend from the last two years. This is a continuation of the effective
joint working arrangements with partner agencies to ensure support services are in
place and that delays from hospital are kept to a minimum. The result for the end of
2013/14 financial year shows better performance compared to our family group
and matched England average.

7. Conclusion

7.1 This first performance report provides an update on the results achieved and the
impact on delivering the five outcomes for Shropshire based on the methodology
developed as part of the Members Rapid Action Group at the beginning of the
calendar year.

7.2 Performance in the first quarter of 2014/15 has shown a number of improvements.

Performance has improved in the recycling rates of household waste,

There are less delays in transfer from hospital and

Fewer children are subject to a second Child Protection Plan.

In addition to these improvements there are also challenges to be faced.

Increasing numbers of Looked After Children, following the national trend

An above average older population placing additional demand on social
care provision

Page 30



Cabinet – 15 October 2014 – Quarter 1 Performance Report 2014/15

These additional demands are contributing to the early budget forecasts which
show a potential overspend.

Measures and new ways of working are being developed and implemented to
deliver services in different ways and continue to deliver the council’s outcomes
and priorities.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)

Tim Barker

Local Member
All

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Change Infographic Dashboard

Appendix 2 – Outcome Summary Infographic Dashboard

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



����������������	�	
��

��	


�������	�����
	

�������������

�
�	��	����	������	

�������������

�����	��	�������
	
��
�

������	���
�	�����
����	

�
��������������

������	�
���
���	��������	���	�����
������	�����	 �!� ���
�	

���	�������	


� ���	��	

"���!� �#��$%

&��!
� �'
���

�
���	���	!����	�����"��	���		

�
����
����	��(	

���(��

�����	

�����	

�����	

���
����

�� '���

#���	!��
���$%
���������	&��������	


��	�������	�
��� �"�
'	��
����	���	(����� �
��	��� '	)���������	!��
���	 	 	 	 				(��������	)���� ���	*+,�	

���)��
���)��

*��
��� ��

���
+,�
��� ��

���

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
��
����	

��������	�������	����	
�������	


�����
����������
�������
������������������������

����������������		

�����
���	����	�����

��
������	

�����	���
�	���

��������	���������

��
�������

����	��	
����	������������������

��������	����
��	��������������

��
��������������������������� 	

!�����������
�

������������		

����
���
�����

� !�	�����	

���������"� #$�������� �"��#��

�

"���
����������	���������	

��	
����	�������
����
�
���

���
����
�
������������

�$%
��������&�����'�(����

����	

 )#$�

*������� �

 �#��

*���������

+���	���������	�������
�(����(������,��	�����(��-���
�'���
����������(��#� � � � � � � � �����,���������'�
���������� �

�.�����������

��������������

/��������

��������

	

0�
������

�1��(���

+�����	�

(�����

���#$%							  &' #�
��	�����	��

23�


������

��������	��

	

� ��

��4���

��4� �

5��� 4�6�

�$7) � )6%�

� #$�

��#��

�#��

2$�#6�

2� #.�

���#)�

"���
������������	����������	������

�����������(���������
�
������
�����


�
�������

8��������������������	�����
�
����&��

��(���	��	
���������������
������	

*������ �9(����� ���+���� � �����*���� �

�#63�

��#�3� ��#�3�

�#�3�

���������������� �

6�#�3�

6�#63�

��

&���� �'�
����:�(��$�

�6.��

)�*	�������	+���,��
�	(�����	

��,���	���(��9(�����$###�

��������	����	
��������		�

�����������	

$)��
)$6�

����������%�

(������

*'&�

(������

 .�2�

�$$��

-��
���	��	����������	

�� 	

.���	����		

���
���	

+	/����	���
�	0�	1�2�	

��#	

.���	��2��������	

���
���	

�������	�������	

��3	

.���	�����	

���
���	

������	4��2�	���������	

.���	������	

���
���	 ��5	

���$�"�$# ��

�����"�2#���

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
 
Council 
 
 
27th February 2014 
 

 Item 
 

8 
 
Public 
 

 
 
BUSINESS PLAN AND FINANCIAL STRATEGY – 2014/15 TO 2016/17 
 
Responsible Officer James Walton 
e-mail: James.Walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: (01743) 255011 

 
   

1 Summary  
 

The Draft Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy considered by Cabinet on 13 
November 2013 provided details of the council’s financial projections for resources 
and expenditure over the 3 year period 2014-17.  In January, Cabinet received an 
update to the Business Plan and Financial Strategy which included the latest 
resource and expenditure projections following the draft Local Government Finance 
Settlement for 2014 to 2015 and further information on the proposals to meet the 
funding gap identified of £80m over the period 2014-2017. 
 
The Final Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy considered by Cabinet on 19 
February 2014 includes the latest financial position for 2014/15 following the Final 
Local Government Finance Settlement announced on 5 February 2014.  The 
resource and expenditure projections have also been updated for the latest estimate 
of the Council’s share of Business Rates, the collection funds for council tax and 
business rates and further information received on specific grants for 2014/15. 
 
The report also includes an update of the capital programme for 2014-17 based on 
current confirmed funding and delivery schedule for schemes. 
 

  
Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that members: 

A. Agree the Final Business Plan and Financial Strategy attached at Appendix 1 
and agree the proposals for setting the Council’s budget for the three years 
2014/15 to 2016/17.  

B. Recognise the projected funding gap over the period 2014/15 to 2016/17 of 
£80m; £41.531m falling in 2014/15 

C. Approve the savings identified in 2014/15 of £39.892m and rephasing of 
growth proposals of £1.639m to meet the funding gap. 

D. Agree the adjustments to the budget for the internal market to ensure that the 
costs of these services and the recharge cost and income for these services 
are no longer both reflected in the gross budget. 

Page 37



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

2 
 

E. Approve the budget for 2014/15 of £573.139m, after savings and internal 
market costs adjustments.  

F.  Agree to accept Council Tax Freeze Grant for 2014/15 of £1.307m on the 
basis that Council Tax will be frozen for 2014/15. 

G. Note the financial implications of the transfer of the Programme Management 
Office and Business Design Team to ip&e. 

H. Agree the revised Capital Programme for 2014/15 to 2016/17 as set out within 
the report and recommend this to Council for approval. 

 
I. In accordance with the regulations, approve a Capital Allowance of £1million 

for 2014/15 to enable the Council to retain in full, capital receipts received 
from the disposal of Housing Revenue Account (HRA) assets (excluding Right 
to Buy sales). Furthermore, that the capital receipts from such sales are 
reserved for expenditure on the Council’s housing stock. 

 
J. Agree the Statement of Chief Financial Officer on the Robustness of the 

Estimates and Adequacy of Provisions and Reserves 2013-16 as set out in 
Appendix 2, noting the Council’s general fund balance over this period. 

 
K. Agree the Pay and Reward Policy for all Council staff for 2014/15 as set out in 

Appendix 3. 
 

REPORT 

 

2 Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 
2.1 The development and delivery of the Council’s Business Plan and Financial 

Strategy for the next three years is the key process in managing many of the 
Council’s strategic risks. The opportunities and risks arising are assessed each 
time the document is refreshed for Cabinet consideration. The Council’s Strategic 
Risks are reported separately, but the Business Plan and Financial Strategy 
makes specific reference to the significant financial uncertainty across Local 
Government in the Medium Term. 
 
Financial Uncertainty 
 

2.2 From 2013/14 a new funding mechanism for Local Government was introduced 
which is based on the retention of 50% of locally raised Business Rates.  The 
remaining funding received by the Council, Revenue Support Grant and Top up is 
based on the Council receiving a total amount comparable to the amount that 
would have been received under the four block funding methodology.  There is a 
risk that the government’s estimate of Shropshire’s Business Rates is too high so 
that the remaining RSG and Top up are insufficient to make up the total amount 
required.  Alternatively, if the government has estimated Shropshire’s share of 
Business Rates, the baseline, conservatively it will mean that the Council’s actual 
Business Rates have to fall firstly down to the baseline figure then 7.5% below 

Page 38



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

3 
 

that figure before the safety net arrangements apply. Shropshire’s current 
projections show projected Business Rates above the baseline assumptions. 
 

2.3 From 2013/14 the funding mechanism is fixed.  Variation in the Council’s 
Business Rates will result directly in more or less funding for the Council. The 
safety net mechanism is only invoked when the Council’s total net income is 
reduced by 7.5% or more.  For Shropshire this is a drop of £3.5m below the 
baseline, however, our current projections show we would be operating above 
this level, therefore would need to suffer a greater drop of almost £4.5m before 
the Safety Net would be invoked.  

 
2.4 Locally retained business rates introduce uncertainty to the Council’s in year 

available resources; previously the Council was informed of the amount of 
redistributed business rates it would receive before the start of the financial year, 
under the new system the resources the Council actually receives will only be 
estimated in advance and could vary significantly.  To mitigate the risk of large 
variations in estimated Business Rates, monitoring of Business Rates income will 
be further developed and reported regularly, reducing risk as the level and quality 
of data is increased. 

 
2.5 The government has retained 50% of Business Rates and distributes this back to 

local authorities after any adjustments as Revenue Support Grant and a Top Up 
payment. Central Government can continue to adjust local government finance 
settlements by adjusting the control totals and distributing any surplus Business 
Rates as new responsibilities. 

 
2.6 In addition, as service needs change the funding mechanism will not reflect these 

changes. It is proposed that the system will not be reset for 7 years i.e. until 
2020/21. 

 
2.7 By creating a Financial Strategy that continues to look beyond the next three 

years at the longer-term and is regularly updated to reflect new information, the 
Council is in a stronger position to approach future challenges proactively, rather 
than reactively. 

 
2.8 While the Financial Strategy represents our approach to the mitigation of the 

financial uncertainty we are faced with, the tight and uncertain financial climate 
over the medium to long term still presents a high risk to the authority. In addition 
to the known uncertainties we have planned for, there remains potential for 
further, as yet unrecognised, risks. For this reason, a prudent approach to the 
level of reserves held by the Council remains sensible and necessary.  As the 
new Business Rates Retention system becomes embedded this will mean the 
revision of newly introduced provisions for rating appeals and other fluctuations.  

 
2.9 For the Financial Year 2014/15 the total value of all proposals (including 

rephasing of growth) exceed the funding gap identified. However, the timing of 
delivery and the scale of proposals to be implemented in a short time period still 
represent a significant risk to the authority. For this reason it is essential that the 
Council has a reasonable level of reserves in place to help mitigate against this 
risk and this is set out within the Business Plan and Financial Strategy. 

 

Page 39



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

4 
 

2.10 The report on the Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves is 
attached at Appendix 2 and should be considered alongside this report. 

 
 

Other Risks and Opportunities 
 
2.11 The Business Plan and Financial Strategy sets the resource parameters within 

which the Council can commission services to meet its priority outcomes. All risks 
and opportunities which have a material monetary value are considered within the 
strategy. 

 
2.12 The Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy recognises that there are 

risks and opportunities associated with ip&e as it a wholly owned company of the 
Council.   The development of the Council’s future financial strategy will be clear 
about the financial expectations of ip&e and how this will impact on the Council’s 
budget. 

 
2.13 Setting the Financial Strategy and agreeing the detailed changes necessary to 

deliver the agreed budget for the next financial year, will take into account the 
requirements of the Human Rights Act, any necessary environmental appraisals 
and the need for Equalities Impact Needs Assessments and any necessary 
service user consultation.   

 
3 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy identifies the financial 

implications of the overall strategic direction of the authority.  
 

3.2 The resource projections are based on the 2014/15 Final Local Government 
Finance Settlement.  The Council’s own estimate of locally retained Business 
Rates as detailed in the National Non Domestic Rates return to Government 
dated 31 January 2014 is used. 

 
3.3 The expenditure projections take account of known services changes and 

pressures including legislative changes. 
 
3.4 All projections in future years will be continually reassessed as information 

becomes available and national and local circumstances change from those 
modelled within the Strategy. 

 
3.5 The current predictions on the level of general reserves are based upon the latest 

projections for 2013/14 spending as at Period 9 monitoring. 
 
3.6 The financial impact of any known transfer of services, for example to ip&e, has 

been estimated and identified in the report.  The impact of any further transfers 
will be included in future strategies once they have been approved.   

 
4 Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014-2017 

 
4.1 In November 2013, Cabinet received the first draft of the Council’s Business Plan 

and Financial Strategy. Since that date significant work has been undertaken to 

Page 40



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

5 
 

improve the document, to provide more details of our plans, to reflect the latest 
financial position and to refine the Council’s vision for the future. 
 

4.2 In January, Cabinet received a number of updated sections and additions to the 
Business Plan and Financial Strategy incorporating further details on savings 
proposals and updating of the current capital programme, and these have now 
been incorporated into a final single document. 

 
4.3 The finalised Business Plan and Financial Strategy is attached at Appendix 1 to 

this report and has been agreed by Cabinet on 19 February 2014.    This 
document will continue to be updated and refreshed in the coming months and 
years. The document includes the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan for the 
following three years (2014/15 to 2016/17) along with commentary and the impact 
of the current financial year (which represents the final year of the previous 
Medium Term Financial Plan) and indications of the longer term financial outlook 
for the Council.  Alongside the Business Plan and Financial Strategy, and 
Medium Term Financial Plan, Council will set the Council’s revenue and capital 
budget for 2014/15. A Council budget book is being produced to reflect the 
impact of the first year of the Medium Term Financial Plan and to allow the 
Council to formally set the budget for 2014/15. 

 
4.4 The Business Plan sets out the Council’s approach to redesigning everything we 

currently do, to make best use of the resources we have available. The document 
itself has been available on the Council’s website for review and consideration as 
part of the budget consultation process. Additionally, through the Council’s 
Scrutiny process and a series of Rapid Action Groups, the Business Plan and 
Financial Strategy has been open to robust review by all Members of the Council. 

 
4.5 The Business Plan and Financial Strategy identifies a funding gap of £80m over 

the next three financial years. Details of the basis for deriving this figure are set 
out in the document alongside proposals identified to meet this funding gap. 

 
4.6 The phasing of savings required to produce a balanced budget is as follows: 

 

· 2014/15 £41.531m 
· 2015/16 £20.136m 
· 2016/17 £18.333m 

 
4.7 Work has been undertaken to ensure that the savings proposals and budget 

requirements align to allow the Council to set a legal and balanced budget for 
2014/15 by 1 April 2014.  This is detailed in the Strategic Financial Overview 
section of the Business Plan and Financial Strategy. 
 

4.8 The proposals identified to balance the budget over the same period are as 
follows: 

 

· 2014/15  £39.892m 
· 2015/16  £24.614m 
· 2016/17  £15.494m 
· Three year total £80.0m 

 

Page 41



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

6 
 

4.9 Details of the phasing of proposals to meet the profile of the funding gap is set 
out in the attached Business Plan and Financial Strategy. In summary: 
 
· Specific savings proposals to the value of £80m have been identified 
· Proposals totalling £39.892m have been identified for 2014/15. 
· Revision and rephasing of growth proposals can reduce the funding gap by up 

to £6.262m in 2014/15, to date only £1.639m of this is required to be built in. 
· With full delivery of the savings proposals and other measures identified above 

it will be possible to set a balanced budget for 2014/15. 
 

4.10 The proposals put forward for 2014/15 have been subject to a review to consider 
risks associated with delivery within available timescales. While the total value of 
all proposals currently exceed the funding gap identified in 2014/15, the timing of 
delivery and the scale of proposals to  be  implemented in a short time period 
represent a significant risk to the authority. For this reason, it is essential that the 
Council has a reasonable level of reserves in place to help mitigate against this 
risk. 
 

4.11 The Local Government Settlement included details of Council Tax Freeze Grant 
for 2014/15, including indicative allocations equivalent to a 1% increase in the 
average 2013/14 Band D amount multiplied by the tax base. In line with previous 
years the Council has based resource projections on the assumption that there 
will be no increase in the Council’s element of the Council Tax bill. Therefore the 
authority is in a position to claim Council Tax Freeze Grant, which for 2014/15 is 
indicated to be worth £1.307m. 

 
4.12 The Business Plan and Financial Strategy identifies the approach for the future 

transfer of services to ip&e; the Council’s wholly owned company. The Financial 
Strategy takes account of any known transfer of services to ensure that the 
Council’s financial position is understood and reflected ahead of any decision 
taken to approve a transfer.  A number of areas are under review for future 
transfer to ip&e, and at this stage the transfer of the Programme Management 
Office and Business Design Team is well advanced. The financial implications of 
the transfer are set out in the attached Business Plan and Financial Strategy, 
ahead of the business case for transfer being considered and approved by 
Cabinet. 

 
4.13 The Business Plan and Financial strategy now includes the Council’s revised 

Capital Programme which was considered by Cabinet in January 2014, for 
approval by Council in February. In line with previous years and in accordance 
with the regulations, it is necessary to approve a Capital Allowance of £1million 
for 2014/15 to enable the Council to retain in full, capital receipts received from 
the disposal of HRA assets (excluding Right to Buy sales). The capital receipts 
received from such sales are reserved for expenditure on the Council’s housing 
stock. 
 

5 Approval of 2014/15 Budget 
 
5.1 The budget for the 3 years 2014-2017 is set out in the Strategic Financial 

Overview section of the Business Plan. 
 

Page 42



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

7 
 

5.2 The resource and expenditure projections identify the funding shortfall of £80m 
over the period 2014-2017, £41.531m falling in the next financial year 2014/15.  
The gross budget for 2014/15 is detailed as £572.139m after savings.  This gross 
budget includes an adjustment of £16.491m for reductions around the internal 
market and support services costs and an adjustment of £28.366m for the 
internal market to ensure the costs of these services and the recharged cost and 
income for these services are no longer both reflected in the gross budget. This 
total adjustment of £44.657m has been removed from both the resource and 
expenditure projections and does not affect the Council’s savings projections. 

 
5.3 The Councils Revenue and Capital 2014/15 Budget Book provides further details 

of the 2014/15  budget  and can be found on the Council’s website. 
 
6 Public Consultation 2013 
 
6.1 Join the Conversation 2013 took place during the week of 16 September, with 

four public meetings held in Oswestry, Craven Arms, Bridgnorth and Shrewsbury. 
The events were open to the public, and local people were given the chance to 
submit questions in advance with emphasis being placed on the financial 
challenge faced by the public sector. Representatives from West Mercia Police, 
the Clinical Commissioning Group and Shropshire Fire and Rescue were in 
attendance, in addition to Keith Barrow and Clive Wright from Shropshire 
Council. 

 
6.2 Members of the public posed questions to all members of the panel, with 

maintaining good public services being the primary concern. Having initially made 
savings in other ways, all services are now tackling the more difficult issue of 
reducing the workforce to save money. The panel stressed that every effort is 
being made to do things differently, with less bureaucracy, and the same or a 
better outcome for a lesser cost. 

 
6.3 Other common themes included questions on locality commissioning, 

partnerships and the future of ip&e Ltd. 
 
6.4 An online survey to share views on the budget proposals was available on the 

Shropshire Council website from 17 January to 9 February. People were also 
able to request a paper copy. 

 
6.5 The feedback included comments on the consultation itself and the explanation 

of the proposals. People told us that the language used and the level of detail 
should be improved. 

 
6.6 In response we have reviewed the wording, removed acronyms, unless explained 

previously in the text, and told people where they can find more budget 

information. We will also take this on board for future consultations. 
 

6.7 In addition, some of the comments received were from partner organisations 
inviting us to work more closely with them, and we will be following up these 
responses. 

 
 
 

Page 43



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

8 
 

Summary of Responses  

Adult Social Care  

6.8 The most prominent theme relating to responses on the adult social care 
proposals was the importance of protecting the vulnerable. Comments included: 
“Dignity and respect for our elderly is essential and they need professional care 
and commitment.” 
 

6.9 Points also submitted included not over-burdening those we provide support to 
with responsibility, and the need for more joined-up thinking with our partners. 

 
6.10 In response, we will take these comments on board ensure we engage well with 

users, their carers and the broader community as we implement our changes.  
We are clear and reiterate our Council Priorities to protect and help those 
needing our support to maximise and achieve their potential. 

 
Children’s Services 

6.11 The main theme of responses on children’s services proposals was that investing 
in the county’s children was a priority, noting the long term impact this has. 
Comments included: “Children are our future, if we neglect their needs we 
neglect our future.” 
 

6.12 The responses also included different views on intervening at early stages to 
provide support, and the need to encourage more young families to live in 
Shropshire.  

 
6.13 In response, we will focus on ensuring that we provide support for vulnerable 

children as early as possible.  We will work with the family ensuring support is 
joined up.  

 
6.14 By providing help in a different way and in a more sustained way where 

necessary, we will reduce the demand on high level social work interventions. 
 

Public Health 

6.15 Many respondents highlighted the importance of investment in prevention to 
reduce health problems such as obesity and long term conditions such as 
diabetes. Overall they believed that such investment would reduce costs in 
treatment and care later in life.  

 
6.16 Some respondents wished to see some investment in council led services such 

as outdoor recreation and physical activity promotion programmes such as 
swimming, particularly for children and older people. 

 
6.17 Health promotion for older people was highlighted by some respondents as a 

way of reducing the potential burden of an ageing population on social care 
services. 

 
6.18 All of the comments received will be taken into account within our future plans. 

 

Page 44



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

9 
 

Commissioning 

6.19 The consultation prompted a variety of views on commissioning and contracts. 
These included outlining how there should be more understanding of 
commissioning processes and that contracts should be reconsidered. One of the 
comments was: “Management contracts should be reconsidered in the light of 
quality of service delivery. Commissioning of management is one part but there is 
need for capital investment…” Some people recommended buying in more 
services and others did not as they said this was more expensive.  
 

6.20 Those who responded also suggested getting volunteers more involved in the 
work of the council. 

 
6.21 We recognise the importance of clarity and consistency in our commissioning 

activity and hence Shropshire Council is currently seeking feedback on its draft 
Commissioning Strategy which outlines how we will go about commissioning and 
some key principles that will be followed. We already have a strong approach to 
contract management with existing providers and monitor progress against a 
number of set criteria to ensure quality of provision. In terms of capital 
investment, we recognise that this may be appropriate for certain commissioned 
activities and where this is, we aim to reflect this in the contract. For example the 
recent leisure contract resulted in several hundred thousand pounds of capital 
investment at a number of leisure facilities including Market Drayton and 
Oswestry. As part of the model that Shropshire Council follows when deciding 
what areas to commission a clear business case is developed which highlights 
the best approach to take. This includes what the best delivery model is, quality 
of provision, and wherever possible that the work stays in Shropshire. 

 
6.22 Shropshire is blessed with many thousands of people who volunteer across the 

county, not just within Shropshire Council but also in other public sector and 
voluntary sector organisations. Shropshire Council alongside West Mercia Police 
are now leading on an initiative to enhance and further develop the various 
networks with its VIPs (Volunteers in Public Services) model - it's still at it's very 
early stages but the work has already brought all the key stakeholders and 
providers together to explore how this important area can be further enhanced. 
This work will continue throughout 2014. 

 
Resources and Support 

6.23 One of the strong themes in the Resources and Support responses was to cut 
back office services and bureaucracy. The comments included: “Reduce back 
end costs to a minimum – this should be your first focus if you really want to 
protect frontline services.” 
 

6.24 In response, in the plan  we show how, through ip&e and our ‘Inspire to Learn’ 
educational support service, we are unlocking our capacity and expertise to trade 
with other organisations, bringing new income into the county to help support 
essential services. This means we’re doing all we can to retain and ultimately 
grow high quality local employment by helping unlock the commercial potential 
from our workforce. Inspire to Learn is just the first of what we plan to be a series 
of similar commercial offers.  

 

Page 45



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

10 
 

6.25 We also explain how our approach to redesigning everything we do based on 
need is already driving out waste and streamlining processes, cutting costs at the 
same time as improving what we do for our customers.  As part of each end-to-
end service review, the role of resources and support teams are carefully 
considered.  

 
6.26 People also shared the view that the council should plan any changes 

thoroughly, such as office moves and managing assets, and not be dependent on 
digital technology. 

 
6.27 In response we are reviewing the use of all our physical assets, selling or 

otherwise disposing of those that are no longer essential. As set out in the plan, 
the council will increasingly move to a more mobile and flexible approach, 
enabling staff to work on the move, be less reliant on costly and remote office 
bases and be more accessible to our customers. This shift is being made in 
tandem with the Broadband through the Connecting Shropshire programme, 
complementing the commercial rollout . Digital technology is a crucial part of this 
shift but clearly isn’t a panacea for every customer contact.  

 
Further Comments 

6.28 Further comments and suggestions included increasing council tax to minimise 
the impact of budget reductions, cutting non-essential services, looking at more 
opportunities to generate income, being certain about what the council wants to 
achieve with redesign work and continuing to assess this, and making sure we 
focus on needs rather than cost. 
 

6.29 Those who responded also asked us to be open about reductions, said 
managers should be held to account on making savings, and suggested reducing 
salaries for senior staff in addition to looking at the possibility of reducing the 
number of councillors representing the county and councillors’ expenses. 

 
6.30 Our responses to these comments are given below. 

 
6.31 We have built our budget strategy around not increasing council tax and instead 

redesigning services, because we believe that is the better approach. We believe 
we can redesign services around the customer to reduce costs, rather than 
increase funding and perpetuate any inbuilt inefficiency. To increase Council Tax 
by more than 2% would require us to undertake a potentially costly referendum, 
and by freezing Council Tax we receive Council Tax Freeze Grant to a value 
equivalent to 1%. Therefore, the option of increasing Council Tax by 2% would 
deliver a net benefit of only £1.03m per annum. 

 
6.32 Our plan is not to cut non-essential services, but to focus on our priorities and 

redesign all the services we provide. While we understand the outcomes we are 
aiming to achieve, we are not certain about how services will look until we have 
completed the design work. Our priorities include putting the needs of our 
customers at the centre of everything we do. We will keep the public, users and 
customers informed as we move through the redesign process, consulting where 
necessary, to ensure that we make the right decisions. 

 

Page 46



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

11 
 

6.33 We will be looking at future opportunities to generate income to supplement the 
costs of services, our approach to this is set by Council every year as part of our 
review of Fees and Charges. We believe this is something which will be aided by 
the creation of our wholly owned company ip&e. 

 
6.34 Our Senior Management team and Cabinet are working closely to deliver the 

Council’s budget, with members and senior staff being held accountable for the 
delivery of savings proposals against their savings targets over the next three 
years. In relation to allowances, all Councillors approved a 5% reduction in their 
allowances in 2011/12 which remains in place. All Managers and staff were 
subject to a 5.4% reduction in their pay as part of changes to terms and 
conditions in 2011/12 and 2012/13. In addition, Senior Management pay has 
been separately reviewed and the Head of Paid Service remuneration 
benchmarked against other local authorities. The data available has shown that 
Shropshire is the lowest paying authority for senior pay across England for 
Unitary and County Councils and is on a par with or below District Council levels. 

 
6.35 In addition to the budget consultation completed to date, more specific 

consultation will be undertaken, as necessary, on detailed proposals as these are 
formulated and the impacts on future service delivery becomes apparent. The 
process of redesign is fundamental to the proposals being put forward by the 
Council, and as such it is not possible to identify details of future service 
provision until the redesign work has been completed, the implications 
understood and the process of implementation is ready to be commenced. 

 
 

Page 47



Council 27 February 2014: Business Plan and Financial Strategy 

12 
 

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Financial Strategy 2013/14 to 2022/23 – Cabinet 13 November 2013 

Financial Strategy and Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Cabinet 15 January 
2014 

Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves – Cabinet 15 January 2014 
(attached at Appendix 2) 

Revenue Monitoring Report Period 9 – Cabinet 19 February 2014 

Capital Monitoring Report – Cabinet 19 February 2014 

Treasury Strategy 2014/15 – Cabinet 19 February 2014 

Estimated Collection Fund Outturn 2013/14 – Cabinet 19 February 2014 

Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014-2017 – Cabinet 19 February 2014  

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
Keith Barrow – Leader 

Local Member 
All 

Appendices 

Appendix 1  Shropshire Council Draft Business Plan and Financial Strategy  

Appendix 2  Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves 

Appendix 3  Pay and Reward Policy for all Council staff for 2014/15 

 

Page 48



Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 - 2017

Our customers are at the centre of everything we do

P
age 49



Contents

Foreword from Keith Barrow – Leader of Shropshire Council 1

The context we �nd ourselves in 2

Council Priorities 4

Listening to our customers 5

The Context for our key services 8

Adult Social Care Services – Operational Challenges 9

Children and Young Peoples Services – Operational Challenges 12

Public Health – Operational Challenges 15

Resources and Support – Operational Challenges 17

Commissioning – Operational Challenges 19

How we will ensure we make best use of our resources 23

Our approach 24

Strategic Financial Overview – Revenue 42

Strategic Financial Overview – Capital 51

Annex 1 – Resource Projections 2014-17 62

Annex 2 – Details of Growth included in Expenditure Projections 2014-17 63

Annex 3 – Financial Summary 2014/15 to 2016/17- Expenditure Projections 71

Annex 4 – Capital Programme 73

Annex 5 – New Delivery proposals to be developed 78

Annex 6 – Highways Programme 79

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017

P
age 50



Foreword from Keith Barrow – 
Leader of Shropshire Council 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 1

We have all become accustomed to seeing doom-laden

news about how Councils across the UK are facing up to

tough times. It would be very easy for me to talk about

how hard things are for Shropshire Council. Instead, as

Leader, I’m here to tell you about the true picture for our

county and how we propose to tackle the challenges we

face responsibly, creatively and with a passion for what

matters most.

This is our Business Plan and Financial Strategy for the next three years.
It’s a complete  break from the past. This is a place where you can (nd
information  about how this council  is increasingly  thinking and
working as a business, redesigning everything it does, putting
customer needs (rst and foremost.

Instead of arti(cial set piece debates in the council chamber, we want
to take this plan forward by involving people every step of the way as
change happens. This means sharing options with you, talking about
the choices we will face and involving you when we make decisions.

We set out our priorities here - to help grow and protect our beautiful
county and those who live, work and visit it. To deliver these priorities,
Cabinet, Scrutiny Members and Council Managers are working as a team
to invest scarce resources where they can make the biggest impact.

Instead of a roll forward budget, this year we’ve been business planning
on a zero based approach, making no assumptions about status quo.
That’s how I want us to move forward in future, carefully choosing
where to invest to make the most impact for people and priorities with
greatest need. I didn’t become a Councillor to make cuts. Like all the
talented people who work for and support Shropshire Council, I sought
election so I can make a di0erence, helping Shropshire become a
thriving, successful county, full of people who can make the most of
their lives. I believe this means completely changing the way every part
of the Council works, reinventing everything we do so it’s genuinely
built around the needs of our customers, rather than getting bogged
down in bureaucracy and processes.

We are already working in new ways - using ip&e, our wholly owned
company to trade some of our great services across the public sector,
creating public pro(t that then gets ploughed back into the county to
invest in what we do for our residents. So, instead of ‘externalising’ or
‘outsourcing’ services, through ip&e we believe we can keep cash in
Shropshire and, by winning business outside the county, help protect
jobs here. 

I am incredibly proud to be from Shropshire and I know the changes
we’ve made in this plan give us all good reason to be, so take a look at
our plan, get involved in shaping our county and play your part in
making it a place where we can all continue  to be proud, now and for
generations to come.

P
age 51



The context we �nd ourselves in

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 2

Shropshire is on the cusp of building a profoundly
different relationship between public services and
customers. The council is responding to a once in a
lifetime, irreversible shift in funding by redesigning
everything we do resulting in better and more
responsive services at a lower cost.

The context for this is simple. Demographic and (nancial pressures
mean that continuing to deliver the status quo is impossible, even if
we wanted to. Conventional approaches to squeezing more and more
e5ciency out of the same old systems can’t keep pace with the
increasing costs of an aging population, let alone factoring in the
impact of increasing demand for complex, high cost care. 

At the same time, we believe Shropshire’s economy has massive
potential to be unleashed. We’re already a hub for creative businesses
and people with bright ideas. By seizing opportunities for investment,
building world-class education for our young people, and for learning
throughout life, we want to kick-start a new entrepreneurial revolution
in the County, creating many wide ranging employment opportunities
in the short and longer term, retaining talent and skills in Shropshire.

Our approach puts the role of elected members as community leaders
at the heart of this, representing customers, seeking out and
championing their voice, making sure their perspective is central to
everything we do. We’ll give people as much say as possible in making
choices about their future, focusing on prevention and thus reducing
later, higher cost activity whenever we can. 

The council is changing how it works to become a commissioner
rather than direct deliverer of services. Our draft commissioning
strategy sets out how this will focus on delivering outcomes for 
our customers, based on need. This means future relationships 
with customers and communities will be to engage, listen and 
understand need, and then commission from organisations that 
will deliver outcomes.

Our approach to commissioning starts with how we support our
children to get the best possible outcomes from education, and help
all our young people go to great schools and to get the most from
this experience.  As schools become more self-governing, our role will
be to champion the interests of children as they grow up, helping
them to realise their full potential, giving them the best range of
options for the rest of their lives. Strong, high quality Further and
Higher Education is crucial part of this too. In particular we want to
strengthen Higher Education in the county through a new university,
complementing and working alongside colleges already in
Shropshire, anticipating and helping to shape the county’s economy.
This, in turn will develop a skilled workforce, higher wage levels and
increasing prosperity for Shropshire.

Our county is documented as being one of the safest places to live in
the country and we will work hard to ensure this continues to be the
case. Due to a variety of elements including better public awareness of
safeguarding and child protection issues, increasing numbers of
Shropshire children are being referred to social services. Costs of
placements in the 13-17 age group are also rising and numbers of

P
age 52



young people with learning di5culties becoming young adults will
almost double in the next three years. Like any good parent though,
we want all our looked after children to bene(t most from the
opportunities on o0er – educational, economic and in terms of a
supportive family environment.

Shropshire bene(ts massively from its active, experienced and engaged
older population. We have more older people than average in England
(20.7% of the population are aged 65 and over, compared with 16.4% for
England and Wales, Census 2011), and the over 65s are growing faster
than elsewhere (23.8% compared with 10.9% for England and Wales,
Census 2001-2011)

Our voluntary sector is one of the strongest and most capable in the
UK, partly due to this injection and availability of expertise. It’s
changing though with fewer long term volunteers and more people
looking to the sector to provide work experience to help them get into
permanent work. Recognising this, we’re working with communities,
and with the voluntary sector to develop their capacity to do as much
as possible for themselves.

The Eip side to this is that 1 in 20 adults receive some form of care.
That’s 16,000 people in the county, most of whom have health
conditions and associated needs. Supporting  these are over 34,000
informal, unpaid carers, just 1 in 10 of whom are, in turn, supported by
the Council. We have increasing numbers of people with dementia and
other conditions needing complex care, particularly in the over 85s.

Responding to these pressures, our approach  is to give people –
service users and carers alike, as much say as possible  in purchasing
the support they require. We want to promote self-support and
independence  wherever possible to reduce reliance on funded
services. Our overall intention  is to help people  not to use adult social

care services at all, or if eligible, to meet their needs as quickly and
e5ciently  as possible.

To help be as e5cient as possible we’re fundamentally rethinking how
all our support functions (like HR, Finance, IT) work. In partnership with
ip&e, we are designing  the right infrastructure for the council’s future
needs.  We want this to be the best so we can sell to other
organisations within and beyond Shropshire, bringing cash back into
the county. We are zero based budgeting, starting with no
assumptions about what we currently do, building investment on the
basis of outcomes. We are accelerating  the move of services online
with a digital (rst approach  giving easier and cheaper access to
information and services.

Shropshire has over 3170 miles of highways and one of its biggest
challenges  is ensuring their maintenance  to keep communities
connected. The highways asset includes bridges, streetlights, roads,
culverts, retaining walls and drainage systems worth £4 Billion and
therefore needs a cost e0ective strategy to maintain.

We want to sell or otherwise dispose of all our legacy of ine5cient
buildings. Instead of expensive buildings that are no longer (t for
purpose or needed by the new council, like Shirehall, we will prioritise
the buildings we and our customers need and will use in an
increasingly online future.

We want to use ip&e to create new businesses to meet future needs,
where necessary through partnership, always retaining a controlling
interest and keeping any pro(t within Shropshire to reinvest in public
services. Early signs are this is an exciting  o0er for many other councils
and commissioning  organisations looking for partner organisations
that share their public service values.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 3

P
age 53



Council Priorities
As a council, we are focusing  on delivering  better outcomes  for our customers. Everything we undertake should
work towards ful(lling one or more of these outcomes, with an emphasis on ensuring that our priorities are delivered.
This is summarised in Figure 1 below, and forms the backdrop for delivering the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan 
over the next three years.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 4

Our mission:

As soon as possible, everything is as 

e�cient as it can be, focusing on 

the customer, prevention 

and partnership.

Our
customers

at the centre
of everything

we do

Protectin
g

Strive to keep peop
le fro

m
 h

arm
(in a way that doesn’t com

p
ro

m
ise

 th
e

ir ch
o

ice
s)

G
ro

w
in

g

H
e

lp
 t

o
 m

an
ag

e 
ou

r e
nvi

ro
nm

ent

(i
n

 a
 w

ay
 t

h
at

 h
el

p
s 

Sh
ro

psh
ire

 to
 th

riv
e)

Helping

H
elp people, communities and businesses to help th
em

se
lv

es (in a way that helps them to make the most o
f t

he 

choices available to them)

PRIO
R

IT
Y

PRIORITY

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

OUTCOMES

O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

O
UTCOMES

OUTCOM
ES

O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

Yo
u

r 
li

fe

Fe
el v

al
ue

d
 a

s 
an

 in
d

iv
id

u
al

 a
n

d
 t

o
 li

ve
 m

y 
lif

e
,  

w
ith

 m
y 

ch
o

ic
es

 r
es

p
e

ct
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
it

h
 a

s 
fe

w
 

co
m

p
ro

m
is

es
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

Your environment

Live in an attractive, vibrant and safe environment,  in a place that is right for me.

Your h
ealth

Li
ve

 a
 lo

ng, e
njo

yable and healthy life Your m
oney 

Feel $nancially secure and to believe in a 

positive future for myself and m
y fam

ily

Y
o

u
r co

u
n

cil
Fe

e
l co

n
$

d
e

n
t th

at th
e

 co
u

n
cil is d

oing  the right 

th
in

g
 w

ith
 m

y m
o

n
e

y an
d

 th
at m

y n
eeds are at the

 ce
n

tr e
 o

f a
n

y d
e

cisio
n

s taken
 ab

out m
y life.

P
age 54



Listening to our customers 
Our priority is to design our new services so that they focus on customer needs. 
To do this we have to understand our customers better than ever before. 

We are working with communities  to explore di0erent ways of designing and delivering services. Through our
Local Commissioning approach we’ve recognised that we need to redesign everything we do as an organisation
in ways that take full account of what’s already happening in each community, and on understanding customer
needs as the basis for what we, and others do instead. So, rather than a ‘we know best’ one-size (ts all approach,
everything we redesign from now on starts with, and builds on this insight.

Through this approach, we work with a range of local people and partner organisations, using statistical data,
(nancial information and crucially people’s real-life stories about life and their experiences. This is then used as a
resource by local Shropshire Councillors, other key local leaders and agencies to redesign what happens to make
more sense from the perspective of local people, stripping out waste, duplication and cost. Any commissioning
that results from redesign will aim to keep money and jobs as local as possible, recognising the importance of this
to the economy and health of our communities.

A critical part of our new approach will then be evaluating the impact of commissioned services on the problems
they are designed to address. Reviewing these and seeking to constantly improve and reinvent what we
commission will be key to our ongoing approach.

In Church Stretton for instance, this has already resulted in redesign of how older people  are supported  to live
independent lives, for as long as possible, and in getting long term unemployed people back to work. In both
cases, taking a whole community  perspective has meant understanding  and maximising the resource of
voluntary and community based organisations, and tapping into the immense experience from local people
themselves. The end result will be substantial savings to the council and other public service organisations, at the
same time as improved  outcomes  for local people.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 5

P
age 55



Redesigning everything we do: Local Commissioning case study 

Discovery Centre 

The Shropshire Hills Discovery Centre has been run by Shropshire Council since 2001 as a visitor attraction,
information centre, library and gateway to the outstanding landscape and local area. It is currently operating at
a signi(cant loss and costing the Council over £120,000 pa to run. 

As part of our local commissioning approach, local elected members, working with the community have led
development of a radical new approach, keeping what’s best about the centre, reinforcing its role in tourism
and turning it into a genuine asset for local businesses. 

The new plans see it run as a training centre for food-related employment, a leisure resource for local people
and a visitor attraction that makes links between the high quality landscape and great locally sourced food,
ploughing even more visitor spend back into the economy. 

By transferring ownership to the South Shropshire Housing Association, the centre will be run by their partner
– Grow, Cook, Learn. They will o0er training in food related industries, creating and supporting local jobs. The
library will move to the Craven Arms Community Centre and be managed by the South Shropshire Furniture
Scheme as the (rst community library in Shropshire. The Customer Service Point will move to the Gateway
centre and continue to be managed by Shropshire Council. 

These changes will save over £100,000 pa at the outset and, by generating more income to the local economy,
make a much bigger impact in the long-run. 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 6

P
age 56



As well as intensive re-design work with speci(c communities, e0ective two way communication is key to building
knowledge and understanding. That’s why we have put in place a range of ways to talk to our customers and to
listen to what they have to say:

People can email us, call, write or visit one of our customer service points. They can visit our website 
and complete an online report form or join in an online conversation

They can use one of our many social media channels  – to ask a question on Twitter or Facebook , 
or comment on one of our You Tube channels

We hold a wide range of public meetings at which people can (nd out more and have their say.
This year we’re looking  at how we can get more value from these, building on local joint committees

People can call or email their local councillor or the appropriate Cabinet member, to ask a question
or pass on a comment.

The latest news from the Council can be found on our online Newsroom, Twitter feed and in local
and regional media.

As one example of public consultation, Join the Conversation 2013 took place during the week of 16 September,
with four public meetings held in Oswestry, Craven Arms, Bridgnorth and Shrewsbury. The events were open to the
public, and local people were given the chance to submit questions in advance with emphasis being placed on the
(nancial challenge faced by the public sector. Senior representatives from West Mercia Police, the Clinical
Commissioning Group and Shropshire Fire and Rescue could be quizzed, in addition to Council Leader Keith Barrow
and Chief Executive Clive Wright.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 7

P
age 57



The Context for our key services 

To strengthen  how we operate to be able to meet the challenges  ahead of us we are organised into 5 main areas, all
delivering against our overall priority – “As soon as possible, everything  is e5cient  as it can be, focusing on
the customer, prevention and partnership”:

Adult Social Care Services
Children and Young Peoples Services
Public Health
Resources and Support
Commissioning

Crucially these are not isolated silos and each needs to work in new and di0erent ways to make the biggest possible
impact on the overall challenges of redesigning everything we do.

Adult Social Care Services – here we have a powerful role to play in recognising  not only the cost of an aging population,
but also its potential to make a positive impact on other service areas, drawing on the rich experience and commitment
of older people across Shropshire. Whether in rethinking care services, building  a new university o0er or reinventing  how
library services are delivered, older people will have a crucial role to play.

Children and Young People’s Services – will need to play an increasingly  inEuential  role as the advocate  for young
people across all service areas – to ensure all young people  are kept safe from harm, achieve well and make an e0ective
transition into adulthood. As the average age of Shropshire’s residents increases, it puts more emphasis than ever on
ensuring a powerful voice for young people.

Public Health – by merging public health and Shropshire Council, we are exploring the full potential for all council
services to be as health promoting as possible. This means making the most of our new health expertise over areas as
diverse as planning  control, social work and school meals. We need to more fully recognise the whole-life cost of ill health
to people and families, and to the council, and are committed  to taking a long term view on changing behaviours, on
designing healthy communities and reinforcing healthy choices.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 8

P
age 58



Resource and Support – needs to exert its inEuence in order to challenge, and frequently lead change. It will do this 
by being focused on (nding solutions, keeping aware of best in class approaches, and by suggesting new ways of 
working – whether by using new technology, better evidence on need, sound governance and management or through
more creative use of our key assets – people  and buildings.

Commissioning – will lead creative redesign across all our teams, blending  capacity from across the council to best meet
customer demand. It will help bring the customer and community perspective to bear on challenges facing high-cost,
high-demand areas of adult social care and children’s services.

Key operational  and (nancial challenges  are now set out for each service area:

Adult Social Care Services – Operational Challenges

Is focused on providing support for vulnerable people  aged 18 and over, older people and adults with disabilities. In order to
meet their needs at a local level, we need to consider both the increasing demand on services from an ageing population, the
increasing numbers of younger adults with complex disabilities and the expectation  of service users and their families.

We are choosing  to meet these inexorable pressures through  a fundamental  re-think about what we do. Instead of delivering
more and more e5ciencies by incrementally changing what we currently deliver, we need to talk with our customers about an
entirely new approach that’s (nancially sustainable but which actually meets people’s needs better by understanding them
better. We must be willing to innovate, to manage  risks di0erently  and to share new ideas.

This will inevitably involve changing  people’s expectations  about how services are delivered, but will absolutely not mean
lowering standards around quality of life. There are further opportunities for the reduction of cost of provision and internal
e5ciencies, but the focus must now be on demand-led transformation  and the real challenge  is changing  the relationship
between citizens and the Council. This will need to fully consider how working with other key partners – particularly the
voluntary sector, health providers and suppliers can help.

We will focus on individual’s needs with an eye to their family and to their community as resources which can support  these,
minimising reliance on the council and other public agencies as the norm. The role that paid and, in particular unpaid carers
play will be crucial.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 9

P
age 59



Much demand  for public services is driven by behaviour, often citizens behave the way they do because the public service
behaves the way it does. To manage down the costs of local services with the support of the public, we need to engage with
citizens and develop a relationship of trust so that:

People who can are able to commission  their own care within the resources available to them 
The council’s role becomes one of facilitator and enabler, rather than a provider of services 
People can plan their care and take control over decisions with our support
The most vulnerable adults are safeguarded  and our high quality service is maintained

Redesigning everything we do – Adult Social Care case study

Over the past 12 months we’ve completely redesigned the role social work practice teams play in their 
communities. This centres on reframing the relationship with people who need support. Instead of starting by
focusing on everything that person needs, and in isolation from what’s going on in their community, we begin 
by looking at what strengths they could build on – whether personal or within their local area. We’re developing
better relationships with local Voluntary and Community organisations and the role they can play in 
meeting needs. 

Through this approach we believe we can dramatically reduce spend on packages of care as well as reducing 
future demand for services and commissioned interventions. The People to People pilot work has shown 
potential savings of £1.9 million over the next 3 years but by making this the way we do things across the 
county, redesigning what we think of as social care, we are con(dent we can save £10m over the same period. 

At the same time we’ve identi(ed and stripped out waste from our administrative systems and processes. This 
has included work on old debts, contract arrangements, (nancial processes and audit functions. By working with
frontline sta0, we’ve helped redesign operational processes and paperwork, streamlining Community Care
Assessments and funding agreements. Together we project savings of over £1.2m per year from new ways 
of working which also make things better for customers and frontline sta0. 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 10

P
age 60



Adult Social Care Services - Financial Outlook

Shropshire faces signi(cant demographic challenges both in relation to the increasing number of elderly people as well as
those elderly people  aged over 85. Equally there are growing numbers of people who have life limiting conditions either as a
result of accident  or disability that require high levels of support  and therefore associated  funding.  In addition to the
increase in overall numbers, the type of support requested is often disproportionately expensive and therefore work will be
needed to ensure that the most cost e0ective support  is provided  whilst o0ering as much choice  as possible.

We also need to factor in the impact of emerging national policies. The Care Bill currently under development will put 
care on a more statutory footing as well as introducing deferred payment arrangements and a national minimum 
eligibility for support.

The Commission on Funding of Care and Support, headed by Andrew Dilnot, set out its blueprint for reforming social care
funding in July 2013. Its proposals, which would add £1.7bn to the costs of care in England, include:

Capping lifetime individual contributions  to care at £85,000. This would cover care at home and in residential care,
but not board and lodging costs within care homes.

Providing free care for those who develop needs before they reach 40.

Raising the means-test threshold for savings below which people become eligible for state-funded residential 
care from £23,250 to £100,000.

Standardising contributions  to board and lodging costs in residential care at between £7,000 and £10,000 a year.

Introducing a national system of assessment and eligibility, initially set at substantial need.

Retaining disability bene(ts paid to people with care needs, but rebranding attendance allowance

While the Government has welcomed the proposals there is concern  about the costs of implementation. However, a full
government response will not be made until a White Paper in spring 2014.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 11

P
age 61



Children and Young Peoples Services – Operational Challenges

Children and Young People Services is responsible  for ensuring that all children and young people  in the County are kept
safe from harm and achieve their full potential, becoming happy, healthy adults. It champions the interests of children
through a range of universal, targeted and specialist services, working with a range of organisations including early years
settings, schools and colleges, the police, health and voluntary sector.  

Key enduring responsibilities include:

the Child Protection System, including statutory assessment processes and the duty to remove children from their
family, including through the legal process. 

ensuring the adequacy and su5ciency of suitable placements for children – including fostering, adoption and
residential homes, provide for the needs of disabled children, provide  Early Help arrangements, ensure an
Independent review service is in place and

ensuring that the educational  needs of looked after children are met. 

the statutory functions of schools admissions and placement planning, ensuring good governance for maintained
schools and access to full time education,

assessment and placement of children with Special Educational Needs, enforcement of attendance and intervention
in schools judged to be failing.

Education improvement through challenge and support to early years settings, schools and colleges, some of which
is through a traded service, including support to governing bodies.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 12

P
age 62



Redesigning everything we do: Children and Young People case studies

Inspire to Learn
Shropshire Council currently delivers a range of traded services to schools – HR, Payroll, School Meals and
specialist advice and support to teachers. Schools are free to purchase this from the council, or from other
providers based outside of Shropshire. The council’s wholly owned company, ip&e recognized the potential to
deliver these services in an very di0erent ways and put together an ‘Inspire to Learn’ proposal. This starts from the
perspective that everything that happens in a school should be designed to do all it can to help children and
young people reach their full potential. With this in mind, the quality and marketing of healthy school meals and
providing the right support to head teachers and school managers to develop their business are absolutely
crucial and central to creating a learning environment. Having received cabinet approval, ip&e Trading is now
developing a robust business model, working directly with school heads and business managers to design the
best possible service for the future, able to trade in Shropshire and beyond.

Whole family support
Just as we’ve fundamentally redesigned the way adult social care works, in children and young people’s services,
we’ve looked at how multi-disciplinary teams at local level work with the whole family to do everything possible
early on to prevent the need for more costly later action, often inevitably with a less positive outcome from the
family perspective. The aim is to prevent escalation to costly specialist services and provide support to help
families reduce their need for social care. Projected savings are half a million pounds in year one and 
£700,000 in year two. 

This redesign sits alongside re-examination of social care systems and structures, aiming to reduce the number of
key social workers that a child or family will need to have over the course of several years. These changes will
increase individual social workers ability to support a family, improving the quality of their support and cutting
out unproductive and wasteful handovers and duplication. Anticipated savings her are once again in the region
of between a quarter and half a million pounds a year. 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 13

P
age 63



Children and Young Peoples Services - Financial Outlook

There will be a step change reduction in education (nance over the next few years for a number of reasons:

1) The overall reduction in funding to local authorities for the provision of services through the government’s
(scal policies.

2) Shropshire has 12 Academy schools (January 2014) - 9 secondary , 2 primary and one special.  Numbers of
academies are likely to increase in the next few years.  As the number of academy based pupils increases, the
level of Education Services Grant for Shropshire will fall as resources are transferred to the Education Funding
Agency who are responsible for funding state schools outside the maintained sector.  This will, in turn, reduce
funding for education support services.  Work has been done to model the likely reductions in the Education
Services Grant and consequential impact on education support services in the next few years.  This is being
used to develop options for the future commissioning and delivery of education support services.

3) The number of children of statutory school age in Shropshire will continue to fall until at least 2019.  
This reduction will result in a loss in Dedicated Schools Grants of nearly £7m over the period based on 
current projected pupil numbers.  While housing developments will inEuence the demand for school 
provision in some speci(c parts of Shropshire, they are unlikely to result in a signi(cant increase in aggregate
pupil numbers across the whole county and instead are likely to result in a redistribution of the existing 
pupil population.

The number of children with additional learning needs, and with disabilities, is expected to rise.  The number of children in 
the looked after system saw an upturn in 2012/13 partly due to an increase in referrals to children’s social care in the light of
recent national cases.  These areas are the focus of signi(cant service re-design in order to ensure appropriate early
intervention, to manage costs and provide more e0ectively for these vulnerable children.  

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 14

P
age 64



Public Health – Operational Challenges

Public health is all about promoting and protecting people’s health and well-being, preventing ill health and prolonging 
life through whatever means possible. Merging Shropshire Council  with Public Health is creating opportunities to improve
health outcomes by using evidence to improve decision making across the Council’s work.

There are three main areas of focus for the team within Shropshire Council, working across the organisation to maximise 
their impact:

Health improvement – promoting the health and wellbeing of the population by enabling individuals, families 
and communities to lead healthier lifestyles
Health protection – protecting the population from infection or environmental hazards, including immunisation
and screening
Improving service – through surveillance and monitoring of speci(c diseases and risk factors, audit and evaluation 

Compared with England averages, Shropshire is a healthy place to live with higher life expectancy  rates for men and women.
However we have di0erences in life expectancy from inequalities, with men from the most aPuent communities living six
years longer than the poorest and women  four years longer.

Preventable  causes of premature  death and serious long term illness such as obesity, smoking, substance misuse and lack of
physical activity are major factors in heart disease, stroke and cancer. With the ageing pro(le of the local population,
investment  is needed  to prevent or delay the onset of long term conditions  such as diabetes, cardiovascular disease and
chronic obstructive airways disease.. Key challenges for Shropshire to address include the rising levels of obesity amongst
children and adults, the low levels of physical activity and rural health inequalities.

As everything the Council  does is redesigned, there’s an opportunity  to put greater emphasis on promoting healthy lifestyles
and preventing of ill health, thereby reducing future demand for expensive health and social care. Through complete service
redesign, the public health department will work across all the Council’s existing services to maximise their impact on health
outcomes, including the following programmes which Shropshire Council now has responsibility for commissioning:

Children’s Public Health aged 5-19 years (School Health) 
Physical Activity
Obesity Prevention  & Nutrition

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 15

P
age 65



Alcohol and Drug Misuse prevention and treatment
Tobacco Control
Public Mental Health
Dental Public Health
NHS Health Checks
Infection Prevention  & Control
Sexual Health
Health at Work
Accidental Injury Prevention
Reducing Seasonal Mortality
Reducing and preventing birth defects

Redesigning everything we do: Public Health case study

Although funding for public health services is largely protected through ring fencing, we are looking at how 
we can redesign some of the behaviour change activity in Shropshire so it can be even more e0ective and,
potentially generate income from work outside the county and with local health providers. Through the 
Help 2 Change approach being developed with ip&e we are exploring opportunities to integrate more of what 
we do to help people stop smoking, manage a healthy lifestyle and weight. 

Public Health - Financial Outlook

Shropshire has one of the lowest grants for public health in England (£29 per head of population compared to the national
average of £49 and Westminster Council’s allocation of £132 per head.) The Department of Health has advised that it will be
reviewing the funding formula during 2014.  Shropshire Council is lobbying Central Government, along with other rural local
authorities, to show how this unfairly and severely limits our ability to tackle health inequalities and to commission the right
services for Shropshire people.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 16

P
age 66



To reach the national average per capita allocation Shropshire would require double its £8.9 million allocation. Whilst the
Department of Health has planned a further 10% increase  in the grant for 2014/15, it has yet to demonstrate how a ‘Fair
Shares’ allocation will be achieved and over what timescale.

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 also places a new responsibility on Local Authorities to commission  health services for
school age children from April 2013. A consultation  is under way to enable a service redesign to come into e0ect from
September 2014. From April 2016 the Local Authority will have responsibility for commissioning  Health Visiting Services for
Shropshire. This responsibility  currently rests with NHS England. It will be necessary for the Local Authority to work closely
with NHS England to enable a smooth transition of commissioning  responsibility and to enable service redesign appropriate
to the needs of our population.

Resources and Support – Operational Challenges

The Resources and Support  team helps de(ne the context in which Shropshire Council  as a commissioning organisation
needs to function. Through excellent (nancial, legal, strategic and organisational advice, guidance and where necessary,
controls, the Directorate enables the council to deliver outcomes  for its customers in the most cost-e0ective ways possible.

In partnership with ip&e, the council’s preferred innovation partner, the directorate is designing  the infrastructure for the
future needs of Shropshire Council and other commissioners looking to work in radically di0erent ways. This will enable swift
take up of the best systems and most e5cient and well-designed business processes. It means anticipating future demand,
working with the council and other customers to help understand and take advantage of what’s on o0er.

Although  always working in a supportive way, the Directorate will therefore need to challenge and frequently lead change. 
It will always do this by being focused on (nding solutions, by keeping aware of best in class approaches and by suggesting
new ways of working.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 17

P
age 67



Rather than outsource, Shropshire Council will use its inEuence, through ip&e, to create new business capacity designed from
scratch to meet future needs. Where necessary it will do this through partnership with other organisations, always retaining a
majority controlling interest. These relationships will blend the council’s expertise with insight and capacity from others.
Resources and Support will be at the heart of this new approach to delivering excellent public services.

Redesigning everything we do: Resources and Support case studies 

ThreeSixty Communications

The (rst business unit to be created in ip&e Limited isThreeSixty Communications. Designed to deliver a 
compete communications, marketing and PR service this team provides high quality support to Shropshire 
Council and other clients in the housing, criminal justice and other public service organisations. The team
exempli(es the approach envisaged for ip&e which seeks to anticipate, understand and then meet demand in 
the public sector, designing solutions to meet that demand. By trading in Shropshire and beyond the team is
bringing pro(t back into the county to be reinvested. The team approach is to work with customers to fully
appreciate their expectations and then bring its skills to bear through campaigns as well as more reactive
approaches. As ip&e grows, some of the additional areas of anticipated growth – particularly business design 
and public health behavior change have strong synergies with ThreeSixty’s area of business. 

Programme Management/Business Design

With over 100 change projects running across the council and more in the pipeline, e0ective governance and
programme management is essential – to keep projects on track, ensure key legal, (nancial and HR issues are
addressed and make sure that all possible bene(ts are extracted for customers from everything that’s under 
review. The Programme Management O5ce and Business Design teams within Resources and Support are the 
hub around which this coordination and leadership takes place. With the role of this team increasing over the 
next year, additional secondees are being bought together to ensure change is subject to e0ective external
challenge, and is supported by the right capacity at the frontline. 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 18

P
age 68



Resources and Support – Financial Outlook

The Resources and Support Team helps to manage the Council’s overall resources and is at the centre of producing 
estimates of Council resources from Council Tax, Local Business Rates and Central Government  Funding. The current austerity
measures that have driven reduced funding  across the public sector from CSR 2010, through to the spending round update
in June 2013, have all been built into the Council’s (nancial projections over the medium term. Over the longer term it is
unlikely that resources will grow in local government, and the Resources and Support Team will need to ensure that the
Council continues to deliver a legal and sustainable budget making key strategic decisions on behalf of the wider council 
and through the support to redesign of services.

Commissioning – Operational Challenges

The Commissioning  Directorate is at the heart of, and will frequently drive the fundamental redesign of all council activity. 
By working together it will redesign and reinvent how we deliver services at pace based on evidence, ensuring that what is
commissioned best meets customer needs by being as e5cient  and e0ective as possible, focusing more on prevention and
less on reactive activity.

The Commissioning  Directorate covers a broad range of services, some of which are commissioned and other areas remain
delivered within the council. As with all other council services, these will all be subject to reinvention over this business plan
period, most within the next twelve months.

Speci(c commissioned areas include Waste Collection and household  recycling services, Leisure facilities (excluding joint use),
Highways and Maintenance and Housing Support. Those that are currently directly delivered are both universal and targeted
and include Libraries, Public Protection, Development Management and Planning Policy, Housing Services, Outdoor
Recreation, Public Transport, Arts Development, Positive Activities, Community Action, Sports Development, Business Growth
including  Business Support, Environmental Services, Theatre Services and the Visitor Economy (museums, tourism and
Shropshire Archives).

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 19

P
age 69



These reEect a very signi(cant part of the council’s physical presence within Shropshire’s communities. In rethinking and
reshaping how these are delivered in future, the council  will always focus on what local assets and capacity exists, on what
needs are identi(ed  locally and on the potential  to achieve the same, or better outcomes for customers by using these
assets, and capacity within the community and across other organisations more intelligently. A major challenge for Public
Protection will be to focus more on the identi(cation and management of risk to people’s health, safety and wellbeing  at the
same time as supporting economic growth, helping businesses grow and employ more local people.

The Local Commissioning  pilot has continued  to be rolled out since its inception  in February 2013 in Church Stretton, led by
local members alongside our partners in the public, private and voluntary sector . Other areas have also started the approach
including Oswestry, Wem, Shrewsbury (in the ward of Monkmoor) and Craven Arms. As with the work in Church Stretton,
there is strong focus on working collectively  to help redesign services based on demand  in a locality that will be better, faster
and cheaper for the customer, by working together, with a focus on prevention.

An example of the potential results from this work is that within Church Stretton, partners are now recommending an entirely
new approach to jointly commissioned preventative services. The prototype work there found signi(cant duplication and
gaps in prevention by the four main teams (adult social care, housing, Clinical Commissioning Group and public health).
Commissioning of preventative activity is siloed and the impact on other parts of the economy hasn’t been su5ciently
considered. Because of this, some preventative activity happens too late, and the evidence points to potential improvements
by working together, using a proportionate response and giving people support and encouragement to plan for getting
older. This new approach is helping to inform the thinking on a new way of delivering services and will form part of the wider
Better Care Fund Action Plan that will be overseen by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

The Locality Commissioning  approach brings various services together around themes – like aging well and reducing
worklessness, which are then developed  and prototyped  into new and innovative ways of working that drive out 
duplication and ine5ciencies and increase customer value. Once this is understood, services will then be commissioned
out to the Shropshire market place, knowing  that what is needed  can be delivered in a di0erent way and at a signi(cantly
lower cost. Depending on the outcomes of the prototype, the re-commissioned services could be commissioned  at a local,
area or county wide level. The commissioning  and governance of place is also being developed as part of the evolution of
Local Joint Committees with a view that this will be managed and led locally, creating a truly local approach to 
commissioning of services. This evolving approach is taking the learning from the Local Governance Boards in 
Church Stretton and Monkmoor, with a view to expanding this across the county in 2014. 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 20

P
age 70



Local commissioning and the approach adopted around redesign being rolled out in signi(cant  parts of Shropshire Council
where existing services are being redesigned  and reinvented  around outcomes. This forms a signi(cant part of the broader
Business Plans and complements existing activity such as deep dive service redesigns – current examples include  those in
Adult Social Care (Gusto, STEP and People2People), Children’s Services (Family First), Highways (Edge to Edge) and Economic
Development (Project North) and also strategic commissioning – done on a wider scale, such as that recently undertaken 
in Highways  and Leisure.

Redesigning everything we do: Commissioning case study

The Hedge to Hedge initiative is a good example of how looking at service design from the community’s
perspective shows how the way we do things frequently makes little sense and costs much more than it needs
to. Hedge to Hedge is a redesign of reactive highway and street scene services. In many ways it represents
common sense. Rather than forever referring back to base to get jobs done, Hedge to Hedge means crews are
empowered to sort problems out as they see them and has transformed the way work is ordered, relationships
between client and contractor, improved response times and reduced costs. 

The new approach has meant that contract savings have been achieved at the same time as service standards
have improved. Shropshire’s work has been highlighted as best practice by the Highways Agency.

This sits alongside  innovation  in how the council  approaches  maintenance  of key community infrastructure.
Through collaboration with Cheshire West and Chester Council, we are focusing  on proactive rather than reactive
maintenance programmes to share expertise and resources. We also have a strong business relationship with
Ringway, our highways contractor, and together we are exploring  new and innovative approaches  to service delivery.

As these new approaches  are developed the role of Shropshire Council will move quite quickly from service
provider to service speci(er and will mean less people will be employed  directly by Shropshire Council, with
more either moving to ip&e as Shropshire’s key provider of choice, the voluntary and independent sector or other
delivery models such as Town Councils and sta0 mutuals.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 21

P
age 71



Commissioning - Financial Outlook

Over the next 18 months Shropshire Council will increase its mixed economy  approach to commissioning, working with
partners, other local authorities (including Town and Parish Councils), and with the community. Based on evidence from the
early small-scale prototyping  already undertaken, this should  deliver upwards  of 50% savings of existing budgets across
Shropshire Council.

The Council jointly with the Shropshire Business Board put in place a new Economic  Growth Strategy at the end of 2012 to
run till 2016. It has been written from the perspective of the business community and is based on collaboration to unlock
private sector growth. The role of the Council  is very much to make sure the conditions  are in place to facilitate this growth.
The key priorities are accelerating  business growth, infrastructure for growth, stimulating our growth sectors and our skilled
and loyal workforce. The strategy will have detailed delivery plans led by our business leaders on the Board.

It will drive new jobs and higher business growth and lead to an increase in business rates paid, a reduction in bene(ts
claimed and greater vitality in our market towns. These outcomes  will directly bene(t other council services – with a more
sustainable income Eow alongside reduced demand for higher cost safety-net interventions.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 22

P
age 72



How we will ensure we make best 
use of our resources
The jigsaw image below shows, in plain English, how we intend approaching the task of
fundamental redesign, across everything we do so that it delivers our core purpose.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 23

As soon as possible, 
everything is 

as e�cient 
as it 

can be 
focusing on 

the customer, prevention 
and partnership

Stop Waste
Stop everything that we 
don’t need to do or that 
doesn’t make any 
di�erence

Sell Assets we 
Don’t Need 
Sell buildings and land 
that are unproductive 
and use the receipt to 
invest in technology, 
tools and buildings that 
increase productivity and 
save revenue

Zero Based Budgets 
& Business Planning
Build budgets and plans 
around customer needs, 
based on what we need 
to do, rather than cut and 
re-organise what’s left

Outcomes
for Customers
We need to design 
new services that focus 
on the customer, 
reducing demand and 
meeting needs

Renegotiate Contracts
Existing contracts are 
renegotiated to deliver 
the same outcome/ 
output for at 
least 10% less

Trade for Public Pro't
Sell our services and 
products on to new 
customers to make pro%t

A Workforce
that 'ts
Appropriately 
re-size the workforce 
to ensure an e(cient 
customer focussed 
organisation

P
age 73



Our approach
We will redesign everything we do so that it is utterly focused on delivering against this set of
commitments. We are con=dent that through redesign we will be able to deliver the same or
better outcomes in terms of meeting the real needs of Shropshire people, using signi=cantly 
less money.

Our approach to increasing productivity by doing things di0erently and in some cases by doing di0erent things will not 
only mean our business is orientated around the customer but will also bridge the projected funding gap over the next 
three years. Where possible we will use these design principles to deliver redesigned services ahead of (nancial necessity

Signi�cant areas of review over the next 3 years

As we’ve consistently emphasised throughout this plan, absolutely all services need to be fundamentally redesigned during the
next three years. Moreover the majority of changes will happen soon, in the (rst year, recognising the importance of looking
across the organisation in one go seeing and maximising synergies, rather than pulling out discrete areas one at a time, risking
more silos and wastage. Far from being over ambitious, this approach is essential if we are truly to deliver on our core purpose.
It’s crucial to recognise there are no areas of council activity to remain untouched or unchanged over this period.

We will, however, focus on the areas of largest potential impact (rst and recognise these as particularly crucial in redesigning
the council to be (t for its future:

Adults Social Care Services

We will change how we support vulnerable adults – seeking to understand the whole person, their family, and their
lives, helping them to understand and make best possible use of all available resources in the community. Only then
and where absolutely necessary will the council step in to provide what support is needed to keep people as
independent as possible.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 24

P
age 74



This will make much more sense from the perspective of the customer and cut costs by stopping the need for high
cost services in as many cases as possible by doing more to prevent personal situations getting worse, early on.

We will change how we commission care services - both across the county and, particularly locally in our towns and
villages to help develop and grow what’s on o0er there, so that people can get the a0ordable care and other services
they need through personalised budgets giving them choice and control.

We will encourage and enable voluntary and community sector organisations to play their part in o0ering more
a0ordable options for people to get a decent quality of life.

We will invest in the development of 4 new supported living bungalows to enable adults with learning disabilities to
live independently. This will deliver revenue savings through reduced admissions to residential care.

Adult Social Care Services Directorate overall budget

Gross Revenue Gross Controllable Savings Target Proposals Identi(ed
Budget £ Budget £ £ £

Adult Services £98,023,000 £69,858,121 £24,450,342 £24,745,343

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 25

P
age 75



Summary estimate for realising budget reductions: 

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Lee Chapman Renegotiate Review and renegotiate contracts across Adult Services 1,904,072 1,459,586 400,000
Contracts with a view to redesigning or reducing requirements to 

meet lower cost allowances. Review will include all 
major procurement areas.

Lee Chapman Outcomes for Redesign and recommission reablement services to 550,000 0 0
Customers include START service and external provision.

Lee Chapman Outcomes for Redesign the Adult Social Care operating model.  3,020,000 2,600,000 4,000,000
Customers A new model of service that maximises individual 

potential of families and communities, playing a 
di0erent and more rewarding part in support.

Lee Chapman Outcomes for To introduce a modern social care delivery model 727,984 655,186 589,667
Customers building upon the success of the P2P and 

STEP developments

Lee Chapman Outcomes for Recon(gure services across Adult Services including 1,134,347 150,000 0
Customers day service provision, Community Living, Client 

Property and Appointeeships and Sensory Impairment.

Lee Chapman A workforce Appropriately resize the workforce to ensure e5cient 1,200,000 200,000 0
that (ts and customer focussed organisation.  VR proposals 

within Adult Services

Lee Chapman Zero Based Review of service delivery across Adult Services to 1,260,000 1,828,775 2,628,775
Budgets and take account of existing high cost placements and 
Business Planning reduce future demand for such services.

Lee Chapman Zero Based Review of Transport Costs across Adult Services. 436,951 0 0
Budgets and 
Business Planning

Total 10,233,354 6,893,547 7,618,442

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 26

P
age 76



Children and Young People’s Services

Redesign how we support families with children and young people so they quickly get a single point of
contact with us. This will help get them the right expertise to meet their needs.

With public health now fully integrated with the Council this means we can explore how school health,
targeted mental health in schools and Children’s Centres can best be delivered to bene(t the customer.
Bringing all our services that support families together means we can cut out any duplication, focusing on the
whole family in one place, doing more for less.

Wherever possible we want children to live in supportive family homes so we will put much more emphasis on
helping birth families, wherever possible to care for their children. This will reduce the numbers needing to go
into care, particularly those aged over 13.

Where care outside the birth family is essential, we will do more to encourage as short a period of placement
as possible, helping parents prepare for a speedy and successful return.

We will improve the ability of families to purchase services to meet their needs and young people to
successfully prepare for the world of work and adulthood.

We will support children’s social workers so they can focus on productive contact with their customers. 
They will have the right tools to work in the community, cut out unnecessary process and focus on what
makes a di0erence.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 27

New Delivery Proposals – Adult Services

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Lee Chapman Outcomes for Development of Supported Living Services for Adults Included in - -
Customers with Learning Disabilities. Namely the development of existing

4 further Supported Living bungalows at Adderley  programme
Road, Market Drayton; London Road, Shrewsbury  
and two further sites to be identi(ed.

P
age 77



As schools get freedom to choose where they buy their support from, we want to be able to help them get the
best possible deals. We will therefore review how we deliver educational support, exploring options for creative
partnerships that protect the Council’s inEuence, whilst ensuring they can get what they need, supporting
excellent education.

We will re-de(ne and re-position our relationship with schools, placing emphasis on our responsibility to
improve the attainment of children and young people, driving up school standards.

Children and Young Peoples Services Directorate overall budget

Gross Revenue Gross Controllable Savings Target Proposals Identi(ed
Budget £ Budget £ £ £

Children’s Services £236,193,000 £35,964,333 £12,587,517 £12,667,000

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 28

Summary estimate for realising budget reductions: 

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Ann Hartley Renegotiate Review and renegotiate contracts across Children's 0 300,000 0
Contracts Services with a view to redesigning or reducing 

requirements to meet lower cost allowances. 
Review will include all major procurement areas.

Ann Hartley Outcomes for Develop all age disability provision with Adult Social 100,000 200,000 0
Customers Care and develop personalisation agenda. 

P
age 78



Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Ann Hartley Outcomes for West Mercia Adoption Service.  Review Fostering 25,000 50,000 0
Customers arrangements for more challenging young people. 

Ann Hartley Outcomes for Develop Joint Venture with commercial provider. 1,430,000 200,000 0
Customers Review Early Years support, increase trading.

Ann Hartley Outcomes for Analyse back o5ce processes: administration; 150,000 345,000 200,000
Customers use of IT, impact of rurality. 

Ann Hartley Outcomes for Review Supervised Access across Children's 200,000 0 0
Customers Services with a view to meeting revised needs.

Ann Hartley Outcomes for Redesign early support and assist provision.  500,000 700,000 0
Customers

Ann Hartley Outcomes for Expansion of local provision, wider range of provision 0 400,000 0
Customers at a local level for 16/17 year old care leavers

Ann Hartley Outcomes for Redesign Education Improvement Team to carry out 150,000 0 101,000
Customers statutory responsibilities to meet the support and 

challenge requirements of Education.

Ann Hartley A workforce Appropriately re-size the workforce to ensure an 800,000 0 0
that (ts e5cient and customer focussed organisation. 

Voluntary Redundancy proposals within 
Children's Services.

Ann Hartley Zero Based Review current residential provision within 2,266,000 1,370,000 1,589,000
Budgets and Children's Services and increase assessment capacity. 
Business Planning Review existing and future mix of provision.

Ann Hartley Zero Based Review of Transport Costs across Children's Services. 1,591,000 0 0
Budgets and 
Business Planning

Total 7,212,000 3,565,000 1,890,000

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 29

P
age 79



Public Health

Look at how all of the following areas of activity are best commissioned and delivered in the context of the current market
and opportunities for trading outside of Shropshire:

School health

Health visiting

Substance misuse

Smoking cessation

Obesity management

Health checks

Public Health Directorate overall budget

Gross Revenue Gross Controllable Savings Target Proposals Identi(ed
Budget £ Budget £ £ £

Public Health £9,706,000 £237,980 £83,293 £54,727*

*Public Health will work with other service areas to explore how savings can be made by considering how these areas
contribute to public health priorities.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 30

Summary estimate for realising budget reductions: 

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Karen Calder Zero Based Review Public Health spending to meet spending targets 54,727 0 0
Budgets and 
Business Planning

P
age 80



Commissioning

We will reform our services that regulate businesses in the county (including planning and licensing) so they can
best bring their skills and abilities to support (rms to grow, helping create job opportunities and bene(t people’s
health, wellbeing and prosperity.

We will focus on our support for Tourism and the wider sector across the county by reviewing the council’s impact
on tourism, maximising the economic value from our assets to bring as much spend by visitors as possible into the
County. This will look at the best management and ownership arrangements of our tourist and visitor economy sites.

We will enable as much activity for young people as e5ciently as possible starting from the perspective of people
growing up in Shropshire, putting the emphasis on supporting what they need in ways that are as relevant,
commissioned and local as possible.

Across waste collection and recycling we will work with our business partners to encourage more recycling where
this reduces costs to the council and delivers environmental bene(ts for the people of Shropshire.

We will review all of our current contractual arrangements with partners – whether large scale for example (Veolia –
waste collection, Coop – Bereavement Services) or smaller and more local – with schools, community groups and
town councils to get the best possible deal for Shropshire residents.

These new approaches and reimagining of solutions will look to achieve increased Eexibilities and support business
redesign that better meet customer demand at reduced costs, recognising that the market place and funding
environment is becoming more competitive. Other key areas we will focus on will include:

Community based leisure facilities

Highways and transport collaboration with other local authorities

Environmental maintenance

New capital schemes are being developed in order to improve customer services for a number of our services. 
This includes providing self-serve facilities within Libraries and improved customer services at the Acton Scott
Historic Working Farm. 

The council is also looking to further develop its industrial estates and business parks in order to retain existing
tenants and attract new businesses into Shropshire.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 31

P
age 81



Commissioning Directorate overall budget

Gross Revenue Gross Controllable Savings Target Proposals Identi(ed
Budget £ Budget £ £ £

Commissioning £123,441,000 £53,976,095 £18,891,633 £19,025,633

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 32

Summary estimate for realising budget reductions: 

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Steve Charmley, Renegotiate Review and renegotiate contracts across Commissioning 1,355,667 2,407,834 1,747,849
Claire Wild, Contracts Directorate with a view to redesigning or reducing 
Gwilym Butler, requirements to meet lower cost allowances. Review will 
Mal Price include all major procurement areas.

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Redesign of Business and Enterprise function that will 65,825 118,350 144,075
Customers lead to an end to end o0er for the business community.

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Redesign Healthier People and Communities - (Review 30,000 0 0
Customers animal movement monitoring contract)

Gwilym Butler Outcomes for Modernisation of processes and creation of e5ciencies 90,000 10,000 0
Customers within Theatre Services

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Redesign of a new Visitor Economy model including 263,627 178,840 172,590
Customers museum services and visitor attractions

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Behavioural change programme using customer 288,000 126,500 240,000
Customers segmentation approach to increase recycling  

and reduce waste growth.

P
age 82



Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Gwilym Butler Outcomes for Redesign the Libraries service, including Visitor 1,006,331 299,764 0
Customers Information Centres.

Claire Wild Outcomes for Redesign Highways and Transport function, creating 430,000 72,340 502,341
Customers alliance with Cheshire West and Chester (CWAC) 

Claire Wild Outcomes for Redesign Environmental Maintenance function, 150,000 202,660 152,659
Customers creating merged function with CWAC, moving 

processes in house and increasing income

Gwilym Butler Outcomes for Redesign within Community Action, Positive 196,163 171,445 0
Customers Activities, Outdoor Recreation and Sports Development 

to create a Community Enablement Team (CET)

Gwilym Butler Outcomes for Redesign of the Outdoor Recreation service that will 51,400 288,215 207,375
Customers lead to locally led approaches with a focus 

on physical activity

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Redesign of Public Protection - in preparation for 109,000 0 0
Customers Regulatory and Business Support Services (RABSS)

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Redesign Healthier and Sustainable Environment, 94,315 0 0
Customers including commissioning of Parking and Cash Collection

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Create e5ciencies in Bereavement Services function, 58,500 0 0
Customers stopping non-utilised service and generating income

Gwilym Butler Outcomes for Redesign across Positive Activities, Arts Development 58,832 215,844 215,844
Customers and Sports Development to create a new model for 

Activities for Young People

Steve Charmley Outcomes for Redesign Safer and Stronger Communities function, 20,838 140,000 0
Customers stopping Bikeability and rede(ning 24/7 CCTV monitoring

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 33

P
age 83



Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Mal Price Outcomes for Redesign of Development Management and Planning 150,600 35,000 0
Customers Policy - Environment & Sustainability Service will be 

redesigned with other planning functions in order to 
create a more integrated delivery focussed Business Unit

Gwilym Butler Outcomes for Review of joint use Leisure Facilities to identify how they 118,420 206,055 227,335
Customers are best delivered on a local basis.

Mal Price Outcomes for Redesign and reinvention of Housing Services 500,000 1,604,025 0
Customers concentrating on early intervention, providing an 

integrated approach to meeting people's needs, 
cutting out waste to improve customer outcomes.

Steve Charmley Trade for Create commercial activity within the wider Regulatory 0 50,000 772,779
Public Pro(t and Business Support Services model.

Steve Charmley, A workforce Appropriately re-size the workforce to ensure an e5cient 2,165,749 310,707 0
Claire Wild, that (ts and customer focussed organisation. Voluntary 
Gwilym Butler, Redundancy proposals within Commissioning Directorate.
Mal Price

Steve Charmley Stop Waste Reduce Sustainability supplies and services budget 6,000 0 0

Gwilym Butler Stop Waste Cease provision of Local Joint Committee grant funding 529,850 0 0

Steve Charmley Stop Waste Enforcement of Waste Management Policy and 180,000 0 0
decommissioning of some services.

Steve Charmley, Zero Based  Review of Transport Costs across Commissioning 286,090 0 0
Claire Wild, Budgets and Directorate.
Gwilym Butler, Business Planning
Mal Price

Total 8,205,207 6,437,579 4,382,847

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 34

P
age 84



New Delivery Proposals – Commissioning

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Steve Charmley Renegotiate Intelligent Client System: New software for the monitoring 70,000 - -
Contracts of performance under the Waste Management contract. 

Further details required to establish if eligible 
capital expenditure.

Gwilym Butler Outcomes for Self Service Machines: Required to help deliver recurrent 100,000 -
Customers revenue savings.

Steve Charmley Trade for Stanley Lane Industrial Estate: Initial works to prepare the 150,000 -
Public Pro(t site for development of new workshop units.

Steve Charmley A workforce Acton Scott Historic Working Farm: Consolidates the 36,000 - -
/Tina Wood that (ts retail and ticketing area, reducing sta5ng costs per 

annum by around £10,000.

Total 356,000 0 0

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 35

P
age 85



Resources and Support

We will only keep and use the physical assets we need to meet customer demand. This means selling underused and
vacant land to boost capital funds and saving revenue like a business. We will use new technology to allow our sta0
to work in a mobile and Eexible way to suit the needs of our customers. This means we need less accommodation
and what we keep should be designed and equipped to help people work collaboratively and Eexibly. To achieve
this we will use a Corporate Landlord model, where all property assets are managed centrally together though a
commercial approach.

We will design the infrastructure for the future needs of Shropshire Council and other commissioners looking to
work in radically di0erent ways. This will enable swift take up of the best systems and most e5cient and well
designed business processes.

End to end review of how the council uses information to drive decision making, identifying duplication and waste,
evaluating the potential for income generation through trading associated with the value we put on intelligence.

Reviewing procurement, Audit, Risk and Insurance teams to reEect the changing demands of the commissioning
organisation.

Rationalising face to face customer contact, through a digital (rst approach making it easier and cheaper for people
to access the information and services they’re looking for.

Reviewing HR support, streamlining processes helping managers and team leaders become highly e0ective people
and resource managers through informed self-service.

Reviewing levels of support in democratic and legal services taking account of willingness of customers to accept
di0erent levels of provision and opportunities, through an Alternative Business Structure to enable the team to sell
on its services.

We are working closely with our trading partner ip&e (Trade Co) to grow a suite of businesses based on
understanding and anticipating the public service customer needs of the future, whilst driving down our own

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 36

P
age 86



service costs. We will do this by developing attractive, tradable services to tap into a targeted, growing market. This
includes reviewing the potential for trading using the council’s capacity, skills and assets in new ways including;

Developing an enabling technology o0er, bringing the best in cloud based and mobile technology to

bear on challenges facing the UK public sector

Exploring a core service o0er delivering excellence in governance for public service commissioners

Developing our business design and programme management expertise, using Shropshire as the

shop window for a growing potential customer base

Bringing together health improvement services – o0ering a range of support to change behaviours in

ways that improve people’s long term health and well-being

Gross Revenue Gross Controllable Savings Target Proposals Identi(ed
Budget £ Budget £ £ £

Resources and Support £157,326,000 £71,046,852 £24,866,398 £26,708,592

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 37

Summary estimate for realising budget reductions: 

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Mike Owen Sell Assets we Asset rationalisation to (t with mobile and Eexible 900,650 1,527,443 0
don't need working ethos. Manage total asset base of Council 

under a Corporate Landlord arrangement

Mike Owen Renegotiate Review and renegotiate contracts across Resources 20,000 0 0
Contracts and Support Services with a view to redesigning or 

reducing requirements to meet lower cost allowances. 

P
age 87



Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Mike Owen Outcomes for Redesign points of face to face contact for the full range 150,000 0 0
Customers of transactional services. Meet the demand for increased 

access in alternative methods of contact e.g. digital 
and mobile.

Mike Owen Trade for Further develop a commercial approach to our business 329,700 29,700 29,700
Public Pro(t and maximise earnings and trading potential.

Mike Owen A workforce Develop a workforce that appropriately (ts the size and 3,976,364 179,871 115,759
that (ts requirements of the organisation as it moves to become 

a commissioning council. 

Mike Owen Stop Waste Reduce travel and associated costs across the Resources 46,800 0 0
and Support Directorate by maximising opportunities 
o0ered through technological solutions.

Mike Owen Stop Waste Rationalise spend in ICT. Ensure that all systems are used 2,152,000 28,000 40,000
to best advantage of the business

Mike Owen Stop Waste Stop contracts where review has identi(ed that  31,000 0 0
costs outweigh bene(ts.

Mike Owen Zero Based Redesign Services, for example, Business Design, 291,748 210,448 150,848
Budgets and Digital Services, Customer Services, Business Support, 
Business Planning Print Services, Programme Management.

Mike Owen Zero Based Procure to Pay redesign implemented across the  1,200,000 0 0
Budgets and authority to improve procurement, contract and  
Business Planning payment processes and e5ciency. 

Mike Owen Zero Based Plan for 7.5% on-going reduction in costs across 0 4,242,655 2,967,906
Budgets and Resources and Support through continual review 
Business Planning and redesign to meet the changing needs of the 

organisation as they develop.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 38

P
age 88



Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Mike Owen Zero Based Review of corporate budgets to meet expected demand 5,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Budgets and across the authority in relation to; removal of borrowing 
Business Planning requirements through the generation of capital receipts, 

increased generation of interest on balances, baselining 
of an element of New Homes Bonus, review of the 
baseline contribution to reserves and removal of the 
on-going Transformation budget, replacing it with an 
invest to save fund.

Mike Owen Zero Based Review of budgets set aside for Members, reEecting  88,000 0 0
Budgets and future requirements ie reduced printing costs. 
Business Planning

Total 14,186,262 7,718,117 4,804,213

New Delivery Proposals – Resources and Support

Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Mike Owen Sell assets we  Ptarmigan Building -  Installation of  new toilets:  40,000 - -
don't need Required to increase occupancy of building as in currently 

restricted on health & safety grounds. Scheme linked to 
Accommodation Strategy and will enable more sta0 to 
be located in the Ptarmigan Building, releasing other 
properties for disposal. 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 39

P
age 89



Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Mike Owen Sell assets we "Corporate Landlord: As part of the Corporate Landlord TBC TBC TBC
don't need model some capital investment may be required where 

a major maintenance liability is identi(ed, where 
condition has deteriorated to such an extent, due to 
pressure on the Corporate Repairs & Maintenance budget. 

Some capital expenditure may also be required in order 
to enable the future disposal of some properties, such 
as where access to a property needs to be split. These 
will be considered based on individual project appraisals 
and should be self (nanced as these works will enable a 
further assets to be disposed, although there may be a 
short term pressure as the works will be required in 
advance of the disposal and may cross (nancial years."

Mike Owen Sell assets we Re(t of Buildings: Estimate of likely costs of re(tting 600,000 - -
don't need buildings due to accommodation moves required but 

could be higher depending on the option chosen.

Mike Owen Sell assets we Lync Telephony Rollout: Purchase of handsets, 300,000 - -
don't need supplemented by revenue funding.

Mike Owen Sell assets we Move Exchange infrastructure to "Cloud": Migration 200,000 - -
don't need required. Hardware refresh required in 2014 at £500k 

which means the shift to Cloud is cheaper. Relocation 
costs negated. Further details required to establish 
if eligible capital expenditure.

Mike Owen Outcomes for University Project: Work being undertaken around TBC TBC TBC
Customers getting the university up and running.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 40

P
age 90



Portfolioholder Redesign Piece Proposal 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Mike Owen Trade for Replacement of Ballot Booths: Replacement of 143 Ballot 43,615 - -
Public Pro(t Booths for Health & Safety Reasons - will generate more 

income from hiring out. 

Mike Owen Stop Waste Implementation of new Disaster Recovery system, 956,000 - -
decommissioning legacy systems and implementation 
of single view of the customer system. 

Mike Owen Zero based Electronic Mail Room Implementation. Further details 500,000 - -
budget and required to establish if eligible capital expenditure.
business planning

Mike Owen Zero based Procure to Pay (P2P): Potential Investment required 100,000 - -
budget and if new system to be implemented.
business planning    

Total 2,739,615 TBC TBC

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 41

P
age 91



Strategic Financial Overview – Revenue

This overview includes the latest estimates of the Council’s revenue resources and expenditure.  
It is set in the context of the Council’s other key strategic documents, in particular, the Treasury
Management Strategy and the Capital Strategy which is now incorporated within the Business Plan.

The Draft Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy considered by Cabinet on 13 November 2013 provided details of the
council’s (nancial projections for resources and expenditure over the 3 year period 2014-17.  In January, Cabinet received an
update to the Business Plan and Financial Strategy which included the latest resource and expenditure projections following
the draft Local Government Finance Settlement for 2014 to 2015 and further information on the proposals to meet the
funding gap identi(ed of £80m over the period 2014-2017.

The Final Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy includes the latest (nancial position for 2014/15 following the Final
Local Government Finance Settlement announced on 5 February 2014.  The resource and expenditure projections have also
been updated for the latest estimate of the Council’s share of Business Rates, the collection funds for council tax and business
rates and further information received on speci(c grants for 2014/15.

Resource and Expenditure Projections 2014/15, 2015/16 and 2016/17

Summary

The Council’s Gross Budget for 2013/14 is £624.7m.  Throughout 2013/14, Cabinet has considered reports identifying the latest
position on the Council’s resource and expenditure projections for the period 2014-17.  The updates throughout the year have
used the most up to date information on budget monitoring, current and future service pressures, government funding and
council tax income projections.  This (nal report will include an update including the adjustments required arising from the
Final Local Government Finance settlement, latest estimates of council tax and business rates income and the estimated
positions on the business rates and council tax collection funds.  The report will also adjust for changes to speci(c grants.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 42

P
age 92



Table 1 below provides a summary of resource and expenditure projections which are then explained in more detail in the
sections below:

Table 1: Resource and Expenditure Projections 2014-2017

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£’000 £’000 £’000

Resources 572,138 558,886 548,424

Expenditure 613,669 620,553 628,424

Funding Gap -41,531 -61,667 -80,000

Year on Year -20,136 -18,333

Resource Projections

The Final Local Government Finance Settlement 2014/15 was announced on 5 February 2014. The settlement also provided
illustrative (gures for 2015/16. The (nal settlement shows a small improvement on Revenue Support Grant in 2014/15 from
the draft settlement announced on 18 December 2013 of £0.013m due to an increase in the returned holdback included.

The estimate of the amount to be returned during the year for unused topsliced funding relating to New Homes Bonus has
also been reviewed following the (nal settlement.  This (gure has reduced from the initial estimate of £0.667m to £0.155m, 
a reduction of £0.512m.  

The key messages from the Finance Settlement are identi(ed below:

Council tax freeze grant for 2013/14 has been rolled into general funding rather than being a separate speci(c grant.
There is no overall change to Shropshire resource projections from this as it is a switch from speci(c grants to general
funding, however, it does provide some more certainty that this funding will continue at some level in future years.

Funding for sparse authorities has also been rolled into base funding.  This is £0.776m for Shropshire.  This is new
funding for the Council as last year’s funding was assumed to be received on a one o0 basis.

Other changes around top up and returned top slices have been made to reEect the government’s latest
information on these amounts.  

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 43

P
age 93



The inEationary increase for Business Rates has been capped at 2%, 1.2% less than the September RPI index which is
usually used.  The (nancial e0ect of this and other discretionary reliefs introduced by the government for small
businesses and empty properties will be compensated for by a grant payment to local authorities in 2014/15 
and 2015/16. 

There will not be a topslicing of New Homes Bonus (NHB) funding in 2015/16 and future years which was due to be
allocated to Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) 

The resource projections use the Council’s own estimate of locally retained Business Rates.  The 2014/15 estimate for locally
retained Business Rates has been updated based on the authority’s National Non Domestic Rates return to central
government on 31 January 2014, referred to as NNDR 1, which provides details of the net yield from business rates after reliefs,
allowable charges on the fund and provisions for bad debts and appeals.  This has resulted in a reduction in the estimate of
locally retained business rates of £0.352m. 

In December 2013, Council approved the Council Tax taxbase at 100,475.19 Band D equivalents.  This taxbase assumes a
collection rate of 97.5% and assumptions about the reduction in taxbase due to council tax support based on information in
November 2013.  

The estimates for the Council’s share of the council tax and business rates collection funds for 2013/14 have recently been
calculated and this has resulted in a total increase in resources in 2014/15 on a one o0 basis of £1.033m.  This is made up 
of an estimated surplus in the council tax collection fund of £2.018m and an estimated de(cit in the business rates collection
fund of £0.985m.

The council tax collection fund estimated surplus is as a result of an increase in both tax base and collection rate from the
original estimate.  The business rates estimated collection fund de(cit is mainly as a result of the original estimates including a
projection of growth in the total business rates arising from one property which did not materialise in the year.  It should be
noted that in 2013/14, the council will receive a grant to compensate for additional relief o0ered to small businesses under
central government policies.  In 2014/15 this grant will continue and additional grant amounts will be paid to compensate for
new initiatives announced as part of the Autumn Statement.   

In 2013/14 a provision was established for Business Rates appeals.  The amount estimated and set aside was £2.277m. The
latest information for 2013/14 indicates that £1.098m of this provision has been utilised to date and that the level of the

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 44

P
age 94



provision needs to be £1.821m at the end of 2013/14 which has meant a further net contribution of £0.642m has been
necessary from the 2013/14 Business rates collection fund.    The latest estimates of year on year increases required to this
provision to cover potential appeals from each new year liability raised indicate the existing base budget contribution of
£2.277m can potentially be reduced.  This will be reviewed in future (nancial strategies when 2013/14 (nancial year has been
closed and the (nal position on Business Rates and appeals is known.  

The above changes have meant that the net budget has increased from that reported in January 2014 by £0.182m additional
resource.  This has been reEected in the expenditure estimates by an addition to the resources available to o0set 2014/15
savings which now stands at £6.262m in total, £2.454m arising from increased resource projections. 

The resource projections have also been updated for the latest information on speci(c grants and other income.  In addition,
changes arising from a review of internal market charges have been made.  The internal market charges for 2014/15 and
future years have been adjusted for in the gross budget to ensure the cost of these services and the recharged cost for these
services are no longer both reEected in the gross budget.  This reduces both resources and expenditure projections.  The total
change in income outside of the net budget is -£44.254m.  This is made up of an increase in speci(c grants of £0.603m and a
change of -£44.857 arising from review of internal market and other income charges and exclusion of the gross internal
market charges. 

The total change in resources projection is £44.072m, taking account of the increase in net resources of £0.182m and the
reduction in income of £44.254 detailed above.  The  revised resources projection  for 2014/15 is £572.139m.

In 2015/16, the net budget has reduced by £0.624m due to a combination of a reduction in the Business rates projection to
be retained locally and also a reduction in the (gure for returned top sliced amounts as detailed in the (nal Local Government
Finance Settlement.   The gross income (gure has reduced in total by £42.154m, the additional £41.529m being a
combination of a reduction due to the internal market of £44.857 and an increase in speci(c grants of £3.327m.  It is important
to stress that the changes outside of the net budget are made on both the resources and expenditure side so do not a0ect
the Council’s projections on required savings.

The latest Resource projections are detailed in Annex 1.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 45

P
age 95



Expenditure Projections

The Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014-2017 considered by Cabinet on 15 January 2014 included growth of
£45.264.  The latest estimates have been adjusted to reEect additional speci(c grants and give total growth of £48.592m over
the 3 year period 2014-17. This is detailed in the table 2 below.  The calculation of growth was reviewed for Cabinet in January
and is now included in Annex 2 for information. 

Table 2: Growth in Budget 2014-17
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000 £’000

2013/14 Budget Issues 10,088
Grant net changes 2,725

Additional Growth

– Carbon Management 372

– Review of recharges outside General Fund 525

– Asset Sales – Removal of Income streams 37

– Further review of budget issues impacting 1,085 50 50
on 2014/15 and beyond

Adjustments to o0set growth

– New Homes Bonus -1,106 -1,609 -1,909

– Debt Charges and Interest on Balances -76

InEation

– Pay 955 885 839

– Increments 897 497 281

– Prices 2,759 2,852 3,006

– Pensions 3,500

Debt Charges (used as saving ) 1,000 1,000 1,000

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 46

P
age 96



Table 2: Growth in Budget 2014-17 cont.
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000 £’000

Demography

– Adults – current year pressure 9,300

– Adults – future years 1,867 1,758 1,500

– Children’s – current year pressure 2,800

– Children’s – future years 772 1,183 1,183

Adjustment to base for Reserves contribution -5,000

Adjustment to base for Elections budget in 2013/14 -700

Investment Fund to replace Transformation Funding 2,000 -2,000

Repayment to Provisions for Redundancy Costs 2,000

Subtotal Growth 27,575 7,341 11,450

Contribution to Savings from

– review of expenditure projections 3,808 2,168 -3,750

– revision of resources projections 2,454 -2,454

-170 170

Total Growth 33,837 6,885 7870

Impact of Transfers to ip&e on the Council’s Budget

In August 2013 Media services, now known as ThreeSixty Communications    transferred to ip&e.    Details of the media
services budget were reported as part of the Financial Strategy report to Cabinet on 24 July 2013.   As part of negotiations
with ip&e and with the requirement for the Council to achieve £80m of savings over the next 3 (nancial years, savings have
been achieved from in the Council’s budget available to commission work from ThreeSixty Communications. 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 47

P
age 97



In 2014/15, the Project   Programme Management O5ce and the Business Design team are being considered for transfer to
ip&e.  Together these services are to be known as “Change for the best” .A review of the budgets available to commission the
transferred services has been undertaken.  Again, this budget has been reduced year on year in line with the reductions other
budgets remaining with the council are subject to.  The budgets available to commission services from ip&e in 2014/15  have
been identi(ed as follows:

Table 3: budgets identi=ed to commission services from ip&e

2014/15 2015/16 -Estimate 2016/17 - Estimate
£ £ £

Programme Management O5ce 348,670 315,160 186,660 (TBC)

Business Design Team 252,060 209,160 166,260

“Change for the Best” sub total 600,730 524,320 352,920

ThreeSixty Communications 302,380 272,680 242,980

Total 903,110 797,000 595,900

The budget for “Change for the Best” for 2016/17 has still to be agreed.  It can be seen that a substantial reduction has 
been made to the budgets available to commission services.  It is envisaged that the services within ip&e will strive to
generate external income to o0set the reductions in council spending.  Alternatively, savings will need to be found from
expenditure budgets.

A report providing a Business Case for the transfer of services to ip&e and seeking approval for this will be reported to 
Cabinet in March 2014.

As further services are considered for transfer to ip&e, full consideration will be given to the budget available both in the
current year and future years for the council to commission transferring services.  Services transferring will be clear about
future savings to be made by the council from the budget available to commission services from ip&e.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 48

P
age 98



Savings Targets and Proposals

The updated resources and expenditure projections are shown in Table 1 above and result in the funding gap previously
reported to Cabinet of £80m over the 3 year period.

Proposals identi(ed are summarised in Table 4 below with more detail provided under the individual services shown earlier 
in the Business Plan under the section on “Our Approach”.  

Table 4: Proposals Identi=ed to Manage the Funding Gap

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£’000 £’000 £’000

Proposals Identi(ed 39,892 24,614 18,695

Less Year 3 Savings Contingency (3,201)

Cumulative Total 64,506 80,000

The proposals identi(ed over the 3 year period 2014/15 to 2016/17 exceed the target of £80m. There is, however, a shortfall of
1.639m based upon the current pro(le for 2014/15. The proposals put forward for 2014/15 have also been subject to a review
to consider risks associated with delivery within available timescales as follows:

Red – More work needs to be undertaken to turn this idea for redesign or prototype 
into an operational plan with timescales

Amber – Operational change identi(ed but programme and timescales need to be 
worked through in more detail before delivery

Green – Operational change identi(ed with time scale quanti(ed and understood, 
just needs to be delivered

As part of budget assurance, it would be reasonable to assume that close to 100% of the Green and Amber category
proposals can be implemented, but it would be prudent to assume that a proportion of Red Category proposals may slip, 
or with further re(nement, may not be achievable to the level assumed. Table 6 below provides a summary of the 2014/15
proposals over the categories identi(ed above.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 49

P
age 99



Table 5: Savings Proposals Deliverability

£’000

Green Category Proposals 15,930

Amber Category Proposals 9,030

Red Category Proposals 14,932

Total 39,892

As noted in the previous paragraph, revision and rephrasing of growth proposals can reduce the funding gap by up to
£6.262m in 2014/15 on a one-o0 basis. Our planning assumptions are that the (rst call on this will be the funding of the
shortfall on savings identi(ed in 2014/15 of £1,639m.  After allowing for this, it appears that the total value of all proposals
currently (including rephasing of growth) exceed the funding gap identi(ed in 2014/15,however,  the timing of delivery and
the scale of proposals to be  implemented in a short time period still represent a signi(cant risk to the authority. For this
reason, it is essential that the Council has a reasonable level of reserves in place to help mitigate against this risk.

As at period 9 monitoring, the General Fund Balance has a projected balance of £12.055m although this is likely to change
before year end, and any reduction in the projected overspend position identi(ed at Period 9 would increase these levels.  

The Council’s policy is that a minimum General Fund Balance equivalent to 0.5% of the gross budget should be maintained.  
A minimum balance under this policy would therefore be £3.094m for 2014/15.

Taking all of the above factors into account, therefore, the Council now has a realistic and robust plan to deliver a balanced
budget over the short and medium term. However, while this strategy provides a plan for delivering a balanced budget, the
impact on current services, level of savings, scale of change, reduction in resources and increase in uncertainty will all require
careful and robust management over the next three years.

Longer Term Financial Outlook

Details of how the Council is working di0erently now and how this will develop over the coming years are set out earlier in
this document under the 5 individual service areas.     

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 50

P
age 100



Strategic Financial Overview – Capital

This overview updates the Capital Programme for the period 2014/15 to 2016/17, based on
current con=rmed funding and delivery schedule for schemes. This is not a full review and 
revision of the Capital Strategy at this point of the year as the Council’s focus has been on the
delivery of revenue savings, however the introduction of schemes assisting this work are now
being considered. 

A number of new schemes have been proposed for inclusion in the programme, (nanced from Corporate Resources. These
schemes will potentially deliver revenue savings for the Council, however further work is required to develop these proposals
into comprehensive capital appraisal documents that can be formally approved. This activity takes place between February
and July and formal approval of these schemes will be sought in July Council. These schemes will be prioritised based on the
(t with the business plans of the service and the revenue savings the schemes will generate. The capital cost of the schemes
will also need to be a0ordable within the projected available capital receipts.

Capital Allocations 2014/15 to 2016/17

The capital programme report 2013/14 to 2016/17, approved Council 28 February 2013, contained a combination of
con(rmed and indicative allocations of capital grants.  Where the Council has received updated con(rmed allocations, these
have been built into the capital programme. Any changes to capital allocations have been pass-ported through to the service
area.  The following section details these allocations.

Department of Education – Schools Programme

The Department of Education has con(rmed Basic Need allocations totalling £4m for the period 2014/15 to 2016/17 and new
funding of £587,000 for Infant Free School Meals.  Condition funding of £4,275,499 and Devolved Formula Capital of £820,841 
I have also been con(rmed for 2014/15. These are broadly in line with previous year’s capital funding, taking into account the
further schools that have transferred to Academies.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 51

P
age 101



In addition to the new funding allocations expected for 2014/15 there is signi(cant funding that has been brought forward
from previous year’s capital programmes. The table below summarises the funding estimated to be available in the 2014/15
Learning & Skills Capital Programme:

Table 1: Learning & Skills Capital Funding

Funding B/F Funding 14/15 New 14/15 Total 15/16 16/17
£ Allocation £ £ Allocation Allocation

Basic Need - 492,821 492,821 1,709,784 1,795,273

Universal Infants - 587,365 587,365 - -
Free School Meals

Condition - 4,275,499 4,275,499 - -

DFC 1,365,684 820,841 2,186,525 - -

Capital Receipts 5,232,413 - 5,232,413 - -

Section 106 42,228 - 42,228 - -

Revenue 8,152 - 8,152 - -
Contributions 
(school Balances)

Total 6,648,477 6,176,526 12,825,003 1,709,784 1,795,273

This funding has been allocated by programme areas as detailed in the Capital Programme (see annex 4). This is a
combination of schemes slipped from 2013/14, multi-year schemes and allocations by programme area, which will be
allocated to speci(c schemes based on school priorities.  Learning & Skills have developed a programme to utilise all the
above funding that is available to them in 2014/15, with Condition works being the largest area of the programme. Further
consideration will be made to the deliverability of a programme consisting of the brought forward funding and the 2014/15
funding in the (nancial year, once the full programme of schemes is allocated.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 52

P
age 102



Other than the new Basic Need allocations, no funding is currently programmed beyond 2014/15 as this is subject to ongoing
discussion by Department of Education as to how capital funding will be provided in the future.  £2.35m is currently projected
to be generated in future years from the disposal of surplus former school sites, following school amalgamations. These
receipts are ring fenced for investment in schools as previously agreed by Council as part of the amalgamation programme.

Department of Transport - Local Transport Plan (LTP)

Department of Transport funding for Highways was detailed in a 4 year settlement in 2011 and 2014/15 is the (nal year of this
settlement.  The Shropshire allocation for 2014/15 is detailed in the table below:

Table 2: Department of Transport LTP allocations

Funding 14/15 Allocation

Highways Maintenance 11,973,000 

Highways Maintenance - Additional Funding 1,227,000 

Integrated Transport 2,385,000 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund (Speci(c bid for grant) 714,000 

Total 16,299,000 

In addition to the above, a £125,000 revenue contribution is included in the programme for Street Lighting and £265,000
Commuted sum funding is included in the bridges programme. The outline proposed Highways and Transport capital
programme is included in this document, rather than as a separate report later in the year, as in previous years.

The detailed programme is included in annex 6 to this document and a summary including funding is provided in 
Table 3 on the following page.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 53

P
age 103



Table 3: Highways Capital Programme & Financing 2014/15

B/F Funding 14/15 New 14/15 Total 15/16 16/17
£ Allocation £ £ Allocation £ Allocation £

Highways
Structural Maintenance of Bridges 1,366,100 - - 264,606 1,630,706
Structural Maintenance of Roads 11,458,900 - - 11,458,900
Street Lighting 375,000 - - 125,000 500,000
Total Highways 13,200,000 - - 389,606 13,589,606
Integrated Transport
Network Management and E5ciency - 849,977 114,000 - 963,977
Public Transport  - 100,000 50,000 - 150,000
Walking and Cycling - 457,680 550,000 - 1,007,680
Safety and Speed Management - 977,343 - - 977,343
Total Integrated Transport - 2,385,000 714,000 - 3,099,000

Total 13,200,000 2,385,000 714,000 389,606 16,688,606

The highways capital maintenance programme is developed based on an Asset Management approach. With funding
allocations based on using network intelligence gained from routine condition surveys as well as other sources of information;
investment will be prioritised where it will achieve the greatest returns.

Integrated transport schemes are prioritised based on the contributions to key objectives such as safety, network e5ciency,
environmental bene(ts and levels of local support.

No funding is currently included beyond 2014/15. Department of Transport are currently consulting on a new policy for local
authority highways maintenance funding from 2015, which will be used to distribute highways maintenance funding from
2015/16 to 2020/21. Previous indications had been that highways maintenance funding will continue at similar levels, but
Integrated Transport funding will decrease.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 54

P
age 104



DCLG - Disabled Facilities Grants

The Department of Communities and Local Government have not con(rmed Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) allocations for
2014/15, but the allocation is assumed to be in line with previous allocation of around £1.1m.  

From 2015/16 funding will be provided by the Department of Health, rather than DCLG. The DFG funding will be included in
the new Integrated Transformation Fund. This is described as a ’single pooled budget for health & social care services to work
more closely together in local areas based on a plan agreed between the NHS & local authorities’. This will be a pooled budget,
which will be allocated based on local priorities. Currently no projections are available for what funding Shropshire will receive
from 2015/16 onwards.

Department of Health - Adult Social Services

Further funding of £764,663 has been allocated to Shropshire for 2014/15. In October 2013 a report was approved by Cabinet
for the Development of Supported Living Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities. Namely the development of 4 further
Supported Living bungalows at Adderley Road, Market Drayton; London Road, Shrewsbury and two further sites to be
identi(ed. These developments will be part (nanced by the Development Trust, but will also require some match funding by
the Council. It is planned to allocate the 2014/15 Adults capital grant towards these developments and work is ongoing to
develop the plans and costs for each site and until that is in place, the funding from the Development Trust cannot be
con(rmed. Based on a provisional estimate of when works will take place, this funding has been split across 2014/15 and
2015/16. These schemes will potentially deliver (nancial savings across both the health and social care economy through
remodelled services and better outcomes for individuals. 

Further funding of £970,000 is included in the Adult Social Care capital programme for 2014/15, which is funding re-pro(led
from previous years. Plans are being developed to allocate these monies to schemes in accordance with the priorities in the
Adult Services business plan.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 55

P
age 105



Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Under the self-(nancing regulations, the Council has a 5-year transitional period to implement component-based
depreciation for the HRA.  Once implemented, this will be used to determine the level of capital investment required in the
housing stock.  As allowed in the transitional period, the Council will use the baseline Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) (gure in
the HRA self-(nancing determination for Shropshire as the basis for the amount allocated for capital investment in 2014/15
and 2015/16. For this period the MRA (gure is around £4m in each year, £3.2m of which will be allocated to Major Repairs
Capital works, with the balance retained for New Build capital works or possible repayment of HRA debt.

In addition to the £3.2m allocated in 2014/15, £1.1m has been previously re-pro(led from previous years, making a total Major
Repairs Programme budget of £4.3m. £3.85m of this budget has been allocated to improvement programmes, with £430,000
still to be allocated. The New Build Programme is also ongoing in 2014/15, with £5.8m allocated in the programme and the
majority of works due to complete in 2014/15.

Corporately Financed capital schemes

Previous Capital Strategies have reduced the number of corporately (nanced schemes to align the programme to available
resources and avoid the una0ordable ongoing revenue costs of borrowing to (nance the programme.  Following these
previous reviews there is limited scope to make further savings in the existing capital programme; especially as 
given the nature of capital schemes, a number of schemes are ongoing across (nancial years with contracts in place to 
deliver these schemes.  This document is not a full review and revision of the Capital Strategy and as such no new 
Corporately Financed schemes have been added to the programme. However, there are opportunities to re-pro(le areas 
of the capital programme.

The signi(cant changes to corporately (nanced schemes in the capital programme for are summarised below:

Re-pro(ling of Council funding for the Shrewsbury Vision as part of the Riverside Development. Originally £3.75m
was included for 2015/16, however £250k has now been brought forward to 2014/15 to fund known pressures 
and the remaining rescheduled until 2016/17.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 56

P
age 106



Re-pro(ling of Small Business Loans by bringing £140k forward into 2014/15 to match contracts already entered into. 

Reduction of the Disabilities Discrimination Act Capital Budget to £50k per annum to reEect that works have been
delayed due to Placed Based Review / Accommodation Rationalisation, but also provide funding to meet the
Council’s Legal obligations.

The £1.12m that was carried forward as a Highways underspend from 2012/13 and then re-pro(led to 2014/15 to
ease pressure on capital receipt generation in 2013/14 has been re-allocated to the Depot Redevelopment budget
in 2013/14 and 2014/15 in place of part of the self-(nanced prudential borrowing funding. This will enable the
service to make a revenue savings as they will have reduced debt (nancing charges.

These changes have resulted in a net decrease of £0.05m in corporately (nanced schemes across the three year term of 
the capital programme and have re-pro(led expenditure across the years of the programme, providing increased opportunity
for receipts to be generated to avoid the requirement for any corporately (nanced prudential borrowing.

Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2016/17

The revised capital programme, following the grant changes and the review of the capital programme is detailed in 
Annex 4 and a summary of the programme is provided in Table 4.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 57

P
age 107



Table 4: Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2015/16

2013/14 Service Area 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Budget Budget Budget Budget

£ £ £ £

General Fund

34,370,972 Commissioning 33,394,659 8,152,534 3,500,000

802,621 Adult Services 1,419,791 314,663 -

11,689,304 Children’s Services 13,173,406 1,709,784 1,795,273

1,198,883 Resources & Support 268,000 50,000 50,000

48,061,780 Total General Fund 48,255,856 10,226,981 5,345,273

3,994,173 Housing Revenue Account 10,090,890 3,287,090 - 

52,055,953 Total 58,346,746 13,514,071 5,345,273 

Based on the capital programme in Table 4, the (nancing of the capital programme is detailed in Table 5.

Table 5: Capital Programme Financing 2014/15 to 2016/17

2013/14 Financing 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Budget Budget Budget Budget

£ £ £ £

(73,612) Self Financed Prudential Borrowing 261,142 - -

29,306,851 Government Grants 34,408,091 1,709,784 1,795,273

1,156,309 Other Grants 442,303 - - 

1,484,621 Other Contributions 382,512 - - 

4,067,662 Revenue Contributions to Capital 2,805,294 311,400 -

2,616,591 Major Repairs Allowance 6,293,314 3,200,000 -

13,497,531 Corporate Resources (Capital 13,754,090 8,292,887 3,550,000
Receipts/ Prudential Borrowing)

52,055,953 Total Financing 58,346,746 13,514,071 5,345,273 

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 58

P
age 108



Proposed Future Schemes 

Due to current uncertainties around future capital (nance resources, both in terms of external grant funding and internal
capital receipts to be generated from the disposal of surplus assets, the Council is currently not in a position to produce a 
new comprehensive Capital Strategy for future years.  This document is a holding position based on the previous strategy.

Work is ongoing to develop new schemes in line with the Business Plans of Services and for schemes that will generate
ongoing revenue savings. A number of new schemes have been proposed for inclusion in the programme, (nanced from
Corporate Resources and are detailed in annex 5. Further work is required to develop these proposals into comprehensive
capital appraisal documents that can be formally approved. This activity will take place between February and July and 
formal approval of these schemes will be sought in July Council. These schemes will be prioritised based on the schemes 
(t with the business plans of the service and the revenue savings the schemes will generate and also depending on the 
level of available capital receipts. 

Capital Receipts 

Capital receipt projections are based on current projections of assets to be disposed, the estimated capital receipt they will
generate from disposal and the (nancial year in which the disposal will be completed.  There is a high level of risk in these
projections as they are subject to changes in property and land values and the actions of potential buyers.  Based on the
current projected capital receipts and the revised allocated capital receipts (Table 5); Table 6 shows the capital receipts
position across the years of the capital programme.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 59

P
age 109



Table 6: Capital Receipts Projections 2014/15 to 2016/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Corporate Resources Allocated in Capital Programme 13,754,090 8,292,887 3,550,000 

To be allocated from Ring Fenced Receipts 1,885,239 1,456,660 1,762,500

Total Commitments 15,639,329 9,749,547 5,312,500 

Capital Receipts in hand/projected:

Estimated carry forward 5,861,934* 

Projected - “Highley Likely” (see below) 7,154,465 2,380,000 4,000,000

Total in hand/projected 13,016,399 2,380,000 4,000,000

Shortfall / (Surplus) to be =nanced from additional 2,622,930 7,369,547 1,312,500
capital receipts / Prudential Borrowing

Further Assets Being Considered for Disposal 13,593,915 6,836,250 3,595,000

* Dependant on outturn position 2013/14 and capital receipts generated in 2013/14.

The above capital receipt projections for 2014/15 to 2016/17 are based on current scheduled disposals that are pro(led for
each year. All receipts have been RAG rated (Red, Amber, Green), those listed as Green are where it is rated as ‘highly likely’ that
the disposals will be completed in year. In addition to these there are a number of further disposals that have been identi(ed
for potential disposal in future years. These receipts hold signi(cant risk against delivery and therefore until the plans for
disposal against these assets are formally agreed, these will not be included when considering the programmes a0ordability.
On the basis that the current programme is una0ordable, further work is required on the deliverability of the list of assets
being considered for disposal.

If the Council cannot generate the required level of capital receipts, the Council will need to further reduce or re-pro(le the
capital programme or undertake prudential borrowing, which will incur revenue costs that are not budgeted in the revenue
(nancial strategy.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 60

P
age 110



Self-Financing Prudential Borrowing Schemes

The capital programme also includes schemes to be (nanced from self-(nanced prudential borrowing.  The borrowing costs
of which will be (nanced from the revenue savings generated from the schemes.  Following change to the schemes in the
capital programme the only remaining pro(led borrowing is for the Highways Depots Redevelopment scheme. It is hoped
this will not now be required based on the level of works required, but if it is the revenue costs will be (nanced from savings
generated in future years under the Highways Maintenance contract.

Capital Allowance for Housing Capital Receipts

The local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 require the Council to pay into the national
housing pool 75% of the capital receipt in relation to the disposal of a council dwelling through Right to Buy and 50% of the
capital receipt in relation the disposal of any other interest in Housing Revenue Account (HRA) assets.  Any single receipt of
less than £10,000 in value is exempt.  The other 25% or 50% respectively remains with the Council for investment in other
capital projects at the discretion of the Council; this can include either housing or non-housing schemes.  

The Council can avoid the pooling payment and therefore maximise funds for Council use by setting a Capital Allowance,
approved by Full Council. This states that these receipts will be reserved for expenditure on a0ordable housing and
regeneration, including expenditure on the Councils housing stock.  The capital allowance once created is then used to
reduce the amount which is required to be pooled by o0setting relevant receipts against it.  The capital allowance can be
increased at any time as approved by Full Council and decreases (“extinguished”) by the amount of capital receipts received
and applied to fund qualifying expenditure.

For 2014/15 it is proposed to set a Capital Allowance of £1 million and that capital receipts received will be reserved for
expenditure on the council’s housing stock. This is based on the maximum anticipated level of receipts that could be
generated in 2014/15.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 61

P
age 111



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 62

*+),-). *+).-)/ *+).-)/ *+).-)/(0(1#23$%((435#6(0(!6678"93$6 *+)/-): *+)/-): *+):-); *+):-);

<=>?@=A <=>?@=A <=>?@=A <=>?@=A <=>?@=A B<?C?4!D B<?C?4!D
!"#$%&'

()'*+,"%-+./(0

!"#$%&'

(.'*+1&#-+./(0

!"#$%&'

()'*+,"%-+./(0

!"#$%&'

(.'*+1&#-+./(0

!"#$%&'

()'*+,"%-+./(0

!"#$%&'

(2'*+1&#-+./(0

<@C !"#$"%#$$& '"#$%%#"(% '"#$')#$'* +,-./0123124.56,170829:2'2+05/.3/;2&$<%2=9/2>702?9@362A9B0/:C0:>2+,:362+,:3:@02D0E60C0>2&$<%F<'2

3:82G/9B,1,9:362&$<'F<!H22&$<!F<"201IC3>01238J.1>082=9/2K9.:@,62>3L2=/00M02-/3:>29:6;H

%<#(!)#%$* %<#(!)#%$* ($#&<<#$*" (<#&($#'!&

176&$#66(<E5#6(<#5#$93$(!FF3GE93$H( N8J.1>C0:>2+./>70/2>92D.CC0/2&$<(2K9:1.6>3I9:

OOPQ2R312/3,10823:82>70:2/0>3,:08269@366;S,:@6.80,:-2344036124/9B,1,9:
()#("$#()< ()#!""#(%( ()#(&'#&)! OOPQ<2&$<%T<'2U-./0H22V70280U@,>29:2>702@9660@I9:2=.:82=/9C2>7024/0B,9.12;03/#2179W:25069W#2,12

:0E0829XH

()#!""#(%( ()#(&'#&)! ()#!""#(%( ()#(&'#&)!

V942Y4 *#!'*#*<& *#)%)#$*& *#)%)#$*& +,-./0231240/2K?A2&$<%F<'+,:362?9@362A9B0/:C0:>2+,:3:@02D0E60C0:> <$#<<*#*$) <$#<<*#*$) *#*'!#<*& *#*'!#<*&

D3=0>;2O0>2G3;C0:>1

OPQ2D./46.1FP0U@,>29:2K9660@I9:2+.:8

G/,9/2;03/238J.1>C0:>12R0H-H2@9//0@I9:2>9213=0>;2:0>243;C0:>1S

IBI!D(@I!<I(JK(LJ4A?4C(<=M=?KIH( ))/N)+.N*O/ )+/N/;+N):O )+/N*,)N.,; O+N):/N::+ PONP),N:+, ;PNP..N:,* ;ON/)*N+.+

Q0>./:29=23C9.:>12>9416,@082=/9C2QDAFZQQN2N669@3I9:

D73/029=2[&5:2.:.1082O0W2\9C012Z9:.12>9416,@0 (")#&($ !!"#%$) <'%#'') +,:362?9@362A9B0/:C0:>2+,:3:@02D0E60C0:> !!"#%$) (*%#*%$ !!"#%$) $

D73/029=2/0>./:08283C4,:-2R.:.108213=0>;2:0>27068253@]S $ ! V7,12C3;25023:2,:2;03/259:.1H22^9/02,:=9/C3I9:2/0_.,/08

IBI!D(LJ4A?4C(L<BQ(M=4I<!D-DBM!D(@R!<= ))/N.P*N/*/ )+:N*,;N/;; )+/N,P/NOO/ O+NP,,N+:P O+N*+PN/., ;ON/)*N+.+ ;ON/)*N+.+

"#$%&%'()#')*+%$,#-.)/%0+1.)2-'3,'4

<#<<<#&("

V3L5310 **#&)$ <$$#%"' <$$#%"' N@>.362>3L53102=9/2&$<%F<'23:82$H&`2,:@/03102,:2K9.:@,62V3L2V3L53102311.C082,:22&$<'F<!23:82

&$<!F<"

<$$#!"! <$$#)""

Q08.@I9:2,:2V3L531028.02>92K9.:@,62V3L2D.449/>2A/3:> <&#$$' N11.C08213C02/08.@I9:2,:2K9.:@,62V3L2>3L531028.02>9269@362K9.:@,62V3L2D.449/> <&#$$'

M37$G&F(IE'(?$G38# (()345.3220 ));N+*/N.:, ));N+*/N.:, K9.:@,62>3L2=/00M02311.C08 ));N*/ON/). ));N*/ON/). ));N.O.N+,, ));N.O.N+,,

M3FF#G93$(L7$%(@7S"F76T(M37$G&F(IE' .):N::: + *N+)PNP,. Q0B,1082a1IC3>029=2K9660@I9:2=.:82D./46.123123>2(<2b3:.3/;2&$<%

Z.1,:0112Q3>012K9660@I9:2=.:8 T*)'#(%< a1IC3>029=2Z.1,:0112Q3>012K9660@I9:2+.:823123>2(<2b3:.3/;2&$<%2#21.5C,E0829:2&$<%F<'2OOPQ2<2

IBI!D(4=I(<=@BJ<M=@(T(*+),T).((3$UES%6 *,)N/,*N)P/ **,N*:,N+.+ **,N...NO/) *+PN+O*N/P* *+;N.:PN+/; )O;N++:N+;, )O;N++:N+;,

T:*.N/*/

*+),-). *+).-)/ *+).-)/ *+).-)/(435#6(0(!6678"93$6 *+)/-): *+)/-): *+):-); *+):-);

<=>?@=A <=>?@=A <=>?@=A <=>?@=A <=>?@=A B<?C?4!D B<?C?4!D
!"#$%&'

(5'*+678-+./(5

!"#$%&'

()'*+,"%-+./(0

!"#$%&'

(.'*+1&#-+./(0

!"#$%&'

()'*+,"%-+./(0

!"#$%&'

(.'*+1&#-+./(0

!"#$%&'

()'*+,"%-+./(0

!"#$%&'

(2'*+1&#-+./(0

CB>=<4Q=4I(C<!4I@ *//NP+,NO.: *//N,O.N,:) *//NO;:NO++ *//N,O.N,:) */PN;++NO;+ *//N,O.N,:) */PN;++NO;+

BIR=<(C<!4I@(0(MB4I<?1JI?B4@ */NO/+NPP+ */NO/+NPP+ *PN.*/N:*+ */NO/+NPP+ *PN.*/N:*+ */NO/+NPP+ *PN.*/N:*+

L==@(0(MR!<C=@ :,N+,ON*)+ :,N*,ON*)+ /;N),;N+/+ :,N*,ON*)+ /;N),;N+/+ :,N*,ON*)+ /;N),;N+/+

?4I=<4!D(Q!<V=I(0(?4I=<4!D(<=MR!<C=@ .PN,:*NP/+ .PN,:*NP/+ .PN,:*NP/+ + .PN,:*NP/+

?$5#S$EF(<#GWESX#6(3$F2 ;N)/.N).+ ;N)/.N).+ ;N)/.N).+

V9>362c:@9C029.>1,8029=2O0>2 (*(#<'!#))! (*&#*%"#($< (%)#!*(#"<$

IBI!D(C<B@@(<=@BJ<M=@(T(*+),T).(3$UES%6N(EY#S(&$G38#(@EZ&$X6 :*.N:PON+;) :):N*)+N,.) /;*N),PN::) :+)N+,ONPP, //PNPP/NP,; /PONO/,N,;. /.PN.*,NP/,

Annex 1 – Resource Projections 2014-17

P
age 112



Annex 2 – Details of Growth Included in the Expenditure
Projections 2014-17

The Current Year 2013/14 Budget

The (gure included for 2013/14 Budget issues is made up of the following

savings achieved on a one o0 basis in 2013/14, £4.686m

pressures identi(ed in 2013/14 where previously agreed savings have not been achievable, £4.019m.

grant changes £1.383mm also reEected in resource projections

There were a number of further savings built in to 2013/14 budget which have been identi(ed in 2013/14 monitoring as not
deliverable.  In addition a number of further budget pressures have been identi(ed.  The requirement to achieve £80m savings
over the period 2014/15 to 2016/17 has resulted in all budgets being stripped to the minimum required.  Pressures and
unachievable savings have been managed to date by one o0 savings in existing budgets e.g. vacant posts.  There is now no
capacity to cover unavoidable budget variances from within cash limited budgets.  It is therefore essential that where there is
a known budget pressure either budget growth is allocated or this pressure is taken into account when savings are proposed.
Unachievable savings and budget pressures identi(ed are noted in the following paragraphs.

Carbon management savings were built in 2012/13 and 2013/14 budget.  In total there is a saving of £0.818m built in 2013/14
budget (£0.496m 12/13 saving and an additional £0.322m 2013/14 saving).  This saving has not been delivered due to issues
around ownership of buildings and suitable contractors.  Growth of £0.846m was also built in to 2013/14 budget for the
carbon tax liability.  The carbon tax liability has since been recalculated and a liability of £0.4m is more in line with current
requirements.  In total therefore there is a net shortfall on the Carbon budget of £0.372m (£0.818m less £0.446m). Work is
continuing to identify savings in this area and will be considered going forwards.  

The recharges made through the internal market are currently being reviewed.  As part of this, charges to trading or 
ring-fenced services (e.g. Pension Fund, Housing Revenue Account) are being considered for appropriateness.  For example,

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 63

P
age 113



the review of the recharges made to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the arms length management organisation,
ST&RH, has highlighted that the general fund income received from recharges is not sustainable. A number of other small
adjustments have been identi(ed within the General Fund that need to be reEected more accurately and in total £0.525m is
required to ensure a number of budgets are revised to more sustainable levels.

Further pressures or unachievable savings have been identi(ed as part of 2013/14 monitoring as a result of improved
monitoring processes, systems and future forecasting of their implications. The impact on 2014/15 and beyond has been
projected at £1.085m.  These have been identi(ed in 2013/14 monitoring reports but are being contained in the current year’s
budget by savings elsewhere e.g. vacancy management.  In 2014/15, it is expected that with the level of budget reductions to
be implemented there will be no capacity to o0set these pressures.  They include previously identi(ed, but subsequently
unachievable income targets and accommodation rationalisation savings.

Period 6 monitoring highlighted a shortfall in car parking pressure of c£0.300m.  This pressure has been taken into account
within Commissioning savings proposals in 2014/15 so that no additional growth is required.

A number of Council properties currently generating a revenue stream to the Council are being sold as part of the Council’s
rationalisation of assets and to generate savings elsewhere within the budget.  In addition, the capital receipt to be generated
will far exceed any loss of revenue income.   For the Economic Regeneration service, recent sales have meant a loss in revenue
of £0.037m.  This loss is required as growth to balance the Economic Regeneration budget.  

As budget monitoring continues in 2013/14 and budgets are evaluated as part of Business Planning and service redesign, any
further issues will be reported in future updates to the Business Plan and Financial Strategy. It is important that adequate
budgets are set to deliver the agreed service provision and where inadequate budgets have been set either service
requirements or budget levels are adjusted accordingly.

In summary, an adjustment of £2.019m is required to deal with existing budget pressures.  

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 64

P
age 114



Adjustments to Budgets to o<set Growth

The Council has received New Homes Bonus (NHB) Funding since 2011/12 as an unringfenced grant. This represents new
funding to the authority, but in the main has been (nanced from a topslice to the Council’s Revenue Support Grant. In
2014/15 this grant will be £5.759m in total and an increase of £0.8m has been estimated for 2015/16 and a further £0.8m for
2016/17.  From 2017/18, the amount received will have to be o0set by the loss of the year 1 funding reaching the end of the 
6 year payment period. 

The savings proposals include the use of £2m of NHB in 2014/15 and a further £0.5m in each of 2015/16 and 2016/17. There is
therefore a base budget contribution from New Homes Bonus funding of £3m by 2016/17.

An allowance has been made in current and future years to spend NHB on a number of developments and initiatives to help
generate further NHB into the future. After allowing for this, and the contribution identi(ed in the paragraph above, a small
balancing (gure has been used to o0set other budget pressures.

A small adjustment of £0.076m has been made to the debt charges budget.  This is further to adjustments already included 
as part of the savings strategy.

In=ationary Increases

The increase required for the 1% April pay award has been estimated by using current sta0 costs and making some
assumptions about redundancies.  As the position becomes clearer any potential reduction in the amount required will be
used to o0set the funding gap.

As stated for pay inEation, any change in the amount required for increments will also be used to o0set the funding gap.

The total prices inEation is based on individual contract requirements and is not currently anticipated that this will vary
signi(cantly from the estimate provided.

In March 2013, the triennial actuarial valuation of the Pension fund projected that the funding level had dropped from 
81% to 76% funded and recommended a change in annual contribution to the fund from Shropshire Council as one of 
the member authorities.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 65

P
age 115



The growth built in to the current (nancial strategy of £5.384m allows for an increase in the (xed sum element of the Council’s
contribution to pay for existing liabilities and also an increase in the percentage contribution for current members to cover
future projected liabilities.  

Further work has been undertaken over the summer to consider the valuation and also take into account changes in gilt
yields over the period which have moved substantially and reEect an improved funding level compared to the point-in-time
review as at 31 March 2013. Consideration of the gap between assets and liabilities since the valuation point suggest that the
additional de(cit identi(ed at that time may not be representative of a position that should be used for planning purposes for
the Council. So, while the updated position suggests that it is not necessary to include growth to the levels identi(ed
originally, at this point in time, it is essential that a decision is not taken too quickly. To this end, it has been assumed that
growth for the Pension Fund De(cit over the three year period of the Medium Term Financial Plan should be reduced from
£6.508m to £3.5m, and for this not to be allocated until 2016/17.

Debt

As detailed in the Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy on 13 November 2013, the growth of £1m in debt charges is
included as a revenue saving as any new capital projects are now to be funded by capital receipts in 2014/15 rather than
additional borrowing.  

Adults – Existing Year and Forecast Future year Budget pressures

In the Revenue Outturn position for 2012/13 Long Term Support for Adults delivered an overspend of £5.8m.  This overspend
was net of an allocation of £1.3m grant available in 2012/13 only.   In 2013/14, a pressure of £8.8m was identi(ed early in the
(nancial year and reported as part of period 4 monitoring. Management action undertaken to ensure the Council’s total
budget is not overspent included a decision by Council on 26 September 2013 to agree virements from other service areas to
cover this overspend in 2013/14.  It was recognised that this pressure, dealt with on a one o0 basis in 2013/14, would likely
continue into 2014/15 and should be budgeted for appropriately.   The Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy
considered by Cabinet on 13 November 2013 included £9m growth for this identi(ed pressure.  This (gure has been revised
and increased to £9.3m as the projected ongoing budget pressure.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 66

P
age 116



In addition to the 2013/14 pressure, demographic trends have been reviewed and highlight that in 2014/15 and beyond,
demand for services, and therefore increasing costs, are likely to continue.

For population projections the authority uses information developed by the Institute of Public Care (IPC) which shows the
possible impact that demography and certain conditions may have on populations.  There are two main systems:  POPPI
(Projecting Older People Population Information) used for information on populations 65 and over and PANSI (Projecting 
Adult Needs and Service Information) which is used for populations aged 18-64.  

The information from POPPI has been used to project local demographic changes for the number of adults using services.
Costs of services will vary depending on what and where care is provided (home based or residential) and also the level of
contribution received from the client.  To project future costs the current split of types of care provided, the costs and the
contributions have been used and costs and contributions have been updated as required for estimated inEation.  
A summary of the growth required is contained in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Growth Assumptions in Adult Services 2014/15-2016/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

Community Based Care 449,254 388,555 tbc*

Care Home Placements 770,132 895,117 tbc*

ALD Transition Cases 647,123 474,819 484,316

Total 1,866,509 1,758,491 tbc*

Provision for growth 1,866,509 1,758,491 1,500,000

*See below

It is recognised that the current pattern of service delivery will change as services are redesigned.  This will mean that the
growth in costs because of demographic changes is o0set by a reduction as the way we provide services changes.  It will be
di5cult to monitor each of these things separately.  The current Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy requires that a
net reduction in Adults services spend of £10m is required over the next 3 years.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 67

P
age 117



The Care Bill currently before Parliament proposes changes to the way Social Care is charged for based on the (ndings of the
Dilnott commission.  Further detail on the impact of the Dilnott report for Shropshire Council was provided for Cabinet in
January.   At present it has not been possible to quantify what (nancial impact the proposed changes will have for Shropshire.
Despite the government’s initial indications that any changes proposed by the Bill will be fully funded by additional funding
being passed to local government, given the current (scal position it is unlikely that all costs will be fully funded or if
additional funding is provided that there will be a reduction to compensate from other areas of local authority funding.  
A (gure of £1.5m has been included as a provision for the potential increase in 2016/17.  As more detail of the proposals
becomes available, (nancial implications will be updated.

Children’s - Existing Year and Forecast Future year Budget pressures

In 2012/13 Children’s services managed a pressure in the area of Looked After Children (LAC) of £0.8m and early in 2013/14,
monitoring reports identi(ed that this pressure had increased and to meet the element that could not be contained by the
service, a virement of £1m was approved by Council on 26 September 2013. Further work has been undertaken to establish
the value of the underlying pressure that needs to be reEected in the on-going budget from 2014/15 onwards. This has been
identi(ed as £2.8m and an allowance to this value has been identi(ed. 

In addition work has been undertaken to establish the value of demographic pressure, resulting from additional LAC cases. 

Table 2: Growth Assumptions in Children’s Services 2014/15-2016/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £

External Placements Growth 274,000 685,000 685,000

Internal Foster Provision Growth 273,750 273,750 273,750

External Foster Care Growth 166,858 166,858 166,858

Other Growth inc 16+ 57,223 57,223 57,223

Provision for growth 771,831 1,182,831 1,182,831

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 68

P
age 118



As with Adult Services, it is recognised that current service delivery patterns will change as services are redesigned.  This will
mean that the growth in costs because of demographic and other changes will be o0set by reductions through new ways in
which we provide services. It will be di5cult to monitor these elements separately, but for current modelling purposes the
Financial Strategy has allowed for growth as identi(ed above, o0set by savings proposals through redesigned services as
provided earlier in the report. 

Investment Fund

A one o0 budget of £2m has been allocated in 2014/15 to be used to fund expenditure required to develop and deliver on
going savings.   Funds will be allocated on the basis of a robust business case identifying an agreed rate of return on the
required investment, which will be modelled to replenish this fund where appropriate.

Repayment to Provisions for Redundancy Costs

The approach taken by the authority to undertake a voluntary redundancy programme was formally closed on 31 January
2014.  It has been estimated that the total cost of this exercise, taking into account requests in future years that have not yet
been authorised is approximately £18.8m.  

To fund these and future VR costs, the balance on the Waste Management Smoothing Reserve has been transferred to the
redundancy reserve. An amount has been left in the Waste Smoothing Reserve to cover the required contributions over the
next 3 (nancial years under the current arrangements, but then base budget growth of £2m has been calculated and built in
from 2016/17 to ensure su5cient funding is available over the remaining life of the contract in line with the original modelled
costs.  The calculation of growth of £2m in base in 2016/17 also allows for the removal of the requirement for the reserve to
accumulate interest.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 69

P
age 119



Contributions to Savings Targets

The changes to growth projections as detailed above has resulted in an overall reduction in the growth requirement from that
originally estimated over the Medium Term Financial Plan period of £2.226m.

The changes to resource projections mean that by 2016/17 the projections are in line with our planning assumptions but that
in both 2014/15 and 2015/16 there are one o0 additional resources from those originally modelled to help manage the
delivery of savings proposals as pro(led over the medium term.

In summary, the work undertaken to review growth and resources has identi(ed a total of up to £6.262m being available to
o0set the funding gap in 2014/15.  This is an improvement on the amount identi(ed in the (nancial strategy considered 
on 15 January 2014 of £0.182m.

Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 70

P
age 120



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 71

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£ £ £

Expenditure

Original Gross Budget Requirement 624,689,073 613,669,446 620,552,991

!"#$%#&'()*+,-'.//),/'01-2'34+314+'1567189:34/

!"!#$%!&'!()*+$,(!!+$!-./01/2! 4,686,190

!"!3&$+4&5+$,!+((6%(!)5&6$7!8$)9:+%*%);<%!=)*+$,( 4,018,880

!"!=%5*+9%(!>5%((65%(!"!?76<4!=%5*+9%( 9,300,000

!"!=%5*+9%!>5%((65%(!"!@:+<75%$A(!=%5*+9%( 2,800,000

!!"!@)5;&$!3)$),%B%$4!C%*+%D $;!<"""

!!"!C%*+%D!&E!C%9:)5,%(!&64(+7%!F%$%5)<!G6$7 =!=<"""

!!"!?((%4!=)<%(!"!C%B&*)<!&E!+$9&B%!(45%)B $;<"""

!"!G654:%5!C%*+%D!&E!;67,%4!+((6%(!+BH)9I$,!&$!-./21/J!)$7!;%K&$7 #<">=<"$" 50,000 50,000

-./21/J!"!L%D!M67,%4!F5&D4:

Inflation

!"!>5+9%( 2,758,931 2,852,381 3,006,053

!"!>)K!/N!)D)57 955,196 885,196 839,083

!"!>)K!O$95%B%$4 896,688 496,988 281,097

!"!>%$(+&$!@&(4( 0 0 3,500,000

!"!?64&!P$5&<B%$4!Q+BH)94(!-./R1/ST 0 0 0

Committed Growth

!"!U%;4!@:)5,%(!QC%769%7!)(!H)54!&E!=)*+$,(T 924,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

New Growth

!"!U%B&,5)H:KV!?76<4(! 1,867,000 1,758,000 1,500,000

!"!U%B&,5)H:KV!!@:+<75%$(!(%5*+9%( 772,000 1,183,000 1,183,000

!"!@&$45+;6I&$!4&!M)<)$9%(!Q5%B&*%!;)(%!;67,%4!E&5!-./21/J!&$D)57(T (5,000,000)

!"!P<%9I&$(!Q-./01/2!&$<KT (700,000)

L%D!=%5*+9%!>5%((65%(

L%D!O$*%(4B%$4!E6$7+$,"!#$%!K%)5!&$<K 2,000,000 (2,000,000)

C%H)K+$,!E&5!;&55&D+$,!E&5!C%76$7)$9+%( 2,000,000

Annex 3 – Financial Summary 2014/15 to 2016/17- Expenditure Projections

P
age 121



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017Annex 3 – Financial Summary 2014/15 to 2016/17 cont. 72

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£ £ £

!"#$%&'()*(+,-&$./)01&(2&3&4)&.(/$(2&'*014&'

=H%9+W9!F5)$4!@:)$,%(!E5&B!>5%*+&6(!X%)5!O$9<67+$,!L%D!C%(H&$(+;+<+I%( 1,485,405 2,724,070 TBC

O$9&B%!@:)$,%( 20,810

M%$%W4(!Q)((6B%!)4!()B%!<%*%<!)(!5%769I&$!+$!C%(&659%(T (197,936)

()*+,-'?*@)/-5,4-/'A3B'/)B67)/,/'94*'*,C81-/

!"!5%B&*%!Y(65H<6(Y!)*)+<);<%!+$!-./01/2!&$<K (736,046)

!"!;6+<7!,5&D4:!4&!9&*%5!$%4!<&((!+$!,5)$4(!QB)Z%!E5&B!(65H<6(!+$!-./01/2T 810,834

DE/,F4+'()*+,-'?*@)/-5,4-/

8(%!&E!L[M!=B&&4:+$, G#<#"H<"""I (1,609,000) (1,909,000)

@&$45+;6I&$(!4&!=)*+$,(!E&5!9:)$,%(!+$!>5&\%9I&$(

!"!L%4!F5&D4:!@:)$,% $<>";<J;" 2,167,600 (3,749,700)

!"!L%4!C%(&659%(!@:)$,%"/21/J!&$%!K%)5!&$<K !<&=&<$=# G!<&=&<$=#I

!"!L%4!C%(&659%(!@:)$,%"/J1/]!!&$%!K%)5!&$<K (170,339) 170,339

Gross Budget Requirement (Including Internal Recharges) Before Savings 658,526,376 620,552,991 628,423,863

C%*+%D!&E!O$4%5$)<!3)5Z%4!!)$7!O$9&B%!;67,%4!)^%5!=)*+$,( (16,490,980)

C%B&*)<!&E!F5&((+$,!6H!)((&9+)4%7!D+4:!O$4%5$)<!3)5Z%4!9&(4( (28,365,950)

Gross Budget Requirement (Excluding Internal Market ) ]/0_]]`_22] ]-._JJ-_``/ ]-S_2-0_S]0

P
age 122



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 73

!""#$%&'()*(+,-."/,&-#(0.1$2&3(04"&543(6-.7-488#(9:);<)=(>(9:)?<)@

!"#$%$&'$(")*+,-. 0.%# 6-.A#25(B4$47#-
&/012314&&5678$9

:&

&/01431;&5678$9

:&

&/01;31<&&5678$9

:&

&'$9=*>(&

?-%%*((*-.*.8

@$*(6)$

B4-C#5(D-4E5.$(+F&88&$7(0#$5-#(>(0,4$7&$7(G..8/ H=I=) 6(D4J&/ ):K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( > G#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(/"#2&N2(P-4$5Q

A-9=> 10B000 C C

?-%%6.*9D&E",-.

R,&52,1-2,(0&J&2(0#$5-# H=I;S T(R&332.' )U9K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( > V&$43(F.-C/(4$%(-#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(2.-".-45#(-#/.1-2#/(4$%(-#J#$1#(2.$5-&W1L.$Q

A-9=> 1F/B000 C C

G=(9$&H=.=8$%$.9

X$(Y#//#3(0.8"./L$7(V42&3&5E H?RB: Z(R.3O# U9=K::: > > V.-(34$%("1-2,4/#/(4/("4-5(.O(Y#.3&4(R4/5#(B4$47#8#$5(2.$5-425K("34$$&$7(4""-.J43(,4/(W##$(-#A#25#%(.$(&$&L43(/&5#(&%#$LN#%(4$%(Y#.3&4(4-#($.F(3..C&$7(5.(

&%#$LOE(($#F(/&5#Q(XO(5,&/(&/(&%#$LN#%(5,#(5-4$/42L.$(2.13%(7.(5,-.17,(&$(U>;(8.$5,/K(.$(5,&/(W4/&/(W1%7#5(/L33(-#[1&-#%(&$(9:);<)=Q(V&$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(

G#/.1-2#/Q

G.4%(Y4$714-%(R4E H?RB\ Z(R.3O# =K::9 > > V&$43(F.-C/((%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(-#J#$1#(2.$5-&W1L.$Q

A-9=> FF0B00/ C C

5$)$=I$%$.9&!$)I*"$(

T#F(\1-&43(+&5#(>(+,-#F/W1-E H?\+) Z(R.3O# )9SK::: > > G#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=> 1/JB000 C C

K*8#L=D(&M&A)=.(+-)9&C&@AN

!9)6"96)=>&H=*.9$.=."$&-O&5)*78$(

\-&%7#714-%(G.33&$7(6-.7-488# H?\P; ](R&33&48/ )K?U:K@:? >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5(4$%(2.8815#%(/18K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

A-9=> 1B;F0B<0; C C

!9)6"96)=>&H=*.9$.=."$&-O&P-=7(

+5-1251-43(B4&$5#$4$2#(.O(6-&$2&"43(G.4%/ H?!V^ I(+$#%%.$ U=:K999 >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

+5-1251-43(B4&$5#$4$2#(.O(+#2.$%4-E(G.4%/ H?!V: I(+$#%%.$ )KU;^KU@S >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

+5-1251-43(B4&$5#$4$2#(.O(G.4%(5.(W#(433.245#% I(+$#%%.$ ^K@=^KU:: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

A-9=> 11B24JBQ00 C C

!9)$$9&@*8#,.8

6-.7-488#(.O(/5-1251-43(-#"342#8#$5(.O(3&7,L$7(2.318$/ H?+Z) G(\1__42.` U::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5(a(-#J#$1#(2.$5-&W1L.$K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

0.$J#-/&.$(.O(+bc(+5-##53&7,5/(5.(d3#25-.$&2(0.$5-.3(P#4- H?+Z9 G(\1__42.` )::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

64-5(T&7,5(Z&7,L$7 H?+ZU G(\1__42.` )::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

A-9=> 400B000 C C

@-"=>&A)=.(+-)9&N>=.&C&R.9$8)=9$7&A)=.(+-)9&N>=.

S$9L-)T&H=.=8$%$.9&=.7&UV"*$."D

(T#5F.-C(B4$47#8#$5(4$%(de2&#$2E(P#$#-43 H?Td) G(\1__42.` ^?UK^@@ >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

A-9=> Q;FBQ<< C C

N6W>*"&A)=.(+-)9

61W3&2(I-4$/".-5(>(P#$#-43 H?6I; G(\1__42.` )=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

A-9=> 140B000 C C

G=>T*.8&=.7&?D">*.8

R43C&$7(4$%(0E23&$7(P#$#-43 H?0f9 G(\1__42.` )K::@K?S: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

A-9=> 1B00<B;J0 C C

!=O$9D&=.7&!+$$7&H=.=8$%$.9

+"##%(B4$47#8#$5(>(P#$#-43 H?+B) G(\1__42.` ^@@KU;U >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V&$4$2#%(O-.8(DOI(7-4$5K(/##(4""#$%&'(U(O.-("-.7-488#(%#54&3/Q

A-9=> Q<<BF2F C C

A-9=>&R.9$8)=9$7&A)=.(+-)9&N>=. FB0QQB000 C C

A-9=>&K*8#L=D(&M&A)=.(+-)9&C&@AN 1;B;JJB;0; C C

!9)=9$8*"&K*8#L=D(&C&S-.&@AN&N)-X$"9&H=.=8$%$.9

03#.W1-E(B.-L8#-(61W3&2(0.$J#$&#$2#/ H?dBU +(\-.F$ UK?S; > > G#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

R,&52,1-2,(I.F$(0#$5-#(X8"-.J#8#$5/ H?6BD H(].$#/ ;K@?; > > G#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(+):?(2.$5-&W1L.$Q

A-9=> JB22J C C

Y>--7&'$O$."$(&M&G=9$)&H=.=8$%$.9

B12,(R#$3.2C(>(V3..%(a(R45#-(B4$47#8#$5 H?VR) D(d%F4-%/ ?::K::: > > +"#2&N2(d$J&-.$8#$5(!7#$2E(O1$%&$7(O.-(5,#(/2,#8#Q

+,&O$43(>(V3..%(a(R45#-(B4$47#8#$5 H?VR; D(d%F4-%/ );:K::: > > +"#2&N2(d$J&-.$8#$5(!7#$2E(O1$%&$7(O.-(5,#(/2,#8#Q

A-9=> <20B000 C C

U.I*)-.%$.9=>&H=*.9$.=."$&C&'$+-9(

D#".5(G#%#J#3."8#$5(>(g$433.245#% H?h:U +(\-.F$ ?))KS?= 634$$#%(%#".5(&8"-.J#8#$5/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(4$%("-1%#$L43(W.--.F&$7Q

D#".5(G#%#J#3."8#$5(>(R,&i$75.$K(b/F#/5-E H?h:= +(\-.F$ 9K::: > > 634$$#%(%#".5(&8"-.J#8#$5/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

D#".5(G#%#J#3."8#$5(>(h.%$#5 H?h:? +(\-.F$ 9K::: 634$$#%(%#".5(&8"-.J#8#$5/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

D#".5(G#%#J#3."8#$5(>(0-4J#$(!-8/ H?h:S +(\-.F$ @:@KS9: > > 634$$#%(%#".5(&8"-.J#8#$5/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

D#".5(G#%#J#3."8#$5(>(+5.1-W-&%7#(G.4%K(\-&%7$.-5, H?h:^ +(\-.F$ ^@KS^9 > > 634$$#%(%#".5(&8"-.J#8#$5/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=>&U.I*)-.%$.9=>&H=*.9$.=."$&C&'$+-9( 1B2/1B4<< C C

A-9=>&?-%%*((*-.*.8 1QB24JB;FF C C

Annex 4 – Capital Programme

P
age 123



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017Annex 4 – Capital Programme cont. 74

!""#$%&'()*(+,-."/,&-#(0.1$2&3(04"&543(6-.7-488#(9:);<)=(>(9:)?<)@

!"#$%$&'$(")*+,-. 0.%# 6-.A#25(B4$47#-
&/012314&&5678$9

:&

&/01431;&5678$9

:&

&/01;31<&&5678$9

:&

&'$9=*>(&

A-9=> 1B41;B000 C C

A-9=>&N6W>*"&N)-9$",-. 1B41;B000 C C

56(*.$((&Z)-L9#&M&N)-(+$)*9D

[*(*9-)&U"-.-%D

B1/&2(h433(G#O1-W&/,8#$5 H=h!^ !(dJ4$/ );:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( G#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

D&7&543&/4L.$(.O(G#2.-%/ H=h!h B(B2H#$_&# =K^@U >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V&$43(#[1&"8#$5("1-2,4/#/(.$(/2,#8#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

G#2.-%/K(!-2,&J#/(a(B1/#18/(+5.-#(>(h.-5.$F..% H=h!6 B(B2H#$_&# =:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V&$43(#[1&"8#$5("1-2,4/#/(.$(/2,#8#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=> 1Q4BQ<F C C

U.9$)+)*($&M&56(*.$((

V..%(d$5#-"-&/#(0#$5-#(>(0.$/5-12L.$(j\4`3#N#3%k HdGUS B(6#8W3#5.$ U=K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( G#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

Z1%3.F(d2.(64-C(63.5(U HdD9: B(6#8W3#5.$ U:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V&$43("4E8#$5/(.$(/2,#8#M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

+,-."/,&-#(+8433(\1/&$#//(Z.4$(+2,#8#(>(6,4/#() HdDU9 B(6#8W3#5.$ )U:K::: )::K:::((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(2.$5-425#%(5.(W#("-.J&%#%K("-.N3#%(4/("#-(2.$5-425/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

+,-."/,&-#(+8433(\1/&$#//(Z.4$(+2,#8#(>(6,4/#(9 HdDU? B(6#8W3#5.$ 9=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(2.$5-425#%(5.(W#("-.J&%#%K("-.N3#%(4/("#-(2.$5-425/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

+,-#F/W1-E(\1/&$#//(64-C(6,4/#(9(d'5#$/&.$ HdDUU B(6#8W3#5.$ ;::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V&$43(F.-C/(4$%(-#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(2.-".-45#(-#/.1-2#/(4$%(-#J#$1#(2.$5-&W1L.$Q

A-9=> J24B000 100B000 C

\697--)&P$")$=,-.

b/F#/5-E(634E(a(G#2-#4L.$43(X8"-.J#8#$5/ H=\0@ B(\3.1$5 =:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( 04"&543(-#2#&"5(O1$%#%("-.A#25Q

I-#O.$#$(634E&$7(6&52,(6,4/#(9(>(D-4&$47#(X8"-.J#8#$5/ H=I=9 B(\3.1$5 U)K;=? >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( d'5#-$43(7-4$5<2.$5-&W1L.$/(j+):?k(O1$%#%("-.A#25Q

+$4&3W#42,(Z#4%(B&$#(h&7,#-(Z#J#3(+5#F4-%/,&" H=I=U 0(D#4$ );SK9^@ >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( d'5#-$43(7-4$5(O1$%#%("-.A#25Q

A-9=> //QB<4F C C

R.O)=(9)6"96)$&M&Z)-L9#&C&Z)-L9#&N-*.9

+,-#F/W1-E(P-.F5,(6.&$5 H?P6) ](h4--&/.$ ==UK::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(-#84&$&$7K(21--#$53E(,#3%(O.-(".//&W3#(-#[1&-#8#$5(O.-((V34'8&33(X8"3#8#$54L.$(/547#("-.A#25K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

V34'8&33(6-.A#25(>(\1/(D#".5(a(+".-5/(a(+.2&43(031W H?P69 ](h4--&/.$ =S:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(-#84&$&$7K(21--#$53E(,#3%(O.-(".//&W3#(-#[1&-#8#$5(O.-((V34'8&33(X8"3#8#$54L.$(/547#("-.A#25K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

+,-#F/W1-E(Y&/&.$ H?P6; ](h4--&/.$ )=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(-#84&$&$7K((N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

V34'8&33(6-.A#25(>(X8"3#8#$54L.$ H?VB) ](h4--&/.$ )K:::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(433.245#%(O.-(V34'8&33(X8"3#8#$54L.$(/547#("-.A#25K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q(V1-5,#-(#'5#-$43(O1$%&$7(,4/($.5(W##$(W1&35(&$5.(5,#(

"-.7-488#(4/(O1$%&$7(2.$5-425/(,4J#($.5(E#5(W##$(/&7$#%(4$%(/2,#8#(2./5/(/L33(W#&$7(F.-C#%(5,-.17,Q

+,-#F/W1-E(Y&/&.$(>(T#F(G&J#-/&%#(D#J#3."8#$5 H?hG) ](h4--&/.$ =::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( UK=::K:::(((((((((((( V1$%&$7("-.J&%#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(O.-(-#O1-W&/,8#$5(.O(G4J#$(B#4%.F/(B13L(+5.-#E(04-("4-C(4/("4-5(.O(G&J#-/&%#(+,.""&$7(0#$5-#(D#J#3."8#$5Q(

I,#/#(/2,#8#(,4/(W##$(-#"-.N3#%(W4/#%(.$(5,#(345#/5("-.A#2L.$/(.$(/2,#8#(%#3&J#-EQ

A-9=> /B<JFB000 C FB400B000

N>=..*.8&N->*"D&C&E]-)7=W>$&K-6(*.8

!l.-%4W3#(h.1/&$7(>(X%/433(0-#/2#$5 H?!hV !(B.-L8#- )@:KU=: > > T#F(W1&3%(4l.-%4W3#(h.1/&$7(/2,#8#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(+):?(8.$&#/Q

!l.-%4W3#(h.1/&$7(>(G.33&$7(V1$% H?!hP !(B.-L8#- UUK=:: U::K::: > T#F(h.8#/(\.$1/(O1$%&$7(5.(W#(433.245#%(4/(/2,#8#/(%#J#3."8#$5M(O1-5,#-(O1$%&$7(43/.(4J4&34W3#(O-.8(+):?(8.$&#/(,#3%Q

!l.-%4W3#(h.1/&$7(>(634/(VE$$.$K(b/F#/5-E H?!hm !(B.-L8#- U::K::: > > P-4$5(O.-(4l.-%4W3#(,.1/&$7(/2,#8#K(+):?(4$%(T#F(h.8#/(\.$1/(O1$%#%(/2,#8#Q

!l.-%4W3#(h.1/&$7(>(+4'.$(V&#3%/K(R#8 H?!hG !(B.-L8#- U9K@@: > > V&$43("4E8#$5(.$(+):?(O1$%#%(/2,#8#Q

+,-#F/W1-E(+#3O(\1&3%(+2,#8# H?!hI !(B.-L8#- 9?:K::: > > I.(%#J#3."(&$O-4/5-1251-#(5.(#$4W3#(/#3O(W1&3%("3.5/(5.(W#(84%#(4J4&34W3#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(T#F(h.8#/(\.$1/Q

D-4"#-/(!38/,.1/#/ H?!hg !(B.-L8#- 9;:K::: > > P-4$5(O.-(4l.-%4W3#(,.1/&$7(/2,#8#K(+):?(O1$%#%(/2,#8#Q

0.881$&5E(Z#%(!l.-%4W3#(h.1/&$7(P-4$5(+2,#8# H?!hY !(B.-L8#- ));K::: ))K;:: > P-4$5(O.-(4l.-%4W3#(,.1/&$7(/2,#8#K(T#F(h.8#/(\.$1/(O1$%#%(/2,#8#Q

!l.-%4W3#(h.1/&$7(0.$5-&W1L.$/(P-4$5(+2,#8#(j+):?k H?!hR !(B.-L8#- U@K=:: > > P-4$5(O.-(4l.-%4W3#(,.1/&$7(/2,#8#K(+):?(O1$%#%(/2,#8#Q

A-9=>&!9)=9$8*"&N>=..*.8&=.7&N6W>*"&R.O-)%=,-. 1B1JJB1/0 F11B200 C

5)-=7W=.7

\-.4%W4$%(6-.A#25(>(B&3#/5.$#(: H\::: 0(I4E3.- U;=K))S )@:K@@@ > ].&$5(O1$%#%("-.A#25(O-.8(\DgH(P-4$5(4$%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/M("-.N3#%(W4/#%(.$(2.$5-425(#$5#-#%(&$5.(F&5,(\IQ

\-.4%W4$%(6-.A#25(>(B&3#/5.$#() H\::) 0(I4E3.- ;K9?:K@)9 UK^::KSS= >

\-.4%W4$%(6-.A#25(>(B&3#/5.$#(9 H\::9 0(I4E3.- 9K=@9KU=: 9K:?=K;@9 >

\-.4%W4$%(6-.A#25(>(B&3#/5.$#(U H\::U 0(I4E3.- > )K?:;K::: >

<B1<JB1J0 <B<21B1F2 C

A-9=>&56(*.$((&Z)-L9#&=.7&N)-(+$)*9D& 1/B2/0B0/; JB14/B4F2 FB400B000

A-9=>&?-%%*((*-.*.8 FFBFQ2B;4Q JB14/B4F2 FB400B000

!"#$%$&'$(")*+,-. 0.%# 6-.A#25(B4$47#-
&/012314&&5678$9

:&

&/01431;&5678$9

:&

&/01;31<&&5678$9

:&

&'$9=*>(&

?-%%*((*-.*.8&C&K$=7(&-O&!$)I*"$

N6W>*"&N)-9$",-.

K-6(*.8&K$=>9#&M&G$>>W$*.8

D&/4W3#%(V42&3&L#/(P-4$5/

H=6:U \(04-#E )KUS)K::: > >

\4/#%(.$("-.A#25#%(7-4$5(O.-(9:);<)=K(433.24L.$(F&33($.5(W#(2.$N-8#%(1$L3(#4-3E(9:);K(4$E(2,4$7#(&$(7-4$5(F&33(W#(4%A1/5#%(&$(5,#(W1%7#5(4/(-#".-5#%(

5,-.17,(5,#(8.$5,3E(24"&543(8.$&5.-&$7(-#".-5Q

B4-C#5(D-4E5.$(d8"5E(6-."#-5E(X$2#$LJ#(P-4$5( H=6); \(04-#E S:K::: > > P-4$5/(433.245#%(O.-(W-&$7(#8"5E("-."#-L#/(W42C(&$5.(1/#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(T#F(h.8#/(\.$1/(-#J#$1#(8.$&#/QQ

b/F#/5-E(!-#4(d8"5E(6-."#-5E(X$2#$LJ#(P-4$5 H=6)= \(04-#E ==K::: > > P-4$5/(433.245#%(O.-(W-&$7(#8"5E("-."#-L#/(W42C(&$5.(1/#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(T#F(h.8#/(\.$1/(-#J#$1#(8.$&#/QQ

P
age 124



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017Annex 4 – Capital Programme cont. 75

d4-3E(f#4-/(a(0,&3%24-# HUZ99 +(R&3C&$/ )::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.(d4-3E(f#4-/(/2,#8#/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

IF.(f#4-(b3%(V1$%&$7(O.-(d4-3E(d%124L.$ HUZ!) +(R&3C&$/ S9K;=; >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(-#>"-.N3#%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/K(2.88&`#%(5.("-.J&%&$7(7-4$5/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

B#-#/&%#(6-&84-E(>(9(f-(b3%/ HUZ:? +(R&3C&$/ )::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

0-.F8..-(6-&84-E(>(D#J#3."8#$5(.O(9(E#4-(.3%("342#/ HUZ:S +(R&3C&$/ U9K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=> F12B242 C C

?#*>7)$.^(&P$(*7$.,=>&?=)$

h4J#$W-..C(>(d'5#-$43(\1&3%&$7/(0.$J#-/&.$ HU!;@ H(\-4%/,4F UUK^;^ >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(O.-(F.-C/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=> FFBQ2Q C C

A-9=>&?#*>7)$.^(&!=O$86=)7*.8 F2JB20F C C

@$=).*.8&M&!T*>>(

N)*%=)D&!"#-->(

6-&84-E(+2,..3(\4/&2(T##% HU!c] 6(R&3/.$ ^S=K?;9 )K@:^K@S;(((((((((((( )K@^=K9@U(((((((((((( T#F();<)=K()=<)?K()?<)@(\4/&2(T##%(433.24L.$(4$%()U<);(O1$%&$7(\<VM(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.($#F(/2,#8#/(5.(W#(&%#$LN#%Q

6-&84-E(+2,..3(G#O1-W&/,8#$5 HU!cH 6(R&3/.$ @9UKS;: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(\<V(O-.8()U<);M(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.($#F(/2,#8#/(5.(W#(&%#$LN#%Q

d33#/8#-#(6-&84-E(\4/&2(T##% HU!c) 6(R&3/.$ U=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/<+):?(8.$&#/Q

R,&52,1-2,(>(\4/&2(T##% HU)S9 6(R&3/.$ 9^:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

h&7,3#E(>(G#2.$N71-#(be2#(!-#4(a(!22#//&W3#(I.&3#5 HU!:S 6(R&3/.$ 9:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

B.-J&33#((>(+#21-#(Z.WWE HU!)@ 6(R&3/.$ @:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

\1&3%F4/(6-&84-E(>(D#8.1$54W3#(I.&3#5/(G#O1-W&/,8#$5 HU!=U 6(R&3/.$ ?:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

H&$3#5(6-&84-E(>(h#4%/(be2#<66!<Z.WWE(R.-C/ HU!=; 6(R&3/.$ =:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

G4%W-..C(6-&84-E(>(+#21-#(Z.WWE HU!=@ 6(R&3/.$ U:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

h4$F..%(6-&84-E(>(+#21-#(Z.WWE(4$%(be2#(R.-C/ HU!=S 6(R&3/.$ @:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

R.-5,#$(6-&84-E(>(+#21-#(Z.WWE HU!=^ 6(R&3/.$ U:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

+5(Z4F-#$2#K(0,1-2,(+5-#`.$(>(+#21-#(Z.WWE(a(be2#(d'5#$/&.$ HU!?: 6(R&3/.$ ?:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

R#/5(V#35.$(6-&84-E(>(Z.WWE<be2#<+54l-..8(X8"-.J#8#$5/ HU!?? 6(R&3/.$ @^K^:: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

0,#/F4-%&$#(>(0-#45#(X$5#-$43(+54l-..8 HU!@: 6(R&3/.$ ;:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=> /BJ4QBFJ/ 1B<0QB<J2 1B<Q4B/<F

!"#-->&E%=>8=%=,-.(

+2,..3(!8437484L.$/(>(0.$L$7#$2E HU:?) 6(R&3/.$ 9USK9;U >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( 0.$L$7#$2E(&$(24/#(.O(.J#-/"#$%(.$(#'&/L$7(/2,#8#/K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/

+,4FW1-E(6-&84-E(<(+5(B4-En/(!8437484L.$ HU9:@ 6(R&3/.$ ))=K)): >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(-#[1&-#%(5.(2.8"3#5#(/2,#8#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

+5(B4-L$/(>(!33(I,-.17,(+2,..3 HU9:S 6(R&3/.$ )K:9)K=;; >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(-#[1&-#%(5.(2.8"3#5#(/2,#8#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(4$%(DOd(7-4$5Q

A-9=> 1BF<2BJQ< C C

!$"-.7=)D&!"#-->(

+#2.$%4-E(+2,..3(G#O1-W&/,8#$5 HU\cH 6(R&3/.$ )S@KS;: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(\<V(O-.8()U<);M(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.($#F(/2,#8#/(5.(W#(&%#$LN#%Q

B#.3#(\-42#(T#F(V3..-(034//-..8(+@ HU\:S 6(R&3/.$ 9=K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(/2,#8#(O.-();<)=K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(DOd(7-4$5Q

Z1%3.F(+2,..3(G#O1-W(.O(+2&#$2#(034//-..8/ HU\)? 6(R&3/.$ 9):K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(/2,#8#(O.-();<)=K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(DOd(7-4$5Q

Z42.$(0,&3%#(G#O1-W(.O(+2&#$2#(034//-..8/ HU\)@ 6(R&3/.$ ))=K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(/2,#8#(O.-();<)=K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(DOd(7-4$5Q

b3%W1-E(R#33/(X8"-.J#%(+2&#$2#(G..8<!-5/ HU\)S 6(R&3/.$ =SK::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(/2,#8#(O.-();<)=K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(DOd(7-4$5Q

I,.84/(!%48/(g"7-4%#(0,4$7&$7(G..8/ HU\)^ 6(R&3/.$ =SK::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(/2,#8#(O.-();<)=K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(DOd(7-4$5Q

B#.3#(\-42#(+".-5(0,4$7&$7(G..8(G#O1-W HU\9: 6(R&3/.$ @:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(/2,#8#(O.-();<)=K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(DOd(7-4$5Q

A-9=> </FBJ20 C C

`.*I$)(=>&R.O=.9&Y)$$&!"#-->&H$=>(

g$&J#-/43(X$O4$5(V-##(+2,..3(B#43/ 6(R&3/.$ 4J<BF;4 C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& V1$%&$7(\<V(O-.8()U<);M(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.($#F(/2,#8#/(5.(W#(&%#$LN#%Q

A-9=> 4J<BF;4 C C

E &H=.=8$%$.9&N>=.&C&?-.7*,-.3!6*9=W*>*9D

E76>9&!$)I*"$(

!-"*=>&?=)$&\+$)=,-.(

E76>9&!-"*=>&?=)$

!%135/(>(D.h(P-4$5 H=\@) G(h.17,5.$ ;=:K::: U);K??U((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(D.h(7-4$5(O1$%&$7(K(5.(W#("-.J&/&.$433E(433.245#%((5.(%#J#3."8#$5(.O(;($#F(+1"".-5#%(Z&J&$7(W1$743.F/K(F,&2,(F&33(4`-425(4%%&L.$43(D#J#3."8#$5(

I-1/5(O1$%&$7Q

I#3#24-#(0433(B.$&5.-&$7 H=\SS G(h.17,5.$ 9::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(W-.17,5(O.-F4-%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(a(\<V(7-4$5Q

XI<B.W&3#(V3#'&W3#(R.-C&$7 H=\S^ G(h.17,5.$ )=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(W-.17,5(O.-F4-%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(a(\<V(7-4$5Q

H#8"/N#3%(>(+"#2&43&/5(!22.88.%4L.$ H=\^: G(h.17,5.$ )::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(W-.17,5(O.-F4-%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(a(\<V(7-4$5Q

+4O#(6342#(h1W(>(!ZDn/(Z.1&/#(h.1/# H=\^) G(h.17,5.$ =:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(W-.17,5(O.-F4-%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(a(\<V(7-4$5Q

D#J#3."8#$5(I-1/5(\1$743.F(>(G4J#$(+&5#K(B4-C#5(D-4E5.$ H=\^; G(h.17,5.$ U=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( b$7.&$7(/2,#8#K(O1-5,#-(8452,(5.(W#(W1&35(&$((O-.8(D#J#3."8#$5(I-1/5(.$2#(2.$N-84L.$(-#2#&J#%Q(

!%135(+.2&43(04-#(0.881$&5E(04"&543(P-4$5(+2,#8# H=\:) G(h.17,5.$ ;:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(W-.17,5(O.-F4-%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(a(\<V(7-4$5Q

XI(h4-%F4-#(>(X8"3#8#$54L.$(.O(04-#(\&33 H=\:9 G(h.17,5.$ ;:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(W-.17,5(O.-F4-%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(a(\<V(7-4$5Q

d'5-4(04-#(X$&L4LJ# H=\:U G(h.17,5.$ U^K@^) >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(W-.17,5(O.-F4-%(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/(a(\<V(7-4$5Q

A-9=>&E(($((%$.9&M&U>*8*W*>*9D 1B21QB<Q1 F12B;;F C

A-9=>&E76>9&!$)I*"$( 1B21QB<Q1 F12B;;F C

?#*>7)$.^(&!$)I*"$(

?#*>7)$.^(&!=O$86=)7*.8

U=)>D&_$=)(&

!"#$%$&'$(")*+,-. 0.%# 6-.A#25(B4$47#-
&/012314&&5678$9

:&

&/01431;&5678$9

:&

&/01;31<&&5678$9

:&

&'$9=*>(&

P
age 125



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017Annex 4 – Capital Programme cont. 76

P$(-6)"$(&M&!6++-)9

?6(9-%$)&?=)$&M&!6++-)9&!$)I*"$(

N)-+$)9D&!$)I*"$(

D&/4W&3&L#/(D&/2-&8&$4L.$(!25(j.5,#-(5,4$(/2,..3/k Hcc)S +(]42C/.$ =:K::: =:K:::((((((((((((((((( =:K:::((((((((((((((((( b$7.&$7(W1%7#5(5.(8##5(Z#743(.W3&74L.$(.O(DD!K(O1$%#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

Z.-%(h&33(+5451#(G#"4&-/ H0+:) +(]42C/.$ =:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V&$43(F.-C/(4$%(-#5#$L.$(%1#(.$(/2,#8#();<)=M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(2.-".-45#(-#/.1-2#/Q

+,&-#,433(>(G#"342#(G..O(0-.F$(0.1-5/ H0+:9 +(]42C/.$ )?SK::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( \1%7#5(-#>"-.N3#%(O-.8()U<);K(/2,#8#(5.(W#(-#4//#//#%M(N$4$2#%(O-.8(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

/;JB000 40B000 40B000

A-9=>&?6(9-%$)&?=)$&M&!6++-)9&!$)I*"$( /;JB000 40B000 40B000

A-9=>&P$(-6)"$(&M&!6++-)9 /;JB000 40B000 40B000

A-9=>&Z$.$)=>&Y6.7&?=+*9=>&N)-8)=%%$ 2JB/44BJ4; 10B//;BQJ1 4BF24B/<F

K-6(*.8&P$I$.6$&E""-6.9

H=X-)&P$+=*)(&N)-8)=%%$&C&!?&?-.9)="9(

h.1/&$7(B4A.-(G#"4&-/(6-.7-488# H=6:) 6(B2P-#4-E ;U:K::: UK9::K::: >

H&52,#$/(a(\45,-..8/ H=69: 6(B2P-#4-E ;::K::: > >

D&/4W3#%(!%4"54L.$/ H=69; 6(B2P-#4-E U=:K::: > >

G#"342#8#$5(D..-/ H=6;) 6(B2P-#4-E U::K::: > >

G..N$7 H=6;9 6(B2P-#4-E )::K::: > >

h#4L$7(X$/54334L.$/ H=6;U 6(B2P-#4-E =::K::: > >

!/W#/5./(G#8.J43 H=6;= 6(B2P-#4-E =::K::: > >

X$/134L.$ H=6;? 6(B2P-#4-E ?::K::: > >

B4A.-(R.-C/(6-.7-488# H=6=? 6(B2P-#4-E )::K::: > >

FB/J0B000 FB/00B000 C

H=X-)&P$+=*)(&N)-8)=%%$&C&!AEP&K-6(*.8&?-.9)="9(

+I!G(h.1/&$7(G#F&-#/ H=G:9 6(B2P-#4-E U::K:::

+I!G(d3#25-&243(G#8#%&43(R.-C/ H=G:; 6(B2P-#4-E ;=:K:::

+I!G(G..N$7 H=G:= 6(B2P-#4-E )::K:::

+I!G(B4A.-(R.-C/ H=G:? 6(B2P-#4-E )=:K:::

1B000B000 C C

S$L&56*>7&N)-8)=%%$

h.1/&$7(T#F(\1&3%(6-.7-488# H=T\) 6(B2P-#4-E =KS):KS^: S@K:^:((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( T#F(W1&3%("-.7-488#K(N$4$2#%(O-.8(BG!K(hG!(-#J#$1#(4$%(24"&543(-#2#&"5/(O-.8(/43#(.O("-."#-L#/(W1&35Q

4BJ10BJQ0 J<B0Q0 C

A-9=>&K-6(*.8&P$I$.6$&E""-6.9 10B0Q0BJQ0 FB/J<B0Q0 C

A-9=>&?=+*9=>&N)-8)=%%$ 4JBF2;B<2; 1FB412B0<1 4BF24B/<F

\4/#%(.$(4J4&34W3#(B4A.-(G#"4&-/(!33.F4$2#(V1$%&$7(&$(hG!(W1/&$#//("34$K("31/(W1%7#5(\<V(O-.8(9:)U<);Q(!33.245#%(5.(/"#2&N2(/2,#8#/(/.(O4-*

E(($9&H=.=8$%$.9&N>=.&C&?-.7*,-.3!6*9=W*>*9D

!B6(0.$%&L.$ HUG9; 6(R&3/.$ UK)?)K)?= >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(\<V(O-.8()U<);(4$%($#F("-.A#25#%(O1$%&$7M(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.($#F(/2,#8#/(5.(W#(&%#$LN#%Q

0.3#,48(6-&84-E(>(+5.$#F.-C(G#"4&-/ HUG;? 6(R&3/.$ U:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

03#.W1-E(B.-L8#-(6-&84-E(>(-#>F&-# HUG!@ 6(R&3/.$ )):K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

G1/,W1-E(6-&84-E(G#(G..O(6&52,(G..O HUGD9 6(R&3/.$ @:KS=: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

G1/,W1-E(6-&84-E(>(0,&8$#E(D#8.3&L.$ HUGDU 6(R&3/.$ ):K^:: >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=> FBFJ/BQ14 C C

Y*)$&!=O$9D&!"#$%$(

V&-#(+4O#5E(>(g$433.245#% HUY:) 6(R&3/.$ U::K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(\<V(O-.8()U<);M(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.($#F(/2,#8#/(5.(W#(&%#$LN#%Q

V&-#(+4O#5E(>(G4%W-..C HUY;= 6(R&3/.$ 9:K;?S >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

V&-#(+4O#5E(>(+,&O$43 HUY;? 6(R&3/.$ 9@K=9^ >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

V&-#(+4O#5E(>(R,&52,1-2,(X$O4$5/ HUY;@ 6(R&3/.$ 9;KS?) >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

V&-#(+4O#5E(>(h&7,3#E HUY;S 6(R&3/.$ 99K?^^ >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( +2,#8#(/3&""#%(O-.8()U<);K(N$4$2#%(0.-".-45#(G#/.1-2#/Q

A-9=> FQ4B44< C C

!+$"*=>&U76"=,-.&S$$7(

+2,..3/(!22#//(X$&L4LJ#(0.$L$7#$2E HU0=: 6(R&3/.$ 9=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(\<V(O-.8()U<);M(5.(W#(433.245#%(5.($#F(/2,#8#/(5.(W#(&%#$LN#%Q

+"#2&43(d%124L.$(G#O1-W&/,8#$5 HU0c: 6(R&3/.$ S=:K::: >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( V1$%&$7(\<V(O-.8()U<);M(/2,#8#(%#J#3."#%(O.-(%#3&J#-E(&$(9:);<)=Q

A-9=> 1B100B000 C C

?-.,.8$."D

+434-E(0.$L$7#$2E HU:=: 6(R&3/.$ 9::K::: C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& T#F("-.A#25#%(7-4$5(O1$%&$7K(&O(4%%&L.$43(O##/(F.-C/(-#[1&-#%Q

A-9=> /00B000 C C

'$I->I$7&Y-)%6>=&?=+*9=>

D#J.3J#%(V.-8134(04"&543(>(!33.245#%(WE(/2,..3/ 6(R&3/.$ 2,201,047 >(((((((((((((((((((((( >(((((((((((((((((((((( !33.245#%(%&-#25(5.(/2,..3/K(2.8W&$4L.$(.O(7-4$5(\<V(O-.8("-#J&.1/(E#4-/(4$%(#/L845#%(7-4$5(O.-();<)=Q

A-9=>&@$=).*.8&M&!T*>>(& 1/BJ/4B00F 1B<0QB<J2 1B<Q4B/<F

A-9=>&?#*>7)$.^(&!$)I*"$( 1FB1<FB20; 1B<0QB<J2 1B<Q4B/<F

!"#$%$&'$(")*+,-. 0.%# 6-.A#25(B4$47#-
&/012314&&5678$9

:&

&/01431;&5678$9

:&

&/01;31<&&5678$9

:&

&'$9=*>(&

P
age 126



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017Annex 4 – Capital Programme cont. 77

b5,#-(0.$5-&W1L.$/ )K:::((((((((((((((((((( > >

FJ/B41/&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

P$I$.6$&?-.9)*W6,-.(&9-&?=+*9=> /BJ04B/Q2&&&&&&&&&&&& F11B200&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

H=X-)&P$+=*)(&E>>-L=."$ ;B/QFBF12&&&&&&&&&&&& FB/00B000&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

?-)+-)=9$&P$(-6)"$(&a?=+*9=>&P$"$*+9(3&N)67$.,=>&5-))-L*.8b 1FB<42B0Q0&&&&&&&&&& JB/Q/BJJ<&&&&&&&&&&&& FB440B000&&&&&&&&&&&&

A-9=>&?-.c)%$7&Y6.7*.8 4JBF2;B<2;&&&&&&&&&& 1FB412B0<1&&&&&&&&&& 4BF24B/<F&&&&&&&&&&&&

Y*.=."*.8

!$>O&Y*.=."$7&N)67$.,=>&5-))-L*.8 /;1B12/&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Z-I$).%$.9&Z)=.9(

D#"4-58#$5(.O(I-4$/".-5 )?K9^^K:::(((((((((( > >

D#"4-58#$5(.O(h#435, )K)=)K^??(((((((((((( > >

D#"4-58#$5(O.-(d%124L.$

>(0.$%&L.$(04"&543(P-4$5 ;K9@=K;^^(((((((((((( > >

>(\4/&2(T##%(04"&543(P-4$5 ;^9KS9)((((((((((((((( )K@:^K@S;(((((((((((( )K@^=K9@U((((((((((((

>(g$&J#-/43(X$O4$5(V-##(+2,..3(B#43/ =S@KU?=((((((((((((((( > >

>(D#J.3J#%(V.-8134(04"&543 9K)S?K=9=(((((((((((( > >

D&/4W3#%(V42&3&L#/(P-4$5/ )K:S)K:::(((((((((((( > >

h0!(>(T#F(\1&3% S^;K:::((((((((((((((( > >

\DgH(>(\-.4%W4$% ?K@)^KU);(((((((((((( > >

d$J&-.$8#$5(!7#$2E @9:K?:)((((((((((((((( > >

F2B20JB0Q1&&&&&&&&&& 1B<0QB<J2&&&&&&&&&&&& 1B<Q4B/<F&&&&&&&&&&&&

\9#$)&Z)=.9(

+".-5/(d$734$% 9^K;::((((((((((((((((( > >

T451-43(d$734$% );SK9^@((((((((((((((( > >

b5,#-(P-4$5/ 9?;K?:?((((((((((((((( > >

22/BF0F&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&& C&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

\9#$)&?-.9)*W6,-.(

+#2L.$():? US)K=)9((((((((((((((( > >

!"#$%$&'$(")*+,-. 0.%# 6-.A#25(B4$47#-
&/012314&&5678$9

:&

&/01431;&5678$9

:&

&/01;31<&&5678$9

:&

&'$9=*>(&

P
age 127



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 78

!"#$%&'#(&$ )$#*"%$ +$,$-"./01"$%$ 1#'2'-(3 4567869

:

456986;

:

456;86<

:

8200&--&2$&$9 :&6131&#- ;<5.20#-(=21(8<-520#1- >#4=(>#17&.#(?3./&$#-*(@#A<&1#%(52(/#4"(%#4&7#1(1#.<11#$5(1#7#$<#(-37&$9-B CDDEDDD F

8200&--&2$&$9 G3-5#(?3$39#0#$5 @#$#92H35#(82$513.5- I$5#44&9#$5(84&#$5(>J-5#0*(+#,(-2K,31#(=21(5/#(02$&521&$9(2=("#1=2103$.#(<$%#1(5/#(G3-5#(?3$39#0#$5(

.2$513.5B(L<15/#1(%#53&4-(1#A<&1#%(3-(52(,/35(5/#(MNDEDDD(&-(=21(3-(03J($25(6#(#4&9&64#(.3"&534(#'"#$%&5<1#B

NDEDDD F F

8200&--&2$&$9 O$5#1"1&-#(P(Q<-&$#-- R13%#(=21(S<64&.(S12T5 >53$4#J(:3$#(I$%<-51&34(O-535#*(I$&H34(,21U-(52("1#"31#(5/#(-&5#(=21(%#7#42"0#$5(2=($#,(,21U-/2"(<$&5-B CVDEDDD F

8200&--&2$&$9 W&-&521(O.2$20J !(,21U=21.#(5/35(T5- !.52$(>.2X(Y&-521&.(G21U&$9(L310*(82$-24&%35#-(5/#(1#53&4(3$%(H.U#H$9(31#3E(1#%<.&$9(-53Z$9(.2-5-("#1(3$$<0(6J(

312<$%(MCDEDDDB

[\EDDD F F

!%<45(>#17&.#- !%<45(>2.&34(831# Q<&4%&$9(2<5.20#-(=21(.<-520#1- ]#7#42"0#$5(2=(><""215#%(:&7&$9(>#17&.#-(=21(!%<45-(,&5/(:#31$&$9(]&-36&4&H#-B(+30#4J(5/#(%#7#42"0#$5(2=(^(

=<15/#1(><""215#%(:&7&$9(6<$9342,-(35(!%%#14#J(@23%E(?31U#5(]13J52$_(:2$%2$(@23%E(>/1#,-6<1J(3$%(5,2(=<15/#1(

-&5#-(52(6#(&%#$HT#%B(R/#-#(%#7#42"0#$5-(,&44(6#("315(T$3$.#%(6J(5/#(]#7#42"0#$5(R1<-5E(6<5(,&44(34-2(1#A<&1#(

-20#(035./(=<$%&$9(6J(5/#(82<$.&4B(I5(&-("43$$#%(52(3442.35#(5/#()DC^`CV(!%<45-(.3"&534(913$5(52,31%-(5/#-#(

%#7#42"0#$5-(3$%(,21U(&-(2$92&$9(52(%#7#42"(5/#("43$-(3$%(.2-5-(=21(#3./(-&5#(3$%(<$H4(5/35(&-(&$("43.#E(5/#(

=<$%&$9(=120(5/#(]#7#42"0#$5(R1<-5(.3$$25(6#(.2$T10#%B(

I$.4<%#%(&$(

#'&-H$9(

"1291300#

F F

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8200#1.&34(>#17&.#- >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% S5310&93$(Q<&4%&$9(F((I$-53443H2$(2=(($#,(52&4#5-*(@#A<&1#%(52(&$.1#3-#(2..<"3$.J(2=(6<&4%&$9(3-(&$(.<11#$54J(

1#-51&.5#%(2$(/#345/(P(-3=#5J(912<$%-B(>./#0#(4&$U#%(52(!..2002%3H2$(>5135#9J(3$%(,&44(#$364#(021#(-53b(52(6#(

42.35#%(&$(5/#(S5310&93$(Q<&4%&$9E(1#4#3-&$9(25/#1("12"#1H#-(=21(%&-"2-34B(

^DEDDD(((((((((( F F

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8200#1.&34(>#17&.#- >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% 821"2135#(:3$%421%*(!-("315(2=(5/#(821"2135#(:3$%421%(02%#4(-20#(.3"&534(&$7#-50#$5(03J(6#(1#A<&1#%(,/#1#(3(

03c21(03&$5#$3$.#(4&36&4&5J(&-(&%#$HT#%E(,/#1#(.2$%&H2$(/3-(%#5#1&2135#%(52(-<./(3$(#'5#$5E(%<#(52("1#--<1#(2$(

5/#(821"2135#(@#"3&1-(P(?3&$5#$3$.#(6<%9#5B(

>20#(.3"&534(#'"#$%&5<1#(03J(34-2(6#(1#A<&1#%(&$(21%#1(52(#$364#(5/#(=<5<1#(%&-"2-34(2=(-20#("12"#1H#-E(-<./(3-(

,/#1#(3..#--(52(3("12"#15J($##%-(52(6#(-"4&5B(R/#-#(,&44(6#(.2$-&%#1#%(63-#%(2$(&$%&7&%<34("12c#.5(3""13&-34-(3$%(

-/2<4%(6#(-#4=(T$3$.#%(3-(5/#-#(,21U-(,&44(#$364#(3(=<15/#1(3--#5-(52(6#(%&-"2-#%E(345/2<9/(5/#1#(03J(6#(3(-/215(

5#10("1#--<1#(3-(5/#(,21U-(,&44(6#(1#A<&1#%(&$(3%73$.#(2=(5/#(%&-"2-34(3$%(03J(.12--(T$3$.&34(J#31-B

RQ8 RQ8 RQ8

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8200#1.&34(>#17&.#- >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% @#T5(2=(Q<&4%&$9-*(O-H035#(2=(4&U#4J(.2-5-(2=(1#Td$9(6<&4%&$9-(%<#(52(3..2002%3H2$(027#-(1#A<&1#%(6<5(.2<4%(6#(

/&9/#1(%#"#$%&$9(2$(5/#(2"H2$(./2-#$B

\DDEDDD(((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8200#1.&34(>#17&.#- ;<5.20#-(=21(8<-520#1- e$&7#1-&5J(S12c#.5*(G21U(6#&$9(<$%#153U#$(312<$%(9#d$9(5/#(<$&7#1-&5J(<"(3$%(1<$$&$9B(!,3&H$9(%#53&4-(2=(,/35(

-5<%#$5($<06#1-(31#(4&U#4J(52(6#(&$(625/(>#"5(C^(3$%(>#"5(CVE(6<5(,#(.2<4%(6#(51J&$9(52(.1#35#(/344-(2=(1#-&%#$.#(

=21(<"(52([DD(-5<%#$5-B(82-5-(,&44(%#"#$%(7#1J(0<./(2$(,/35(,#(3.A<&1#B

RQ8 RQ8 RQ8

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 :#934(>5135#9J(P(]#02.13H. R13%#(=21(S<64&.(S12T5 @#"43.#0#$5(2=(Q34425(Q225/-*(@#"43.#0#$5(2=(C^[(Q34425(Q225/-(=21(Y#345/(P(>3=#5J(@#3-2$-(F(,&44(9#$#135#(021#(

&$.20#(=120(/&1&$9(2<5B(

^[E\CV(((((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8<-520#1(I$7247#0#$5 >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% ?26&4#(82$513.5(@#"43.#0#$5(*(S12.<1#0#$5(12<5#(&-(&$("43.#E(345#1$3H7#(&-(52("12.<1#(5/12<9/(ISPO(R13%#(82E(

#-H035#%(.2-5(.B(MfDU_(/3-(6##$(&%#$HT#%(.3$(6#(=<$%#%(=120(IR(6<%9#5E(-2($2(.3"&534(.200&50#$5(1#A<&1#%B

F(((((((((((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8<-520#1(I$7247#0#$5 >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% :J$.(R#4#"/2$J(@2442<5*(!""13&-34(1#.#&7#%(3$%((3""127#%(&$("1&$.&"34(F(3,3&H$9(5#$%#1(.2$T103H2$B(!""127#%((3-(

-#4=(T$3$.&$9(62112,&$9(g52(6#(1#"3&%(=120(1#7#$<#(-37&$9-hBMCifU(&%#$HT#%(=120(513$-=2103H2$E(4#37#-(3(

"25#$H34(-/21j344(2$(5/#("<1./3-&$9(2=(/3$%-#5-(2=(3""12'B(M[DDUB

[DDEDDD(((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8<-520#1(I$7247#0#$5 >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% OA<&513.(I0"4#0#$53H2$*(@#%<.H2$(&$(Y31%,31#B(82-5(.BM)VUB(L<15/#1(%#53&4-(1#A<&1#%E(03J($25(6#`344(6#(.3"&534(

#'"#$%&5<1#B(+2(42$9#1(6#&$9(1244#%(2<5(=21()DC^`CV(35("1#-#$5B

F(((((((((((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8<-520#1(I$7247#0#$5 >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% O]@?>(@2442<5*(MCNDU(341#3%J(-"#$5E("12c#.5(<$%#1,3J(52(1#"43.#(?;@>OB(L<15/#1(%#53&4-(1#A<&1#%E(03J($25(6#`344(

6#(.3"&534(#'"#$%&5<1#B(MCN\U(3442.35#%(&$(R13$-=2103H2$(,/&./(3--<0#%(,&44(.27#1(5/#-#(.2-5-E(<$4#--(=<15/#1(

.3"&534(&$7#-50#$5(&-(1#A<&1#%B

F(((((((((((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8<-520#1(I$7247#0#$5 >#44(3--#5-(%2$a5($##% ?27#(#'./3$9#(52(.42<%*(?&913H2$(1#A<&1#%B(Y31%,31#(1#=1#-/(1#A<&1#%(&$()DC^(35(MVDDU(,/&./(0#3$-(5/#(-/&K(52(

842<%(&-(./#3"#1B(@#42.3H2$(.2-5-($#935#%B(L<15/#1(%#53&4-(1#A<&1#%E(03J($25(6#`344(6#(.3"&534(#'"#$%&5<1#B

)DDEDDD(((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8<-520#1(I$7247#0#$5 k#12(63-#%(6<%9#5(P(6<-&$#--("43$$&$9 O4#.512$&.(?3&4(@220(I0"4#0#$53H2$*(Q3-#%(2$(21&9&$34(6<-&$#--(.3-#(=120()DC)E(,&44($##%(1#7&-&H$9E(/2,#7#1(

5/&-(&-(3(-#17&.#(,#(.2<4%("12.<1#(l3-(3(-#17&.#lE(,#(.3$$25(/2-5(2$("1#0&-#B(O'.4<%#-(8@(&0"3.5B(L<15/#1(%#53&4-(

1#A<&1#%E(03J($25(6#`344(6#(.3"&534(#'"#$%&5<1#B

VDDEDDD(((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 8<-520#1(I$7247#0#$5 >52"(G3-5# ]&-3-5#1(@#.27#1J`>&$94#(W&#,(2=(5/#(8<-520#1`]#.200&--&2$&$9(*(>#17&.#-(6<$%4#%(,&5/&$(5/&-(2b#1(,2<4%(/37#(3(

1#5<1$(2$(&$7#-50#$5(=21(6#$#T5-(=13<%E(.2<$.&4(53'(=13<%E(9#$#1&.(=13<%(3$%(,&44("127&%#(5/#(2193$&-3H2$(,&5/(3(

%#.200&--&2$&$9("43$(,/&./(&-(1#A<&1#%(=21(027&$9(5/#(%353(.#$51#(3$%(1#%<.&$9(5/#(%353(.#$51#(027#(.2-5-B((I$(

3%%&H2$("127&%#-(5/#(.2<$.&4(,&5/(-&$94#(7&#,(2=(.<-520#1(3$%(6<-&$#--(&$5#44&9#$.#(,/&./(-5315-(52("<5(&$("43.#(

"1#7#$H2$(-#17&.#-(g1#A<&1#%(3-(3$(2<5.20#(2=(5/#(6<-&$#--("43$$&$9("12.#--(3.12--(344(31#3-hB((L<15/#1(%#53&4-(

1#A<&1#%E(03J($25(6#`344(6#(.3"&534(#'"#$%&5<1#B

iV\EDDD(((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

@#-2<1.#-(P(><""215 L&$3$.#(P(!--<13$.# k#12(63-#%(6<%9#5(P(6<-&$#--("43$$&$9 S12.<1#(52(S3J(gS)Sh*(S25#$H34(I$7#-50#$5(1#A<&1#%(&=($#,(-J-5#0(52(6#(&0"4#0#$5#%B CDDEDDD(((((((( F((((((((((((( F(((((((((((((

='&(30>(-$,0'/0%?##$/&0$-@A(&$-B CD594D55500000 E0000000000000 E0000000000000

Annex 5 – New Delivery proposals to be developed

P
age 128



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017 79

( ( ( ( ( ( (

Funding in capital Programme £

@A8(B(C5&$;#$5$D#(E=:DF --GHI)G,,,((((((

@A8(B(J$;#295;#%(895$7":9;(E=:DF +G)K0G,,,((((((((

@A8(B(L:D5=(MN7;5&$5O=#(895$7":9;(PN$% I-.G,,,(((((((((((

@A8(B(!%%&Q:$5=(1&234567(C5&$;#$5$D#(PN$%&$2 -G++IG,,,((((((((

R;3#9(S95$; +T.GT,T(((((((((((

U#V#$N#(<:$;9&ONQ:$(;:(<5"&;5= -+0G,,,(((((((((((

!"#"$$#"%"&&&&&&

DfT - 

Maintenance 

Block

DfT - Additional 

Highways 

Maintenance Funding

DfT - 

Integrated 

Transport 

Block

DfT - Local 

Sustainable 

Transport Fund

Other Grant Revenue

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Highways

Structural Maintenance of Bridges

Bridgeguard Rolling Programme  K6BG4  J Williams 1,630,706          1,366,100          - - 264,606          

>=5$$#%(>9:295??#(:A(4:9F7(;:(&$D=N%#(;3#(A:==:4&$2(7D3#?#7G(&$D=N%&$2(D:$7N=;5$D6(A##7G(=5$%(D:?"#$75Q:$7(D:7;7(5$%(:;3#9(577:D&5;#%(%&9#D;(D5"&;5=(D:7;7*

8#9$(W:(-(E9&%2# L&$&$2(:A(#'&7Q$2(!UC<R(7;9ND;N9#X

15%$5==(<N=V#9; <N=V#9;(9#"=5D#?#$;(4:9F(&$D=N%&$2(7NO7;5$Q5=(5""9:5D3(5$%(%#"59;N9#(4:9FX(

E5$FY#=%7(L5$#(E9&%2# U#"=5D#(#'&7Q$2(O9&%2#X

MQ"#97;:$#7(U#;(Z5== >595"#;(9#"=5D#?#$;(5$%(45==(A5D&$2(4:9FX

!7;:$(E9&%2# 85F#(%:4$(5$%(9#ON&=%(7"5$%9#=(45==7X

<3N9D3(Z&$%:4(E9&%2# 85F#(%:4$(5$%(9#ON&=%(;3#(N"7;9#5?(7"5$%9#=(5$%(4&$2(45==7(5$%(75%%=#(;3#(O9&%2#X

RN;95DF(E9&%2# U#"5&$Q$2(4:9F

1#5;3;:$(Z#7;(E9&%2# U#ON&=%(%:4$7;9#5?(4&$2(45==X

Z52O#5D3(P::;O9&%2# J$7;5==($#4(A::;O9&%2#

1N97;(E#$%G(<=N$ U&V#9(O5$F(9#7;:95Q:$(4:9FX

S=5[#=#6(E9&%2# S9:N$%(O#5?(5$%(75A#;6(A#$D#(4:9FX

P59=:4(E9&%2# U#?5&$&$2(0,\("56?#$;(A9:?(+,-)/-.(4:9FX

Z5;#9(L5$#(U#;5&$&$2(Z5== U#;#$Q:$(A9:?(+,-)/-.(7D3#?#

M4#6$#6(E9&%2# U#;#$Q:$(A9:?(+,-)/-.(7D3#?#

E##D3(1:N7#(<5$5=(E9&%2# U#;#$Q:$(A9:?(+,-)/-.(7D3#?#

>&?=#6(C5$:9(](^_$2;:$(E9&%2#7 U#;#$Q:$(A9:?(+,-+/-)(7D3#?#

EN&=%457(E9&%2# U#;#$Q:$(A9:?(+,-+/-)(7D3#?#

Total BudgetScheme CC Budget Holder

&'()*)+(),&

Structural Maintenance of Roads - To be split across Principal & Secondary Roads in year based on final programme of schemes to be delivered

 Shropshire Central - Road Maintenance Projects  K6AF0  T Sneddon 3,500,000          2,273,000          1,227,000                  

<#$;95=&7#%(ON%2#;(A:9(3&23456(9#B7N9A5D&$2(:A(3&23#7;("9&:9&;6(7D3#?#7(&%#$QY#%(A9:?($#;4:9F(D:$%&Q:$(%5;5X(83#(ON%2#;(4&==(O#(N7#%(;:(%#7&2$(5$%(&?"=#?#$;(;3#7#(7D3#?#7(&$(+,-./-0(5$%(5=7:(;:(&%#$QA6(7D3#?#7(;:(O#(%#7&2$#%(9#5%6(A:9(

&?"=#?#$;5Q:$(&$(+,-0/-TG(O57#%(:$(5$(#7Q?5;#%(ON%2#;(5V5&=5O=#(A:9(O:;3(6#597(5;(;3&7(7;52#X

83#(:9%#9(&$(43&D3(4#(%#=&V#9(;3#(7D3#?#7(5$%(5=7:(;3#($N?O#9(4#(O#(%#"#$%#$;(:$(V59&:N7(A5D;:97(&$D=N%&$2*

g(<:?"=#'&;6(:A(%#7&2$

g(<:B:9%&$5Q:$(:A(9:5%(7"5D#

g(M#57:$5=(D:$7;9NDQ:$(:"#95Q:$7

g(h$V&9:$?#$;5=(D:$7;95&$;7

g(!V5&=5O&=&;6(:A(9#7:N9D#7

g(!V5&=5O&=&;6(:A(D:$;95D;:97(9#7:N9D#7

8 ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

Annex 6 – Highways Programme

P
age 129



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017Annex 6 – Highways Programme cont. 80

-.+*/.)  ID  Length Prioritisation Division

!..+(<5$$(15==(L5$#(`E6"577a  A442/480                   175 Renewal South East

E.)K0(M;5Q:$(M;9##;  B4385/ 90                   444 Renewal South West

!.KH(1#O=5$%7(bN$DQ:$(;:(E9:?=#67(C&==  A489/ 40                1,263 Renewal South West

E.)K.(MD3::=3:N7#(L5$#(B(c#$$#=(<9:779:5%7(.,C>1(M#DQ:$  B4384/ 30                   511 Preservation South West

!0+H(1&23(M;9##;G(C59F#;(@956;:$  A529/120                   260 Renewal North East

!0+H(!%%#9=#6(L:%2#(;:(M"::$=#6(bN$DQ:$  A529/ 40                2,256 Renewal North East

!0+H(M35V&$2;:$(bN$DQ:$(;:(!%%#9=#6(L:%2#  A529/ 30                1,335 Renewal North East

!.H,(<3&9ON96(;:(<:N$;6(E:N$%596(<5=D:;  A490/ 40                2,911 Renewal South West

!.KK(15=7;:$(bN$DQ:$(;:(>:$;#7A:9%(),C>1(=&?&;  A488/530                1,319 Renewal Central

!.-(<3#7;#9(U:5%(9:N$%5O:N;(;:(E0)H0(dN$DQ:$G(S9&$%=#6(E9::F  A41/480                   347 Preservation North East

!.KH(E.)I,(dN$DQ:$(;:(S=#$ON99#==  A489/ 95                1,026 Renewal South West

E0,T0(>9##7(L:4#9(1#5;3(`<9N$DF?::9(L5$#(dN$DQ:$(;:(7;59;(),C>1a  B5065/ 80                1,733 Renewal North East

!0-H-(M"9&$2(S59%#$7G(M39#47ON96  A5191/ 90                   120 Renewal Central

E.)TI(<=N$2N$A:9%(e&==52#  B4367/ 30                   314 Renewal South West

!.--I(<=#:ON96(;:(E.+,+(bN$DQ:$  A4117/220                1,884 Preservation South West

!0+H(!%%#9=#6(B(<:N$;6(O:N$%596(;:(),C>1(7;59;  A529/ 10                1,763 Renewal North East

!.H0(>#$&759==5$(bN$DQ:$(;:(M;##;=#6(dN$DQ:$  A495/ 20                2,361 Renewal North West

E.)K0(839##(!73#7(;:(1:";:$(1#5;3  B4385/200                1,853 Renewal South West

!.KK(<:=7;#6(<:f52#(;:(!D;:$  A488/230                1,799 Renewal South West

!0)(E95%$:9(1:N7#(;:(!=O9&23;=##(1:N7#  A53/ 40                   470 Renewal Central

 North Shropshire West - Unallocated Budget  K6S1A  T Sneddon 989,035            989,035            

 North Shropshire East - Unallocated Budget  K6S2A  T Sneddon 975,525            975,525            

 South Shropshire West - Unallocated Budget  K6S6A  T Sneddon 1,130,955          1,130,955          

 South Shropshire East - Unallocated Budget  K6S4A  T Sneddon 1,186,155          1,186,155          

 Shrewsbury Urban - Unallocated Budget  K6S7A  T Sneddon 653,823            653,823            

 Shrewsbury Rural - Unallocated Budget  K6S5A  T Sneddon 823,807            823,807            

 Depot Fixed Costs - Principal  K6P01  T Sneddon 250,222            250,222            

 Depot Fixed Costs - Secondary  K6S01  T Sneddon 899,378            899,378            

 Budgets devolved to Highways Divisions based on length of highways network in the division. To be allocated by Divisions to structural maintenance schemes on Principal & Secondary roads within in their divisional area, based on asset 

management need. 

 Budget required for capital element of Depot fixed costs; 45% of total cost, with remainder charged to revenue. Provisional split between Principal and Secondary roads based on estimated split of the capital programme. 

83#("9:V&7&:$5=(=&7;(:A(;3#(;:"(+,(7&;#7(;:(O#(D:$7&%#9#%(A:9(+,-./-0(A9:?(;3#("9&:9&;6(=&7;(43&D3(357(O##$(&%#$QY#%(O6($#;4:9F(D:$%&Q:$(%5;5(&7(57(A:==:47*

DfT - 

Maintenance 

Block

DfT - Additional 

Highways 

Maintenance Funding

DfT - 

Integrated 

Transport 

Block

DfT - Local 

Sustainable 

Transport Fund

Other Grant Revenue

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Total BudgetScheme CC Budget Holder

&'()*)+(),&

Structural Maintenance of Roads - To be split across Principal & Secondary Roads in year based on final programme of schemes to be delivered

 Shropshire Central - Road Maintenance Projects  K6AF0  T Sneddon 3,500,000          2,273,000          1,227,000                  

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

P
age 130



Shropshire Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 – 2017Annex 6 – Highways Programme cont. 81

 Shropshire Central - Unallocated Responsive Budget  KSA01  T Sneddon 500,000            500,000            

 Road Assessment Surveys  KSA94  T Sneddon 250,000            250,000            

Centrally retained budget for road assessment surveys, where they are eligible as part of capital schemes.

 Shropshire Drainage - Secondary Roads  KNS9F  T Sneddon 200,000            200,000            

 Shropshire Drainage - Principal  Roads  KPS9F  T Sneddon 100,000            100,000            

Centrally retained budget for highways drainage structural maintenance scheme on Principal and Secondary roads.

 Total Structural Maintenance of Roads 11,458,900        10,231,900        1,227,000                  -                    -                     -                   -                    

Street Lighting

 Programme of structural replacement of lighting columns 0"1-!  R Buzzacott 300,000            175,000            125,000          

 LED Conversions 0"1-2  R Buzzacott 100,000            100,000            

Budget for the to convert existing lighting to LED. These will be more energy efficient than existing lights and will thus enable ongoing operational revenue savings to be made against street lighting budgets.

 Part Night Lighting 0"1-3  R Buzzacott 100,000            100,000            

 Total Street Lighting 500,000            375,000            -                              -                    -                     -                   125,000          

Total Highways 13,589,606        11,973,000        1,227,000                  -                    -                     -                   389,606          

Integrated Transport

Network Management and Efficiency 0"45!  R Buzzacott 963,977            - 849,977          114,000           -

To be allocated to schemes to improve Network Management and Efficiency, full programme of schemes for delivery in 2014/15 to be identified.

Public Transport  0"678  R Buzzacott 150,000            - 100,000          50,000             -

To be allocated to schemes for Public Transport, full programme of schemes for delivery in 2014/15 to be identified.

Walking and Cycling 0"9:2  R Buzzacott 1,007,680          - 457,680          550,000           -

To be allocated to walking and cycling schemes, full programme of schemes for delivery in 2014/15 to be identified.

Safety and Speed Management 0"1;!  R Buzzacott 977,343            - 977,343          - -

To be allocated to schemes to improve safety and speed management, full programme of schemes for delivery in 2014/15 to be identified.

Total Integrated Transport 3,099,000          - 2,385,000       714,000           -

Total Highways & Transport 16,688,606        11,973,000        1,227,000                  2,385,000       714,000           -                   389,606          

Budget for adapting lighting for part night lighting, this will enable ongoing operational revenue savings to be made against street lighting budgets.

 Centrally retained budget, to initially be held back in the event of any unplanned responsive works are require in year. To be allocated to specific schemes in year. 

Budget for the replacement of existing lighting columns that have reached the end of their asset life. Replacement lighting will be new efficient lighting stock and will thus enable ongoing operational revenue savings to be made against street lighting 

budgets.

DfT - 

Maintenance 

Block

DfT - Additional 

Highways 

Maintenance Funding

DfT - 

Integrated 

Transport 

Block

DfT - Local 

Sustainable 

Transport Fund

Other Grant Revenue

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Total BudgetScheme CC Budget Holder

&'()*)+(),&

                       

P
age 131



Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 - 2017

Our customers are at the centre of everything we do

P
age 132



                                                                                                                          APPENDIX 2 

 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
Cabinet 
16 January 2014 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 
 

 
STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16 
 
Responsible Officer James Walton 
Email: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Telephone: (01743) 255011 

 
1. Summary 

 
1.1. Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Authority’s Chief Financial 

Officer is required to report on the robustness of the estimates made for the 

purposes of the budget calculations and the adequacy of the proposed reserves. 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1. That Cabinet approve the recommended level of general balances to support the 
2014/15 revenue budget at £18.5m, noting that the projected balance will be below 
this for 2014/15;  
 

2.2. That Cabinet note the projected recommended level for the following two years at 
£15.2m and £12.1m, and that the projected level of general balances will be brought 
in line with the target for 2016/17.  
 

3. Background 
 

3.1. Each year council considers a Statement of the Robustness of Estimates. Budget 
estimates are exactly that, estimates of spending and income made at a point in 
time. This statement about the robustness of estimates cannot give a guaranteed 
assurance about the budget, but gives members reasonable assurances that the 
budget has been based on the best available information and assumptions. 
 

3.2. In order to meet the requirement on the robustness of estimates a number of key 
processes were put into place, including: 
 

· Review of existing budgets on a zero based budgeting basis to ensure 
appropriate reflection of anticipated costs for services and functions as they are 
currently delivered and utilised as an on-going process in service redesign.  

· Separation of roles within the Finance Team in setting budget control totals, 
identifying budget requirement and inputting into the Finance System. 

Page 133



Cabinet, 16 January 2014:  STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16  

 

 2 

· The use of information identified through budget monitoring in 2012/13 to re-
align budgets with current demand, for 2013/14; 

· Review by Finance Staff with Service Managers to understand the achievability, 
deliverability and timescales for all proposed service redesign.  

· Opportunity for Member review and challenge via Rapid Scrutiny.  
· Direct involvement of Cabinet Members throughout the business planning and 

budget setting process.  
· Reporting of the business planning and budget setting process to Scrutiny 

Committee for review and challenge.  
· Notwithstanding these arrangements, which are designed to test the budget 

throughout its various stages of development, considerable reliance is placed 
on Senior Managers having proper arrangements in place to identify issues, 
project demand data, and consider value for money and efficiency. 

 
3.3. A key element in the development of the budget requirement of all services 

commissioned by the Council is the review of customer demand data, unit costs and 
existing service volumes to help identify the financial implications of redesigned 
services utilising a zero based budget approach. While these processes are 
understood and are being implemented, the significant amount of redesign work 
being undertaken by the Council at this time presents a risk in establishing a final 
and balanced budget for 2014/15. In previous years, it has been possible to deliver 
savings by taking known and quantifiable costs out of services within agreed 
timelines, leading to a robust budget being established for the remainder of the 
service ahead of the financial year commencing. Under redesign, the reconfiguration 
of the service under zero based budgeting principles does not readily identify the 
level of saving that can be applied to an existing service budget. Therefore, the 
approach has been taken that expected savings (which in themselves are tested by 
Finance Staff) will be removed from an existing service budget ahead of the redesign 
work establishing the revised budget requirement on a zero based budget approach. 
This may, therefore, lead to variances in the approved budgets that will need to be 
vired in the next Financial Year. 
 

3.4. As part of this approach, it will be necessary to ensure that spending is monitored 
robustly until the process is completed, to ensure that the overall budget for the 
Council is balanced. 
 

3.5. On an annual basis the Council also considers the level of reserves held, including 
the General Fund Balance, to assess whether they are adequate. There are two 
main approaches for deciding the optimum level of the general balances. One 
method is to set an arbitrary percentage of expenditure, however this generally has 
little reflection of the potential contingencies that the Council may need to draw on. 
An alternative, preferable, method is an approach based on a risk assessment of the 
budget. 
 

3.6. This paper sets out the framework for a risk assessment approach. The issues the 
framework considers include strategic, operational and financial risks that the 

Page 134



Cabinet, 16 January 2014:  STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16  

 

 3 

authority is facing. This includes, for example, changes in external funding or the 
council’s ability to deliver savings; the effectiveness of budget monitoring to identify 
variances from spending plans and trigger timely remedial action; the availability of 
other funds to cover costs – for example, from an insurance policy, or from the 
government under the Bellwin Scheme for emergency financial assistance; and the 
extent to which contingency is built into individual departmental budgets and the 
council’s overall budget. 
 

4. Risk Assessment 
 

4.1. On an annual basis the Council will undertake a formal review of risks associated 
with the budget and Financial Strategy and identify balances at appropriate level 
compared to the risks.  The development and introduction of this risk assessment is 
not intended to replace the Council’s existing Risk Registers, rather that they should 
inform any revision of these Risk Registers. 
 

4.2. The Risk Assessment is intended to form part of the onward Budgetary Control 
framework and used at Budgetary Control meetings with Service Area personnel and 
reviewed annually by the authority. 
 

4.3. Throughout the budget process Members are able to assess the robustness of 
budgets and the achievability of savings, income and budget reductions. The key 
risks that remain are: 

· Changes to staffing arrangements through wide scale voluntary redundancy 
requests, restructure or remodelling of services or the overall Council 
Structure; 

· The delivery of service redesign proposals, savings targets and efficiency 
measures within the required timeframe; 

· Changes to the Capital Programme, to achieve the policy objective of 
eliminating Prudential Borrowing, unless it is self-funding; 

· Improvements in budgeting and/or associated systems, the implementation 
of which may throw up funding challenges; 

· The impact of changes on a national or regional basis that do not fall within 
the existing budget process; and 

· The impact of austerity measures including the recalibration of public sector 
funding in the final year of CSR 2010 and the 2013 spending round.  

 
4.4. These assumptions and potential changing circumstances will require the forecasts 

for future years to be reviewed in each financial year leading to more detailed 
budgets being prepared for the next financial year and for the Medium Term 
Financial Plan. Impacts within year are reported to Members within the existing 
monitoring reports for both revenue and capital. 
 

Page 135



Cabinet, 16 January 2014:  STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16  

 

 4 

 
5. Robustness of Revenue Estimates 

 
5.1. The 2014/15 budget process continues the trend of improving the Council’s budget 

preparation, most notably in the budget re-alignment due to information and trend 
data drawn from the monitoring of the budget, as reported to Cabinet on a monthly or 
quarterly basis. 
 

5.2. As part of developing the 2014/15 budget, members of the administration have 
considered available options and they are reflected in the proposed budget. 
 

5.3. The position, over the remainder of the CSR 2010 and 2013 spending round is given 
in Table 1 below and shows the latest prediction, which is a funding gap of £80 
million over the next three years 
 

 Table 1: Gross Resources and Expenditure Projections (£’000s) 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/16 

Projected Resources 616,210 601,040 589,953 

Current Projected Expenditure 657,741 662,707 669,953 

Funding Gap 41,531 61,667 80,000 

Year on Year Funding Gap  20,136 18,333 

 
5.4. To improve the medium term financial planning for the authority it is proposed to 

undertake mid-term reviews of the medium Term Financial Plan every two years, 
extending the existing plan by two years at each review. Annex 1 shows the factors 
taken into account in developing the draft budget. 
 

6. Capital Budget  
 

6.1. The agreed programme is fully funded within the 3 year timescale.  Projects have 
been costed at current year prices but may be subject to tender process after 
inclusion in the programme which may lead to variance in the final cost.  In some 
areas, the design brief may not be finalised, again giving rise to potential price 
variance. 
 

6.2. The risk of the Council being unable to fund variations outside of the programme is 
minimal mainly due to phasing of projects.  If necessary the Council can choose to 
freeze parts of the programme throughout the year to ensure spend is kept within the 
agreed budget. 
 

6.3. There are two main risks.   

· Firstly, the ability to deliver the capital programme within the agreed 
timescales.  Slippage from 2013/14 is fully funded over the Financial 

Page 136



Cabinet, 16 January 2014:  STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16  

 

 5 

Strategy period but this in itself will increase pressure on the Council to 
deliver the anticipated 2014/15 programme. 

· Secondly, the draft 3 year 2013-16 programme has an amount set aside for 
new starts based on the availability of capital receipts.  In the continuing, 
difficult financial climate, these receipts may be lower than expected, which 
will have to be managed. 

 
6.4 The capital programme will be actively managed and reprofiled during the course of 

the financial year to reflect scheme delivery timescales and revisions to funding 
agreements for projects. However at the end of the year, slippage within the 
programme normally occurs which had not previously been anticipated. This will be 
due to delays in delivery of schemes and the net of underspends and overspends 
against specific projects. As shown in Table 2 below, in 2012/13 there was slippage 
of £7.373m which represents 14.8% of the revised capital programme. Action has 
already been taken during the course of 2013/14 to reprofile budgets to future years 
to reflect latest data on project delivery. 
 

 Table 2: Three Year Capital position (£000’s) 

 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Capital Programme +69,509 +68,411 +55,066 

Reprofile Budgets -12,455 -10,441 - 

Revised Capital Programme 57,054 57,970 55,066 

Slippage -7,373 - - 

Actual Capital Programme +49,681 +57,970 +55,066 

 
6.5 The capital programme includes a target for capital receipts to be delivered to ensure 

the programme is fully funded and removing the need for prudential borrowing to be 
undertaken. This target generally decreases during the course of the year to reflect 
the reprofiled budget, however the full capital receipt target will still be required to 
fully fund the capital programme. In 2012/13 a total of £6.5m was delivered against 
an original target of £11.6m. It should be noted that whilst this only represents a 
delivery of 56%, this level of receipts was sufficient for the programme to be fully 
funded due to the reprofile of expenditure within the capital programme. 

 
7. The Framework for the General Balance 

7.1 A Framework has been developed to identify areas of risk with an appropriate budget 
amount, an assessed level of risk (high, medium and low) and a percentage factor 
which will vary according to the level of risk. This process produces a value from 
which a risk assessed optimum level of general balance can be created. 

7.2 Nine areas of risk have been considered and these, with explanatory text, are set out 
in Appendix 1, while Appendix 2 provides a summary of the calculation for the general 

Page 137



Cabinet, 16 January 2014:  STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16  

 

 6 

balance. The risk based target is significantly higher in 2014/15 than in the following 
two years due to the risk around the increased savings targets and increased 
pressure on generating capital receipts in that year.  

7.3 In addition, it is necessary to consider a mechanism for achieving the risk assessed 
level of reserves, without this very mechanism of delivery leading to an instability in 
the Council’s finances. For this reason, it is necessary to phase increases in balances 
over the medium term, ensuring a minimum balance is maintained (currently 0.5% of 
gross revenue budget) with planned increases built into the Financial Strategy at 
appropriate, affordable points, should this be necessary.  

8. Review of Earmarked Reserves and Provisions 

8.1 A review of the earmarked balances held by the Council has also been performed to 
establish the purpose of the reserves and the likely timescale that these reserves will 
be utilised. 

8.2 Earmarked reserves are created to meet known or predicted requirements in the 
future. There are 5 main categories of earmarked reserves that the Council holds: 

· Sums set aside for major schemes, such as capital developments, or to fund 
major reorganisations 

· Insurance Reserves 
· Reserves of trading and business units 
· Reserves retained for service departmental use 
· School Balances 

 
8.3 The Council held balances of £42.989m in earmarked reserves at 31 March 2013. 

During the course of 2013/14 it is anticipated that a net £21.855m will be released 
from earmarked reserves to fund known commitments. A review of the remaining 
balances has indicated that a further £0.864m can be released that are no longer 
required. This amount will be released to the General Fund Balance. A full breakdown 
of the earmarked reserves is attached at Appendix 3 with details of the purpose of 
each reserve and the likely timescales for use of the funds. 

9. General Fund Balance 

9.1 It is essential in setting a balanced budget that the Council has money available in the 
event of unexpected spending pressures.  The “balances” need to reflect spending 
experience and risks to which the Council is exposed. 

9.2 The revenue monitoring reports have provided members with an updated projection 
on the General Fund. The only amendment required to the projection detailed in the 
Period 6 monitoring report is the release of the earmarked reserves as detailed above. 

9.3 On the basis of the revised assumptions above, the projected General Fund Balance 
is provided below: 

Page 138



Cabinet, 16 January 2014:  STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16  

 

 7 

 

Projection as 
per Period 6 

(£’000) 
 

Revised 
Projection 

(£’000) 
    
General Fund Balances as at 31 March 2013 6,820  6,820 

    

Budgeted contribution to General Fund Balance  5,909  5,909 

Repayment of Overspend (County Training Yr3) 417  417 

Repayment of Redundancies provided for in 2012/13 268  268 

Release of Council Tax Subsidy underspend (500)  (500) 

Shortfall in budgetary savings (282)  (282) 

Projected outturn as at Period 6 (2,639)  (2,639) 
    
Release of earmarked reserves   864 
    
Projected General Fund Balance as at 31 March 2014 9,993  10,857 

 

9.4 The Financial Strategy, agreed by Council anticipated a level of reserves by year 
end of £10.930m. The current projection shows that the General Fund balance is 
now anticipated to be £10.857m. 

9.5 The Financial Strategy recognised that balances need to be increased to the risk 
assessed level and additional base budget contributions over the last 2 years have 
increased the balance to its current level. These additional base budget contributions 
have been removed within the 2014/15 budget strategy. Whilst the General Fund 
Balance will be significantly lower than the risk based target in 2014/15, as shown in 
the graph below, the risk based target reduces in future years and the Council’s 
projected contributions to the General Fund will bring the balance in line with the 
target by 2016/17. 

 

 

Page 139



Cabinet, 16 January 2014:  STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON THE ROBUSTNESS OF THE 
ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 2013-16  

 

 8 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 
 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
Keith Barrow - Leader 

Local Member 
All 

Appendices 
Appendix 1:  Analysis of Budget Assumptions and Financial Risks, including the 

Council’s Financial Management Arrangements and Appropriate 
Mitigation 

Appendix 2:  Risk Based Calculation of General Fund Balances 
Appendix 3:  Earmarked Reserves 

 

Page 140



Appendix 1 

 9 

 

Analysis of Budget Assumptions and Financial Risks, including the Council’s 
Financial Management Arrangements and Appropriate Mitigation 

Budget Assumption Explanation of Risk Financial Standing and Management and 
Mitigating Action 

1.  The treatment of 
inflation 

There are two key issues in relation to 
inflation. 
· There may be some items of 

expenditure – fuel or energy costs for 
example - where any estimate of 
inflation is a ‘best guess’.  The risk 
assessment puts a figure to the 
higher level of inflation that would 
seem to be unreasonable to include 
in a budget, but might come to pass.  

· Information is less accurate for years 
2 and 3; the risk assessment covers 
the higher range. 

 

At the present time it is difficult to predict 
the direction that the wider economy will 
take and thus the level of inflation 
required.  

Pay – 1% has been provided in the 2013/14 
budget to reflect the pay award for staff with 
1% thereafter.  Any increments awarded 
have also been funded within the service 
budgets based on existing staffing levels. 

The actuarial valuation for pension 
contributions has resulted in an increase in 
the ongoing contribution rate from 11.7% to 
13.5%. The valuation has also stated a 
reduction in the lump sum which has been 
reflected.  

Price inflation has been provided on 
contractually or quasi-contractually 
committed budgets at the rate stated in the 
relevant agreement.   
 

2. Interest rates on 
borrowing and 
investment 

 

This issue here are similar to those in 1 
above, but for a specific area. 
 

The Council’s policy of generating capital 
receipts to prevent new borrowing, and 
allowing existing borrowing to mature has 
resulted in a reduction in available cash 
balances to invest. The level of interest 
rates on investments has also dropped to 
record lows resulting in reduced returns on 
cash balances. In the past it was possible 
for the Council to lend money and get a 
better interest rate than it was paying for 
borrowed money. 
 

The Council’s borrowing has been 
undertaken at fixed rates of interest and so 
the level of interest payable is not 
considered as a risk to variable rates. 
However if borrowing should be required, 
there is a potential risk that any new 
borrowing may not be secured at similar 
interest rates to those currently budgeted 
for. 

Interest receivable budgets have been set 
based on 2013/14 profile of the interest 
gained on cash balances held. These range 
from investments for 12 months gaining 2% 
to short term call accounts which gain only 
0.25%.  
 
Interest rates have been set at 5.41% for all 
borrowing costs based on current interest 
rates.  
 

 

3. Estimates of the level 
and timing of capital 
receipts. 

The Council has developed an asset 
management strategy and has a policy of 
reducing borrowing costs around the 
capital programme where possible. 
Therefore the capital programme is 
dependent on the delivery of capital 
receipts. The planned receipts estimated 
to the Council are made more difficult due 
to reducing market values and problems 
for potential procurers in obtaining finance.  

Capital receipts are monitored monthly in 
the capital monitoring report and are RAG 
rated in terms of their anticipated delivery 
against target.  

Page 141



Appendix 1 

 10 

Budget Assumption Explanation of Risk Financial Standing and Management and 
Mitigating Action 

4. The treatment of 
demand led 
pressures  

There are long standing areas of risk due 
to volatility, where we budget for 
demographic changes in future years, but 
might find the actual is at the higher end. 
 
Two areas specifically affected by 
demography are adult social care and 
children’s social care, where we have seen 
significant budget pressures due to 
increasing numbers of clients receiving 
care packages. 

All Managers review their base budgets 
including demand led pressures. Services 
are expected to put forward management 
and policy actions to manage the additional 
demand within the relevant legislation either 
within the relevant budget or reprioritising 
within their Service budgets. If this is not 
possible and under-spending management 
action or policy actions in other Services are 
not sufficient to cover the additional 
demand, then reserves may have to be 
used to address the additional expenditure 
temporarily. 
 
Such an eventuality has been considered in 
future years’ budgets and it is assumed that 
general fund reserves are restored to an 
appropriate prudent level over the course of 
the MTFS. 
 
The 2014/15 budget has been based upon 
budget monitoring and projections made by 
Heads of Service of demand in future years. 

5. The treatment of 
efficiency savings 

The budget includes improvement 
programmes that will deliver savings; the 
risk is that they may be delivered at a 
slower rate.  
 
This includes total savings targets of £80m 
over the next three year period projected 
in the Financial Strategy which will have 
risks involved in terms of delivery, and also 
the delays in delivery. 

 

All Managers have a responsibility to ensure 
the efficient delivery of services and when 
efficiency savings are proposed that those 
savings are both realistic in terms of the 
level of savings and timing.  
 

Should the level and timing of such savings 
vary due to unforeseen events and under-
spending, management action or policy 
actions within the relevant Service Area and 
corporately will be implemented where 
appropriate. Alternatively the General Fund 
Balance will be utilised as a temporary 
funding mechanism until the full savings are 
achieved.  

6. The financial risks 
inherent in any 
significant new 
funding partnerships, 
major outsourcing 
deals or major capital 
developments 

The Council has set up a wholly owned 
company which it plans to be a vehicle for 
service delivery in the future. Other 
delivery vehicles are also being 
considered by service areas. Full business 
cases are required for any services being 
considered for transfer to an alternative 
service vehicle. 

The sharing of risk is in accordance with the 
principle of the risks being borne by the 
party best placed to manage that risk. 
Inherent risks include any guarantee or 
variation of service throughput (service 
volumes).  If risks materialise the 
expectation is that such an eventuality will 
be considered in future years’ budgets.  

Business cases for any new delivery 
vehicles will fully investigate any financial 
risks that the Council may face in the future 
and the MTFP updated accordingly.  

Page 142



Appendix 1 

 11 

Budget Assumption Explanation of Risk Financial Standing and Management and 
Mitigating Action 

7. The availability of 
other funds to deal 
with major 
contingencies 

Were a disaster to occur, we have to have 
a reserve in place to pick up costs that will 
fall to the Council. 
 
The impact of flooding within the Council 
area based on present experience is that it 
is limited to localised pockets. 
 
The geographical area covered by the 
Council has encountered budget 
pressures in recent years due to extreme 
weather conditions and additional costs 
such as snow clearance particularly in 
winter. An additional £1m was added to 
the Severe Weather budget in 2011/12 to 
help mitigate this, but overspends in 
previous years have, at times, been in 
excess of this growth level. 
 
Other disasters such as those relating to 
ICT could occur on a one off basis. 

The minimum level of reserves assumes 
that management and policy actions will be 
taken to address major contingencies. 
Should these be insufficient, the minimum 
level of reserves may have to be used. 
 
An earmarked reserve has been established 
for Severe Weather however any pressure 
not covered by this reserve would need to 
be funded from the general fund balance. 
A risk based approach in calculating the 
general fund balance takes into 
consideration the types of incidents and 
costs associated and this is reviewed 
annually. 
 
The Council’s insurance arrangements are a 
balance between external insurance 
premiums and internal funds to “self-insure” 
some areas.  Premiums and self-funds are 
reactive to external perceptions of the risks 
faced by the Council which includes both 
risks that are generic to all organisations 
and those specific to the authority.  
 
The level of the Insurance Reserve has 
been reviewed and is judged to be 
adequate, the position being that estimated 
outstanding liabilities are covered by the 
balance on the Reserve. 

Any major incident or emergency may result 
in significant costs to the Authority. 
Depending on the incident concerned, the 
Council may be able to recover such costs 
through the Bellwin Scheme however the 
Council would need to cover any 
expenditure up to the agreed threshold 
level. This level is fully included within the 
Council’s general fund balance. 

8. Impact on council 
funding of 
announcements of 
national changes  

Council funding is always subject to 
change, especially in the current economic 
climate. However the Budget Strategy 
takes account of projected changes in the 
Revenue Support Grant and specific 
government grants.  
 
 

The only risk factor included is in relation to 
the Housing Benefits grants which the 
Council receives. Changes are planned for 
welfare benefits which may increase the 
Council’s exposure to costs over and above 
the grant that is received. This has been 
factored into the General Fund risk based 
calculation.  

9. The overall financial 
standing of the 
authority (level of, 
debt outstanding, 
council tax collection 
rates etc) 

Change may mean doing things in a way 
for which we have no ready evidence and 
any assumptions made may be wrong. 
Additionally, the areas of change will alter 
over time. 
 

The level of aged debt within the sundry 
debtors figure is monitored closely and any 
debts at risk are highlighted with budget 
managers during the course of the year so 
that the appropriate action may be taken. 
Bad debt provisions are maintained to 

Page 143



Appendix 1 

 12 

Budget Assumption Explanation of Risk Financial Standing and Management and 
Mitigating Action 

An allowance for budget pressures has 
also been built in to accommodate any 
corrective action that needs to be taken if 
the assumptions about changes in service 
delivery should change. 
 
In the current economic downturn the risk 
of collecting all income due to the Council 
is enhanced, which includes all sundry 
debt, and charges relating to Council Tax 
and NNDR. Any such pressure identified 
should be evaluated and provided for. 
 
Income from fees and charges is also 
vulnerable to change based on the current 
economic climate. This is likely to continue 
and is adjusted for within the Financial 
Strategy, but is subject to short term 
negative variations from year to year. 

protect the budget against any such 
pressures, but should these not be 
sufficient, the general fund would be used. 
 
The assumed Council Tax collection rate for 
2014/15 onwards is 97.5% and is judged to 
be achievable based on previous 
experience.  Legislation states that any 
Collection Fund surplus/deficit be corrected 
through the Council Tax in the next year.  
The surplus is distributed in 2014/15. 
 
An income review has been produced for 
Cabinet on the income from fees and 
charges. This review has considered the 
level of income as monitored in the monthly 
revenue monitors to Cabinet, and 
considered the impact of increases in 
charges, or the freezing of charges on the 
2014/15 budget.  
 

10. The authority’s track 
record in budget and 
financial 
management. 

Any overspend realised in a financial year 
would result in the use of the general fund 
balance. The Council has identified that 
general fund balances need to be in place 
in order to protect the Council against 
specific financial risks, and so any general 
overspend due to weaknesses in budget 
management, undermine any planned 
action being taken on the General Fund 
Balance.  

Financial management needs to be 
considered across all service areas of the 
Council. If a particular service area is 
unable to manage a particular overspend 
pressure, this may present a need to use 
general fund balance in the current 
financial year.  Also this may have 
implications on future level of balances if 
no action is taken to reduce the spending 
pressure for the service area in future 
years or offset by compensating savings. 

The Council’s recent track record in budget 
and financial management 2009 to 2014 
shows potential variations from a £2.6m 
overspend to a £2.7m underspend (a range 
of £5.3m). 
 

Financial 
Year 

(£‘000) Underspend/
Overspend 

2009/10 919 Over 

2010/11 518 Over 

2011/12 (2,709) Under 

2012/13 284 Over 

2013/14* 2,639 Over 

Total 2009 
to 2013 

 Over 

* As projected at Period 6 monitoring 

This has been achieved by considerable 
management and policy actions to ensure 
spending is in line with the budget each 
year.  

Ultimately, financial performance relies on 
all budget holders actively managing their 
budgets and complying with financial 
regulations, including not committing 
expenditure if there is no budget provision 
available. 

The authority needs to continually improve 
its ability to manage in-year budget 
pressures. The following steps are already 
in place: 

Page 144



Appendix 1 

 13 

Budget Assumption Explanation of Risk Financial Standing and Management and 
Mitigating Action 

· Overspends are ringfenced to 
services, carried forward and offset 
against the following year’s budget 

· Accuracy of projections has been 
improved over the year, but further 
work is required, particularly in light 
of redesign work being undertaken. 

· The monitoring system continues to 
be improved in terms of accuracy, 
the frequency of reporting and the 
challenge process. 

It has been recognised that the financial 
information and reporting arrangements 
needs to be strengthened. Therefore the 
development of the Collaborative Planning 
tool is now used within the Council to 
improve the financial information provided 
and the consistency of financial reports 
produced.  
 
The Council’s virement and carry forward 
rules are clear and detailed in the 
Constitution.  

Page 145



 

 14 

    APPENDIX 2 
Risk Based Calculation of General Fund Balances 

AREA OF RISK

Budget 

£000

Risk 

Level 

Value 

£000

Budget 

£000

Risk 

Level 

Value 

£000

Budget 

£000

Risk 

Level 

Value 

£000

Budget 

£000

Risk 

Level 

Value 

£000

Inflation

110,998 0.25% 277 Salaries 99,321 0.25% 248 93,660 0.25% 234 88,508 0.25% 221

13,509 2.00% 270 Premises 12,088 2.00% 242 11,399 2.00% 228 10,772 2.00% 215

18,013 1.00% 180 Transport 16,118 1.00% 161 15,200 1.00% 152 14,364 1.00% 144

53,556 0.25% 134 Supplies & Services 47,922 0.25% 120 45,190 0.25% 113 42,705 0.25% 107

130,541 0.25% 326 Third Party Payments 116,808 0.25% 292 110,150 0.25% 275 104,092 0.25% 260

68,289 0.25% 171 Transfer Payments 61,105 0.25% 153 57,622 0.25% 144 54,452 0.25% 136

394,906 1,359 353,362 1,216 333,221 1,147 314,893 1,083

Interest Rates

269,375 0.00% 0 Borrowing 259,475 0.00% 0 254,475 0.00% 0 245,675 0.00% 0

9,900 1.00% 99 PWLB 5,000 1.00% 50 8,800 1.00% 88 5,000 1.00% 50

93,850 0.50% 469 Investment 93,850 0.50% 469 93,850 0.50% 469 93,850 0.50% 469

568 519 557 519

Capital Receipts

9,200 0.00% 0 Land Sales 22,759 11.00% 2,503 11,405 25.00% 2,851 9,601 8.50% 816

0 2,503 2,851 816

Demand led Pressures

69,385      10.00% 6,939      Adult Social Care 69,385 1.00% 694 69,385 1.00% 694 69,385 1.00% 694

9,930        10.00% 993         Childrens Social Care 9,930 1.00% 99 9,930 1.00% 99 9,930 1.00% 99

7,932      793 793 793

Efficiency Savings

23,877 5.00% 1,194 13/14 non achievement of savings 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0

0 0.00% 0 14/15 non achievement of savings 41,531 5.00% 2,077 41,531 2.50% 1,038 41,531 0.00% 0

0 0.00% 0 14/15 slippage of savings 41,531 10.00% 4,153 41,531 0.00% 0 41,531 0.00% 0

0 0.00% 0 15/16 non achievement of savings 0 0.00% 0 20,135 5.00% 1,007 20,135 2.50% 503

0 0.00% 0 15/16 slippage of savings 0 0.00% 0 20,135 10.00% 2,014 20,135 0.00% 0

0 0.00% 0 16/17 non achievement of savings 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 18,334 5.00% 917

0 0.00% 0 16/17 slippage of savings 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 18,334 10.00% 1,833

1,194 6,230 4,059 3,253

Partnerships, Outsourcing arrangements

500           Quantum 500 IP&E 500 Quantum 500 500 Quantum 500 500 Quantum 500

500         500 500 500

Insurance and Emergency Planning

3,976 0.00% - Provision 3,976 0.00% - 3,976 0.00% - 3,976 0.00% -

2,555 0.00% - Reserve 2,555 0.00% - 2,555 0.00% - 2,555 0.00% -

50 Quantum 50 ICT Disaster 100 Quantum 100 100 Quantum 100 100 Quantum 100

50 Quantum 50 Other Incident 50 Quantum 50 50 Quantum 50 50 Quantum 50

775 Quantum 775 Bellwin 775 Quantum 775 775 Quantum 775 775 Quantum 775

2,672 10.00% 267 Severe Weather 2,672 40.00% 1,069 2,672 40.00% 1,069 2,672 40.00% 1,069

1,142 1,994 1,994 1,994

Funding Changes

61,598 0.25% 154         Housing Benefits 61,598 0.25% 154         61,598 0.25% 154      61,598 0.25% 154       

154 154 154 154

General Financial Climate

4,339 5.00% 217 Landfill Costs 4,339 5.00% 217 0 5.00% 0 0 5.00% 0

6,700 5.00% 335 Debt Collection 5,000 5.00% 250 4,000 5.00% 200 3,000 5.00% 150

116,050 0.50% 580 Collection Fund 115,864 0.50% 579 116,096 0.50% 580 116,328 0.50% 582

38,370      0.25% 96           NNDR Business Rates 38,677 0.25% 97 38,677 0.25% 97 38,677 0.25% 97

15,616 2.00% 312 Discretionary Income 15,616 2.00% 312 15,616 2.00% 312 15,616 2.00% 312

60 0.00% 0 Planning Inquiries 100 Quantum 100 100 Quantum 100 100 Quantum 100

1,540 1,555 1,289 1,241

13,000 0.00% 0 Redundancy 13,000 15.00% 1,950 13,000 6.00% 780 13,000 6.00% 780

231,532 0.50% 1,158 Additional Budget Pressures 219,678 0.50% 1,098 206,326 0.50% 1,032 195,694 0.50% 978

1,158 3,048 1,812 1,758

15,547 TOTAL 18,513 15,156 12,112

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Page 146



 

 15 

  APPENDIX 3 
Earmarked Reserves 

 

Balance as at 

31 March 2013

£'000

Anticipated 

movement in 

2013/14 

£'000

Movement 

due to Review

£'000

Projected 

Balance as at 

31 March 2014

£'000 Purpose of Reserve and Timescale of Release

Revenue Commitments for Future 

Capital Expenditure Reserve

2,211 -1,711 0 500 This funding is fully committed to capital programme 

in 2013/14. However it is anticipated that some of the 

schemes may slip into 2014/15 and therefore the 

projected balance will be required in future years.

Transformation 1,867 0 0 1,867 This was established from the underspend on the 

transformation fund in 2011/12 and 2012/13. This 

balance is considered necessary for future 

investment required to deliver service redesign 

projects highlighted in the Business Planning work.

Voluntary Early Retirement/Severance 465 6,033 0 6,498 Funds were allocated to this reserve to fund known 

pension strain costs to be incurred in 2013/14. This 

cost will be incurred, however a further contribution 

will be made to this reserve to provide for future 

potential redundancy costs expected from achieving 

budgetary savings.

Insurance Reserves

Fire Liability Reserve 1,857 -50 0 1,807 Funds held in order to cover the cost of excesses on 

all Council properties. The balance held in this 

reserve will always be held as long as the Council has 

insurance excesses to cover.

Motor Insurance Reserve 727 22 0 748 Funds held for costs not covered under the Council's 

motor insurance policy. The balance held in this 

reserve will always be held as long as the Council has 

insurance excesses to cover.

Reserves of trading and business units

Shire Catering and Cleaning Efficiency 143 -143 0 0 Any underspends generated by Shire Services are 

contributed to this reserve for investment in future 

years. The balance currently held from 2012/13 will 

be used to fund any overspend generated within the 

service.

Council Elections Reserve 43 0 -43 0 This balance was held to fund any additional costs of 

the 2013/14 election. This has been fully funded 

within the base budget and so the balance is no 

longer required.

Economic Development Workshops 

Major Maintenance Reserve

280 45 0 325 Funds identified and committed to any Repairs and 

Maintenance required on the Economic Development 

Workshops. Funds will be called on and released as 

required.

Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 

Reserve

0 0 0 0 Notional accounting entry therefore balance required 

to offset balance sheet entries.

Legal Disbursements Reserve 50 0 -50 0 This included contingency sums for child care case, 

however additional base budget provision has now 

been included in order to release this reserve.

Local Services Support Grant Reserve 3,394 -3,340 -54 0 Specific commitments identified from unspent grant. 

The majority has been fully committed in 2013/14 

however an uncommitted balance has been 

identified which can be released.

Local Joint Committee Reserve 209 -209 0 0 This reserve was held for any uncommitted balances 

from Local Joint Committees at the end of each 

financial year. This balance will be fully released in 

2013/14.

Major Planning Inquiries Reserve 482 -24 -70 388 This reserve is used to meet the one-off costs of 

major planning inquiries. The current schedule of 

commitments against this reserve detail that this 

reserve will be fully utilised in 2015. 

Sums set aside for major schemes, such 

as capital developments, or to fund 

major reorganisations

Reserves retained for service 

departmental use

 

Page 147



 

 16 

  APPENDIX 3 
 

Balance as at 

31 March 2013

£'000

Anticipated 

movement in 

2013/14 

£'000

Movement 

due to Review

£'000

Projected 

Balance as at 

31 March 2014

£'000 Purpose of Reserve and Timescale of Release

New Homes Bonus Reserve 4,435 -2,253 0 2,182 This reserve includes any allocations of New Homes 

Bonus Grant that the Council has received but 

commitments have not yet been realised. The current 

schedule of commitments plans for almost half of this 

balance to be required in 2013/14 and the remaining 

balance will be utilised in future years.

People Services Reserve 107 0 -107 0 This was established to safeguard the council against 

pressures within Adult  and external children’s 

placements given the service areas volatility. A 

residual amount remained at the end of 2012/13 and 

it has now been determined that this can be 

released.

PFI Building Equipment Replacement 

Reserve

12 -12 0 0 This was established in 2007/08 to fund replacement 

equipment in PFI buildings.  The balance held will be 

fully committed in 2013/14.

Public Health 793 -793 0 0 This reserve was created to cover residual costs of 

Public Health that the NHS had committed to prior to 

transition.  The balance held will be fully committed 

in 2013/14.

Resources Efficiency Reserve 834 -406 -41 387 Established for investment in new developments, 

particularly information technology, that service 

areas would not be expected to meet. The current 

schedule of commitments against this reserve detail 

that this reserve will be fully utilised in 2015. 

Severe Weather Reserve 710 0 0 710 Balance held as a contingency sum for the costs of 

winter maintenance. Funds will be called on and 

released as required.

Shropshire Waste Partnership Reserve 20,258 -19,635 0 623 This reserve contained the budgeted contributions in 

the early years of the Waste PFI contract that are 

required to smooth the step up in the Unitary Charge 

once additional facilities come on line.  The Council 

has now built provision in the base budget to fund 

this stepped increase and therefore the majority of 

the balance on the reserve can be released.

Theatre Severn R&M 29 0 0 29 Funds identified and committed to any Repairs and 

Maintenance required on the Theatre. Funds will be 

called on and released as required.

TMO Vehicle Replacement 2,012 0 -500 1,512 Required to meet the costs of replacement vehicles 

by the Integrated Transport Unit. Current 

replacement schedule has a value of £1.5m.

School Balances

Education - Staff Sickness Insurance 

Reserve

568 170 0 738 School contributions for specific insurance scheme. 

Balance to be held in reserve will be determined at 

year end when all school contributions received, and 

details of commitments against reserve are finalised.

Education - Theft Insurance Reserve 183 50 0 233 School contributions for specific insurance scheme. 

Balance to be held in reserve will be determined at 

year end when all school contributions received, and 

details of commitments against reserve are finalised.

Schools Building Maintenance Insurance 

Reserve

1,323 400 0 1,723 School contributions for specific insurance scheme. 

Balance to be held in reserve will be determined at 

year end when all school contributions received, and 

details of commitments against reserve are finalised.

TOTAL 42,989 -21,855 -864 20,270  

 

Page 148



1 

 

APPENDIX 3 

Pay and Reward Policy Statement 
For All Council Staff 2014-15 
 

Contents 
1. Introduction 
2. Legal Framework 
3. Definitions 
4. Principles 
5. Notice Periods  
6. Pensions 
7. Senior Pay 
8. Accountability and Decision Making on Remuneration and Reward 
9. Review of Policy 
Appendices 

i) Appendix A – Shropshire Council Pay Scales (NJC Staff) 
ii) Appendix B – Pensions and Retirement Policy 
iii) Appendix C – Redundancy and Compensation Policy 

 
Summary 
 
Shropshire Council recognises the importance of managing pay fairly and in a 
way that motivates staff to make a positive contribution and support the delivery of the 
Council’s objectives.  The pay policy details our approach to managing pay and reward in a 
way which supports the aims and objectives of the organisation. 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Shropshire Council has a clear written policy on wages and salaries for all staff 

employed at the Council to ensure that all staff are rewarded fairly, without 
discrimination, for all the work they do. 

 
1.2  When reviewing the pay policy, Trade Union Representatives will be consulted as 

appropriate and their views taken into account when deciding the respective elements 
of the pay policy. 

 
1.3 Shropshire Council recognises that pay is not the only means of rewarding and 

supporting staff, and the Council endeavours to ensure that all staff have good 
working conditions, regular access to appropriate development and training 
opportunities, and other forms of financial and non-financial reward. 

 
1.4 This policy aims aim to reflect:- 
 

·  pay and grading underpinned by job evaluation (where a scheme exists) 

Page 149



2 

 

·  fairness and equality of opportunity 
·  the need to encourage and enable people to perform to the best of their ability 
·  the need to recruit and retain skilled, experienced, and qualified staff in a 

competitive market 
 
1.5 Shropshire Council’s employment offer includes a wider range of benefits alongside 

pay 
 

·  access to learning and development 
·  access to local government pension scheme 
·  flexible working where this fits business needs 
·  performance management which incorporates smart objectives and behaviours  
·  access to a range of benefits offered through ‘Rewarding People’   
·  carrying out work which is of public value and contributes to making Shropshire a 

great place to live and work. 
 
1.6 To make these principles work, Shropshire Council needs remuneration arrangements 

which:- 
 

·  are based on a clear and rational process for setting and reviewing the pay of 
employees; 

·  provide a pay framework and levels of remuneration which are sufficiently flexible 
and reasonably competitive, taking account of relevant benchmarking, and market 
related pay data at local and national level; 

· enable the Council to recruit and retain employees with the required skills, 
knowledge and experience; and  

·  which are affordable by the Council and support the provision of good quality 
public services. 

 
1.7 Shropshire Council will make this policy and any related procedures available to all 

staff, ensuring that any concerns, complaints or formal appeals about its application 
are managed promptly, fairly and objectively. 

 
1.8 Shropshire Council wishes to ensure that development and promotion opportunities, 

where possible, are available to all employees. 
 
1.9 Shropshire Council will not promote staff through the grading system nor use other 

pay mechanisms in order to assist in securing an employee’s improved pension 
entitlement on retirement. 

 
 
2.0 Legal Framework 
 
2.1 The primary legislation governing equal pay is the Equalities Act 2010 and 

subsequent amendments. This requires employers to ensure that men and women in 
the same employment, carrying out equivalent work (as defined below), receive the 
same level of pay. The following terms are contained in Equal Pay Legislation: 

 
· ‘Like work’ is defined as work which is the same or broadly similar 

Page 150



3 

 

· ‘Work rated as equivalent’ is defined as work which has achieved the same or 
similar number of points under a job evaluation scheme. 

· ‘Work of equal value’ is defined as work which is broadly equal in value when 
compared under headings such as effort, skill and decision making responsibility. 

 
2.2 In addition, indirect discrimination has been incorporated into equal pay as a result of 

case law in the UK and Europe. Indirect discrimination may arise when the pay policy 
has a disproportionate impact on one particular sex. 

 
2.3 Differences in pay may be justified where it is established that the difference is for a 

genuine and material reason which is not related to gender. 
 
 
3.0  Definitions 
 
3.1 For the purposes of this policy and in line with legislation, pay is defined by Article 141 

of the Treaty of Rome as: 
The ordinary basic or minimum wage or salary and any other consideration, whether 
in cash or kind, which the worker receives, directly or indirectly, in respect of his (or 
her) employment from his (or her) employer. 

 
3.2 Pay therefore includes allowances, pensions, discretionary bonuses, annual leave 

and sick pay, as well as other non-financial benefits such as vocational training. 
 
3.3 Chief Officer means the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive), Director of Children’s 

Services, Director of Adult Services, Director of Public Health, Director of 
Commissioning, Director of Resources and Support, Area Commissioners, Monitoring 
Officer, Section 151 Officer, and Heads of Service. For further details of the Council’s 
delegations to officers including delegations to Chief Officers, see Part 8 of the 
Council’s Constitution or follow the link below: 

 
http://www.shropshire.gov.uk/democracy.nsf/viewAttachments/MJOS-
97REXG/$file/08-part-8-delegations-to-officers.pdf 

 
 
4.0 Principles 
 
4.1 Pay Structures 
 
4.1.1 Shropshire Council’s pay structure is currently split across three sectors, described 

below.  The pay range for a large proportion of staff will be based on the NJC 
framework for Local Government Services. (The Green Book). The national pay spine 
will apply for posts on Grades 1 to PO 22 / Band 14.   Salaries in Shropshire Council 
have been reduced, as part of changes by the Council to staff terms and conditions of 
employment, except for those employees on the lowest pay levels, in two stages 
October 2011 and again in October 2012.  In the latter there was a pay increase and a 
pay reduction wrapped into the change.  

 
Current arrangements for these grades provide for individuals to receive annual 
incremental progression within the grade.  

Page 151



4 

 

(NB. Incremental progression was frozen from 1 April 2011 until 31st March 2013 and 
reinstated from 1 April 2013.) 

 
4.1.2 All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally 

negotiated rates, having been determined from time to time in accordance with 
collective bargaining machinery and/or as determined by Council Policy.  In 
determining its grading structure and setting remuneration levels for all posts, the 
Council takes account of the need to ensure value for money in respect of the use of 
public expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and retain employees who 
are able to meet the requirements of commissioning or providing high quality services 
to the community, delivered effectively and efficiently and at the times at which those 
services are required. 

 
4.1.3 Following local negotiations in 2012, pay levels were reduced as one of Shropshire 

Council’s measures to manage its budgets, while protecting the future employment of 
its current staff, and reducing the costs of redundancy on the public purse. The level 
of planned reduction was offset by implementing the 1% national cost of living 
increase for NJC staff.  The approach taken also incorporated protection of 
employees on lower pay levels.   

 
4.1.4 Equal Opportunity Considerations – pay and conditions will apply equally to 

employees working full-time and part-time in accordance with the Part-time 
Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000. 

 
See Appendix A for current pay scales for Grade1 to PO22 / Band 14. 

 
4.2 Pay Range – Grades 1 to 10 
 
4.2.1 For the majority of its staff, Shropshire Council operates a Grade 1 to 10 pay 

structure, ranging from spinal column point (SCP) 5 to SCP 34.  On 1 October 2013 
scp 4 was removed from the NJC national pay spine.  The Shropshire grading 
structure has been developed through the local application of the National Joint 
Council (NJC) Job Evaluation Scheme.  The NJC Scheme is designed for application 
within local authorities and provides a mechanism for reviewing the duties and 
responsibilities of the posts to determine the appropriate grade. 

 
4.2.2 Salary on recruitment in all pay ranges should be set at a level within the range 

consistent with attracting and securing the appointment of good calibre people. 
Flexibility exists to pay a higher incremental point or a higher salary within the range 
for both recruitment and retention purposes. Such practice must be made within 
budgetary arrangements and taking account of equality implications. 

 
4.2.3 The lowest remuneration for Council employees is Grade 1, SCP 5 £12,435 p.a. 

These are, in essence, the council’s “lowest paid employees”, by the fact that this 
grouping comprises the lowest paid workers in the council. These jobs have been 
objectively evaluated against their job content in the course of the implementation of 
Job Evaluation in Shropshire Council.  (The Council also employs apprentices who 
are not included within the definition of ‘lowest paid’ as they are temporary training 
posts). 

 
4.3 Pay Ranges – Principal Officer (PO) 

Page 152



5 

 

 
4.3.1 Shropshire Council has operated a PO pay scale, ranging from SCP 33 to SCP 57, 

across 22 grades.  This means that each grade overlaps with the pay scale of the 
grade above and below.  These cover posts requiring a high level of technical/ 
professional competence or have management responsibilities.   

 
4.3.2 Work is almost now complete to implement a new pay structure for PO graded posts 

based on a 4 band, 5 increment pay structure with each band abutting (rather than 
overlapping) each other.  This pay structure uses existing spinal column points and 
has been developed by carrying out a benchmarking job evaluation exercise on 
approximately 100 jobs using the Monks JE Scheme.  Implementation of the new 
bands is being carried out as part of restructuring activities with a deadline of 
completing all PO posts by summer 2014/15. 

 
4.3.3 A number of posts which were evaluated under the NJC Job Evaluation Scheme were 

identified as operating above Grade 10.  These posts are currently being paid at 
Grade 11(scp 35 - 37). These posts have also been compared against the Monks JE 
Scheme, in order to moderate their grade and also to ensure that the two schemes 
interlink correctly and will be assimilated onto the new PO band with other posts when 
their service area is restructured. 

 
4.4 Pay Ranges – Senior Pay Band (Currently under Review) 
 
4.4.1 The Senior Manager Pay bands were revised in December 2010.  The bands were 

determined following an assessment of median base pay for Public Sector Managers 
carried out by Price Waterhouse Coopers in September 2010.  The rates have been 
reduced by 2.7% with effect from 1 January 2012, and were further reduced in 
October 2012, in line with changes made to other Council staff (see paragraph 4.1.3 
above). 

Shropshire Council is going through significant changes to its operating model to 
move to a commissioning organisation.  The current grades are shown below and are 
subject to review, in line with service redesign: 

 

Grade Pay Range Job Title 

SP 1 £99,000 Chief Executive 
SP 2 £97,000 Director 
SP 3 £85,000 to £90,000 Area Commissioner 
SPB 4 £66,882 to £81,214 Head of Service 
SPB 5 £53,811 to £62,105 Service Manager 

 
4.4.2 A re-structure took place in January 2013 which saw new appointments made to SP1, 

SP2, SP3 and SPB4 grades. 
 

Page 153



6 

 

4.5  Other Pay Schemes 
 
4.5.1  Shropshire Council has a small number of employees on other nationally determined 

pay scales and conditions, including: 
· Soulbury (teaching staff now in school support roles) 
· NJC for Youth Workers 
· Craft Workers 

 
4.5.2 These pay schemes are used to give greater flexibility to meet particular service 

needs and assist in recruitment and retention of appropriately qualified and 
experienced staff within the respective sectors. 

 
4.6 Salary Progression 
 

Grade 1 to PO22/PO band 14 (scp 1 to scp 57) 
 

4.6.1. Incremental progression within the evaluated grade is due on the 1st April each year 
based on performance at work, or 6 months after appointment if less than 6 months in 
the new grade by 1st April, i.e. an increment is paid after 6 months if the employee is 
appointed between 1st October and 31st March.  A 2 year freeze of incremental 
progression was implemented following consultation with the trade unions between 1 
April 2011 and 31 March 2013. The freeze was lifted from 1 April 2013.  

 
4.6.2 Posts are usually advertised within salary bands which contain several annual 

increments, and where the top of the salary band advertised represents the maximum 
incremental point within that pay range. Appointments are normally made at the 
minimum of the pay range, unless there is an objectively justifiable reason e.g. the 
candidate’s previous experience or difficulties in recruiting at the lowest pay point.  
However, the advice of Human Resources must be sought in these cases, to ensure 
equality issues have been considered. 

 
4.6.3 Incremental progression (for posts on NJC for Local Government Services terms and 

conditions) within the pay range for the job takes place until the maximum SCP of the 
job is achieved.  

 
4.6.4 Accelerated Increments -The salary of an employee may be accelerated within the 

grade on the grounds of special merit or ability, by up to two increments, provided that 
the maximum of the grade is not exceeded.  The additional benefit of increments 
granted in this way is not carried over on the regrading of the post or on the 
employee's promotion to a higher graded post. 

4.6.5 Additional Increments 

4.6.5.1  Up to two additional increments may be granted to employees (graded on an NJC 
grade) beyond the normal maximum of the grade of the post to which they are 
appointed.   

4.6.5.2 The award of up to two additional increments may only be made to employees who 
have consistently achieved a high level of performance and who have made a 
significant contribution to the Council's work. 

Page 154



7 

 

4.6.5.3  All employees who have completed 35 years of service will be considered, but not 
automatically accepted for the additions. (Currently under review). 

4.6.5.4  At any one time, the number of employees receiving additional increments shall not 
exceed 3% of the number of full time employees employed under the conditions of 
service to which the scheme applies. 

4.6.6 Honoraria 

4.6.6.1  An employee, who for any reason other than the annual leave of another employee 
is called upon at the request of their Directorate to undertake the full duties and 
responsibilities of a higher graded post for a continuous period of at least four 
weeks, is entitled to be paid in accordance with the grading of the post temporarily 
occupied. The salary to be paid in such circumstances is the salary that would apply 
if the employee were promoted to the higher graded post. Once the qualifying period 
of four weeks has been satisfied the higher salary will be paid with effect from the 
first day on which the employee was required to undertake the full duties and 
responsibilities of the higher post.  
 

4.6.6.2  In any case where there is no automatic entitlement to a higher salary the Council 
may consider granting an honorarium (of an amount dependent upon the 
circumstances of each case) to an employee who performs duties outside the scope 
of his post over an extended period or where the additional duties and 
responsibilities involved are exceptionally onerous. 

4.6.7  Ex Gratia Payments 

4.6.7.1  The principal purpose of the ex-gratia payments scheme is to maintain the goodwill 
of staff who have suffered personal loss during the course of their duties and where 
no provision exists for the claim to be referred to the council's Insurers. 

4.7 Senior Pay Band 
 
4.7.1 New appointments will normally commence on the bottom of the salary band or on an 

‘entry salary’ within the bottom 10% of the salary band.  However, this may be 
adjusted to take account of previous experience and remuneration. 

4.7.2. Any additional payment within the Senior Pay Band will be based on performance in 
relation to the achievement of objectives and on meeting the behavioural 
competences set.  

4.7.3 Progression within Senior Pay Band was frozen for 2 years until 1 April 2013, pending 
the implementation of a Performance Related Pay Scheme.  Decisions have been 
made not to proceed with implementing such a scheme given the amount of change 
and service redesign that is taking place across the organisation.  As outlined in 4.4.2 
a re-structure took place in January 2013 which saw new appointments made to SP1, 
SP2, SP3 and SPB4 grades.  In April 2013, a 2.4% pay increase was applied to those 
on SPB5 in recognition of performance and in the absence of a formal Performance 
Related Pay Scheme.  This restructure and the restoration of incremental progression 
for NJC grades meant that the only group of staff to have no pay progression at all 
were Service Managers on SPB5.  Therefore an increment equivalent to the value of 
the average incremental increase (2.4% was applied to all those on SPB5 (only those 

Page 155



8 

 

with the headroom in grade received the increase with the value capped at the top of 
the grade).  Payment was made in recognition of Performance and in the absence of 
a formal Performance Related Pay Scheme. 

4.8 Pay Review 
 
4.8.1 Grades 1 to PO22/PO Band 14 are reviewed in line with the National Pay Award for 

Local Government staff. 
 
4.8.2 Shropshire Council’s Senior Pay Bands are locally determined and not subject to 

national pay negotiations by the JNC for Chief Executives and Chief Officers in Local 

Authorities. 

4.9 Market Supplement 
 
4.9.1 Basic pay may be supplemented by a market supplement which reflects the current 

national or regional rate for the nature of the post, as long as market evidence on 
demand for these skills supports it.  This market supplement will apply to a relatively 
small number of people, and will be subject to review, e.g. Children’s Safeguarding 
Social Workers. 

 
4.9.2 Any Market Supplements are reviewed annually and can be adjusted or removed in 

line with market changes. 
 
4.10 Recruitment and Retention Payments 
 
4.10.1 The Head of Human Resources has delegated powers under Shropshire Council’s 

Constitution to introduce and maintain employee benefits, other than the provision of 
cars, where these are likely to assist with recruitment and retention and where the 
costs can be found within existing budgets.   

 
4.11 Pay Data 
 
4.11.1.Shropshire Council will obtain up to date local, regional and, if appropriate, national 

pay data to inform decision making on local pay awards and market levels, alongside, 
other relative factors e.g. labour turnover rates. 

 
4.12  Allowances 
 

· Sick pay (Currently Under Review) 
Short term sick pay 
If an employee has already had one or more periods of sickness absence in the 
previous twelve months, the Council does not pay sick pay for the first three 
working days of sickness.  Currently this policy is suspended and therefore 
employees receive pay for the first three days. 

 
· Long term sick pay 

During 1st year of service 1 month’s full pay 
During 2nd year of service 2 months’ full pay 
During 3rd year of service 4 months’ full pay 
During 4th and 5th years of service 5 months’ full pay 

Page 156



9 

 

After 5 years of service 6 months’ full pay 
 
· Overtime 

Additional hours / overtime, which are not eligible for an enhancement (for night, 
weekend or public holiday work), will be paid at plain time. 

 
· Subsistence 

Subsistence payments for reimbursement of the cost of breakfast and evening 
meal are made when an employee is required to stay away from their home 
overnight on Council business, on production of appropriate receipted evidence of 
such expenditure. 

 
· Annual Leave 

All staff are eligible to receive 25 days annual leave plus bank holidays per year, 
with 5 days extra awarded to those staff with 5 years local government service, 
giving a maximum entitlement of 30 days a year.  

 
· Office Hours / Annualised Hours 

From 1 October 2011, the public opening hours for Shropshire Council are 7am to 
7pm, Monday to Friday and 8am to 1pm on a Saturday. All staff are subject to 
Annualised Hours, i.e. they are contracted to work a set number of hours over a 
year, not a fixed working week, with working patterns being made in line with  the 
Flexible Working Hours policy. 

 
·  Callout/Standby 

Payments are made to reflect the unsociability of working in particular 
circumstances, where an employee is recalled to work at short notice. These are 
locally agreed. 

 
·  Relocation 

Shropshire Council may provide relocation assistance to new recruits as part of 
the employment package; this is offered on an exceptional basis to attract 
candidates to hard to fill roles. The Council does not make payments to 
employees to reflect the costs of increased travel to work if the employee’s work 
location changes. Approval of relocation assistance is delegated to the Head of 
Human Resources. 

 
·  Salary Protection  

Shropshire Council operates salary protection arrangements in a range of 
circumstances including: 
Ø where an employee has been at risk of redundancy and is successfully 

redeployed to another post at a lower salary 
Ø Where an employee has been redeployed  to another lower graded post due to 

a disability or health related issue  
Ø Where as a result of a restructuring or grading review/ job evaluation process 

the grade of the post is reduced  
In these circumstances the employee will receive pay protection (based on the 
level of pay but not hours of work).  Protection normally applies for a period of up 
to 12 months.   

 

Page 157



10 

 

· Car Allowances 
Employees using their cars, motor cycles or cycles for the efficient performance of 
their duties, which have been agreed by their line manager, will be eligible to 
receive an allowance in line with HMRC Approved Mileage rates as follows  

Cars  
Up to 10,000 miles (in each financial year April to March) – 45p per mile 
Over 10,000 miles (in each financial year April to March) – 25p per mile 
 
Motor Cycle  24p per mile 

Cycles   
45p per miles for the first 10,000 miles (for cycles, reimbursement above 20p per 

mile is liable for income tax) 
 

4.13   Termination of Employment 

4.13.1 In relation to the termination of employment, the Council will have due regard to 
making any appropriate payments where it is in the Council's best interests. Any 
such payments will be in accordance with contractual or statutory requirements and 
take into account the potential risks and liabilities to the Council, including any legal 
costs, disruption to services, impact on employee relations and management time. 
This is consistent with the risk management practices of well governed organisations 
in private, public and voluntary/charitable sectors. 

4.13.2   Where a severance package (not including employee statutory entitlements) 
exceeds £100,000, the decision to award such a package will be made by full 
Council. 

4.13.3.  Shropshire Council has adopted a policy preventing any employee who has retired 
early from being re-employed or re-engaged by the authority other than in 
exceptional circumstances. 

5.0 Notice Periods 

5.1  The contractual period of notice required to be given to an employee to terminate 
their employment, and that required of them on resignation, will be clearly stated 
 in the terms of their appointment.  The following local scheme on contractual 
notice periods has been adopted for NJC employees:- 

Those graded up to and including Grade 8 1 month 

Those on Grade 9 to P08 (scp 29-43) inclusive 2 months 

Those graded P09 (scp 41-44) and above 3 months 

 

5.2  The contractual notice period for Chief Officers is 3 months. 

5.3.  The statutory provisions relating to minimum periods of notice to be given by the 
employer to any employee are as contained in the Employment Rights Act 1996 

Page 158



11 

 

Period of continuous employment - Minimum notice 

One month or more but less than 2 years Not less than 1 week 

Two years or more but less than 12 years 1 week for each year of 
continuous service 

12 years or more Not less than 12 weeks 

 
5.4  The employer's obligation to the employee under the contractual notice agreed must 

always be read against any additional notice required to be given to the employee 
under the statutory grade. Therefore an employee with one month's contractual 
notice entitlement, with 5 years’ service, will be entitled to five weeks statutory notice 
on the termination of their employment by the Council and an additional week's 
notice for each additional year's service up to a maximum of 12 weeks’ notice. 

 
 
6.0 Pensions 
 
6.1  All Council employees are entitled to join the Local Government Pension scheme 

(LGPS) which is offered by Local Government Employers. If staff are eligible for 
membership of the LGPS, they will automatically become a member of the 
“scheme”. in accordance with the Auto Enrolment Regulations.  Employees have the 
right to decide to opt out of the “scheme” by following the required process. The 
benefits and contributions payable under the Fund are set out in the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) 
Regulations 2007 (as amended) and Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012. Appendix B provides details of Shropshire 
Council’s Pensions and Retirement Policy and Appendix C details of the Council’s 
Redundancy and Compensation Policy.  

 
6.2  The current level of contribution to the scheme by employees effective from 1 April 

2013 is as follows, based on full time equivalent pensionable pay: 
 

Band Full-time equivalent salary Contribution rate 

1 £0 - £13,700 5.5% 

2 >£13,701 -£16,100 5.8% 

3 >£16,101 - £20,800 5.9% 

4 >£20,801 - £34,700 6.5% 

5 >£34,701 - £46,500 6.8% 

6 >£46,501 - £87,100 7.2% 

7 More than £87,100 7.5% 

 
6.3  A new LGPS Scheme for 2014 is being introduced from April 2014.  This will see a 

number of changes to the current scheme which include (but are not limited to): 
 

· Moving from a final salary based scheme to a career average scheme. 

Page 159



12 

 

· Contribution Rates – how these are calculated  and the level of contributions will 
change. 

· What is included in Pensionable pay  
· Employees may opt for retirement from age 55 onwards at a full cost to 

themselves on termination of pensionable employment, without employer consent. 
 
 
7.0  Senior Pay 
 
7.1 The salary levels of Chief Officers on appointment is set by elected members, at the 

relevant committee of the council. The salary details for Chief Officers are published 
at: 

 
http://www.shropshire.gov.uk/opendata.nsf/open/C9FDB1C9DB7476998025782900
3B6C52 
 
This information has been published since October 2010in the interests of openness 
and transparency, and shows levels of remuneration for Chief Officers for the 
previous financial year. The definition of Chief Officer is contained in paragraph 3.3 
above. 

 
7.2  Under Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment No2) (England) 

Regulations 2009 [SI 2009 No.3322] the Council has a legal requirement to report 
the remuneration of senior employees as part of its published salaries information. 
This requirement has now been reinforced under section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 
2011, which requires the Council to produce a pay policy statement on an annual 
basis. 

 
7.3  The relationship between the rate of pay for the lowest paid Council employees and 

the chief officers’ is determined by the processes used for determining pay and 
grading structures as set out earlier in this policy statement . The statutory guidance 
under the Localism Act recommends the use of pay multiples as a means of 
measuring the relationship between pay rates across the workforce and that of 
senior managers, as included within the Hutton review ‘Review of Fair Pay in the 
Public Sector’ 2010.  The Government supports the case for a fixed limit on 
dispersion of pay, through a requirement that no public sector manager can earn 
more than 20 times the lowest paid person in the organisation.  The Hutton report 
concluded that the relationship to median earnings was a more relevant measure 
and the Government’s Code of Recommended Practice on Data Transparency 
recommends the publication of the ratio between the highest paid salary and the 
median average salary of the authority’s workforce. 

 
7.4 The remuneration of the most senior manager within Shropshire Council, the Chief 

Executive is £99,000.  The median basic remuneration for a full time equivalent 
employee of Shropshire Council is £18,273 per annum. The mean basic pay, based 
on  4,793 posts ranging in pay from the Chief Executive remuneration to Grade 1 
(SCP 5 - £12,435), is £20,653  The current pay multiple from top to bottom of the 
organisation is 1:8. The ratio from the median pay to the Director of Operations pay 
is 1:6, which is well within the limits outlined in the Hutton Review. 

 

Page 160



13 

 

7.5 Chief Officers do not receive bonuses. 
 
7.6 The Section 151 Officer (Head of Governance and Assurance) and The Monitoring 

Officer (Head of Legal and Democratic Services) receive a responsibility allowance 
of £15,000 per annum.   

 
7.7 All Chief Officers are eligible for the same Car Allowance as outlined for all 

employees in section 4.9 above 
 
7.8  Chief Officers are currently entitled to 30 days annual leave. 
 
7.9 The Council will, have regard to the specific legal requirements which apply to the 

termination of employment of the Head of Paid Service, the Section 151 Officer and 
the Monitoring Officer as its Statutory Officers. 

 
 
8.0 Accountability and Decision Making on Remuneration and Reward  
 
8.1 The Council’s Cabinet has powers delegated to it in accordance with Section 3 of the 

Constitution, to make decisions on major policy matters affecting the council as a 
whole and to make decisions which have significant service or resource implications 
across the Council as a whole  This includes significant locally determined changes 
to staff terms and conditions and remuneration. 

 
8.2 The Employees’ Joint Consultative Committee which consists of Trade union 

representatives and Members is constituted to agree changes to employee terms 
and conditions, such as changes to allowances, mileage, and annual leave, subject 
to ratification by Cabinet and, where the decision has significant financial 
implications, by full Council. 

 
8.3 In accordance with the Council’s constitution the Head of Paid Service (Director of 

Operations) has delegated powers to approve the grading and regrading of posts 
(covered by NJC for Local Government Service, Soulbury and Youth and 
Community Worker Conditions of Service) where the grade maximum is PO17 or 
above (or equivalent). Chief Officers have authority to approve changes to the 
grading of posts (covered by NJC for Local Government Service, Soulbury and 
Youth and Community Worker Conditions of Service), taking account of job 
evaluation outcomes for posts covered by these schemes and subject to financial 
provision for the current and future years being available, and the proposed 
maximum of the grade being below PO 17 (or equivalent).  

 
8.4 New appointments that are made which have a remuneration package with a value 

of over £100,000 will be subject to approval of full Council. 
 
 
9.0 Review of the Policy 
 
9.1  This policy will be subject to annual review and amendment, taking account of 

legislation, external best practise, internal data on recruitment and retention and 
external pay data etc. 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

Committee and Date

Cabinet

30th July 2014
12:30pm

Item

7
Public

FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 – 2017/18

Responsible Officer James Walton
e-mail: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 255011

1. Summary

This overview includes the latest estimates of the Council’s revenue resources
and expenditure. It is set in the context of the Council’s other key strategic
documents, in particular, the Treasury Management Strategy and the Capital
Strategy which is now incorporated within the Business Plan.

The Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17 was
agreed by Full Council on 27 February 2014. The Plan identified a funding gap
of £80m over the 3 years 2014/15 to 2016/17 and sets out the Council’s
approach to redesigning services and delivering the required savings by making
the best use of resources available. The Financial Strategy is a rolling plan which
is revised throughout each financial year, usually quarterly, as more information
becomes available about the level of resources, service pressures and service
delivery changes. This report is the first Financial Strategy in 2014/15. The
report will consider the information from current year monitoring reports and any
implications of this for future year’s budgets. It will also consider revised
information for years 2 and 3, 2015/16 and 2016/17 of the current financial plan
and outline initial projections for 2017/18.

2. Recommendations

It is recommended that members:

A. Note that the funding gap of £80m for the period 2014-17 identified in the
Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council in
February 2014 is retained for planning purposes.

B. Note the initial funding gap identified for 2017/18, which will be refined
before being built into the Council’s next Medium Term Financial Plan

C. Note that a further, updated report, is due to be presented to Council in
September to reflect the financial implications of the planned university and
Annual Business Plan for ip&e.

Page 163



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1. The development and delivery of the Council’s Business Plan and Financial
Strategy for the next three years is the key process in managing many of
the Council’s strategic risks. The opportunities and risks arising are
assessed each time the document is refreshed for Cabinet consideration.
The Council’s Strategic Risks are reported separately, but the Business
Plan and Financial Strategy makes specific reference to the significant
financial uncertainty across Local Government in the Medium Term.

Financial Uncertainty

3.2. The 2014/15 funding settlement gave illustrative figures for 2015/16 only.

There is a risk that these figures are further reduced when the provisional

2015/16 settlement is announced in December 2014. Also there is

increased uncertainty around funding levels beyond the current

parliamentary term. This increases uncertainty both in 2015/16 and future

years as previously incoming governments have made in year as well as

future year changes to local government departmental expenditure limits.

3.3. As government funding reduces, the Council becomes more reliant on

locally retained business rates. As detailed in previous reports, a reduction

in business rate income in any year would have to be around 10% before a

safety net payment would be invoked. This drop is higher than the 7.5%

indicated in the funding mechanism as the Council’s budgeted business

rate income is higher than the baseline level that the 7.5% drop would be

measured against.

3.4. Locally retained business rates introduce uncertainty to the Council’s in

year available resources; previously the Council was informed of the

amount of redistributed business rates it would receive before the start of

the financial year, under the new system the resources the Council actually

receives will only be estimated in advance and could vary significantly.

3.5. Variations from budgeted revenues for both Business Rates and Council

Tax are dealt with through the relative collection fund account. The timing

of the availability of the final figures means that adjustments required, i.e.

deficits or surpluses on the collection fund, fall 2 years after the year in

which they relate. To mitigate the risk of large variations in estimated

Business Rates, monitoring of Business Rates income will be further

developed and reported regularly, reducing risk as the level and quality of

data is increased.

Page 164



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

3.6. The funding mechanism does not reflect any service needs changes from

year to year. It is proposed that the system will not be reset for 7 years i.e.

until 2020/21.

3.7. By creating a Financial Strategy that continues to look beyond the next

three years at the longer-term and is regularly updated to reflect new

information, the Council is in a stronger position to approach future

challenges proactively, rather than reactively.

3.8. While the Financial Strategy represents our approach to the mitigation of

the financial uncertainty we are faced with, the tight and uncertain financial

climate over the medium to long term still presents a high risk to the

authority. In addition to the known uncertainties we have planned for, there

remains potential for further, as yet unrecognised, risks. For this reason, a

prudent approach to the level of reserves held by the Council remains

sensible and necessary. As the new Business Rates Retention system

becomes embedded this will mean the revision of newly introduced

provisions for rating appeals and other fluctuations.

3.9. The Council has started the financial year 2014/15 with a reasonable level

of general reserve to help mitigate against the risk of delay in

implementation of the significant savings proposals. It is essential that this

is kept under review both in the current year and with a view to future years

and balancing the budget.

Other Risks and Opportunities

3.10. The Business Plan and Financial Strategy sets the resource parameters

within which the Council can commission services to meet its priority

outcomes. All risks and opportunities which have a material monetary value

are considered within the strategy.

3.11. The Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy recognises that there

are risks and opportunities associated with ip&e as it is a wholly owned

company of the Council. The development of the Council’s future financial

strategy will be clear about the financial expectations of ip&e and how this

will impact on the Council’s budget.

3.12. Setting the Financial Strategy and agreeing the detailed changes necessary

to deliver the agreed budget for the next financial year, will take into

account the requirements of the Human Rights Act, any necessary

environmental appraisals and the need for Equalities Impact Needs

Assessments and any necessary service user consultation.

Page 165



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

4. The Current Year Budget, 2014/15

4.1. In February, Council agreed a savings target of £41.531m for 2014/15 and
savings identified against this target of £39.892m. It was recognised that
there was a shortfall on savings target of £1.639m in 2014/15 which would
need to be identified from within 2014/15 budget.

4.2. The proposals put forward for 2014/15 were reviewed to consider risks

associated with delivery within available timescales as follows:

Green – Saving identified, quantified and confirmed and achieved

Amber – Saving identified, quantified and confirmed but not yet achieved

Red, either – Saving identified but not quantified and confirmed or achieved,

or – Saving unachievable

4.3. The report recognised that revision and re-phasing of growth proposals

reflected an increase in, and addition to, the resources available to offset

savings of £6.262m in 2014/15 on a one off basis. The first call on this is

the shortfall on savings identified in 2014/15 of £1.639m. The remaining

balance is available to address financial issues within 2014/15.

4.4. Following Council in February, work has been undertaken to review the

RAG categorisation of savings, extend the categorisation to all 3 years of

the financial strategy and identify any areas were the achievement of saving

and/or redesign of service is at risk of being significantly delayed or

unachievable. These areas have been referred to as Key Areas of Concern

and have been the subject of heightened management action by Directors

and Cabinet Members from 11 June 2014.

4.5. Table 1 below identifies the RAG rating for all 2014/15 proposals based on:

An initial assessment;

Review by the Finance Team based on financial evidence available;

and finally

Overlay by Directors and Portfolioholders based on delivery of

milestones and action being undertaken on the ground (in the absence

of financial data to justify projections).

Page 166



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

Table 1: Update on Delivery of 2014/15 Savings Proposals
Service Area Position

as at 11th

June 2014
£’000

Finance
Team
Initial
Assessme
nt as at
Period 3
£’000

Reviewed and
Agreed
Projection for
Period 3
£’000

Red Savings
Adult Services 1,304 2,511 0
Children’s Services 2,922 1,908 1,908
Commissioning 1,287 1,287 1,287
Public Health 0 0 0
Resources & Support 684 684 684
Corporate 0 0 0

6,197 6,390 3,879

Amber Savings
Adult Services 5,781 4,812 0
Children’s Services 999 569 0
Commissioning 774 774 774
Public Health 0 0 0
Resources & Support 352 352 123
Corporate 0 0 0

7,906 6,507 897

Green Savings
Adult Services 3,148 2,910 10,233
Children’s Services 3,291 4,735 5,304
Commissioning 6,144 6,144 6,144
Public Health 55 55 55
Resources & Support 6,351 6,351 6,580
Corporate 6,800 6,800 6,800

25,789 26,995 35,116

TOTAL SAVINGS 39,892 39,892 39,892

4.6. The most recent categorisation, as at Period 3, is shown in the pie charts

below with detail by service area and change since the last reported

position detailed in Appendix 1.

Page 167



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

2,510,933

3,878,833

896,652

5,610,131

26,995,007

2014/15 Savings (£) RAG Ratings

Red Rated - Finance Team

Initial Assessment
Red Rated - Reviewed and

Agreed Projection
Amber Rated - Reviewed

and Agreed Projection
Amber Rated - Finance

Team Initial Assessment
Green Rated

12,846,15511,322,809

2,272,469

2015/16 Savings (£) RAG Ratings

Red

Amber

Green

Page 168



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

4.7. The key areas of concern around achievement of savings and service

redesign identified to date are:-

Adults services – Contracts, Direct Payments, Purchasing and

Transition

Children’s Services – Looked After Children, Learning and Skills

(savings from Inspire To Learn Project)

Commissioning Services – Environmental Maintenance, Waste

Management

Resources and Support – Property (rationalisation of assets)

4.8. Savings relating to these key areas of concern form a significant amount of

red rated saving identified in 2014/15 and into future years and by

identifying them as key areas early in the process, it is possible to provide

greater resilience to the Medium Term Financial Plan. Where further review

identifies areas where savings are delayed or not achievable in 2014/15,

there is the possibility that they can be covered in 2014/15 by the use of

one off savings/ grants/ reserves when the underlying saving still remains to

be implemented. Where the on-going saving can be implemented, but over

a longer timescale, this approach does not destabilise the Financial

Strategy. Where a saving proves unachievable, for whatever reason, this

will be reported back through the Financial Strategy and alternative

approaches identified. This is discussed in more detail below.

13,865,390

1,062,457

1,645,459

2016/17 Savings (£) RAG Ratings

Red

Amber

Green

Page 169



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

4.9. A separate report to Cabinet on 30 July 2014 considers Period 3 Revenue

Monitoring position. At this early stage in the year the projection is that the

revenue budget for 2014/15 will be £3.225m overspent.

4.10. The monitoring report provides detail on the build up of this overspend

projection, in terms of unachievable 2014/15 savings and other service

pressures or funding.

4.11. For the Financial Strategy it is the impact of any 2014/15 monitoring issues

in future years which is important. Often pressures arising within a year are

dealt with on a one off basis within year and the ongoing pressure then

needs to be addressed in the next financial year. This is true for both

unachievable savings and new service pressures.

4.12. As we move into 2015/16 budget, the current assumption is that £41.531m

of savings have been achieved and expenditure to be incurred in 2015/16

can be financed by the resources identified for 2015/16. Where information

arising from 2014/15 monitoring makes this assumption incorrect it is

important this is identified.

4.13. The tables below provide a summary by service area of budget issues

identified in the current year monitoring projections which will impact on

future years budgets

Table 2: Red and Amber rated Savings in 2014/15 which may have
implications for future years

Red Savings
detailed in
Projection

Amber Savings
detailed in
Projection

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000

Adult Services 0 0 0
Children’s Services 1,908 0 1,908
Commissioning 1,287 774 2,061
Public Health 0 0 0
Resources & Support 683 123 806
Corporate 0 0 0
TOTAL 3,878 897 4,775

Page 170



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

Table 3: Pressures identified in 2014/15 which may have implications for
future years

Ongoing
Monitoring
Pressures
Identified

Ongoing
Savings

Delivered

Ongoing
Monitoring

Savings
Identified

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Adult Services 2,846 0 -34 2,812
Children’s Services 416 -3 -416 -3
Commissioning 2,542 -483 0 2,059
Public Health 0 0 0 0
Resources & Support 428 0 0 428
Corporate 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 6,232 -486 -450 5,296

4.14. At this stage in the financial year, the issues identified above are being

actively monitored and regular meetings with Portfolio holders are being

held to accelerate decision making to progress achievement of savings. It

has been made clear that savings must be achieved or alternatives found.

Any delay in implementation must be offset by one off savings.

4.15. The Period 3 Monitor identifies savings flagged as Red and Amber for

which there is a degree of uncertainty over deliverability and also

pressures within services that fall outside of savings proposals. The total

proposals flagged Red and Amber sum to £4.775m (as shown in Table 2),

although at this stage it is anticipated that these are deliverable in a longer

timeframe or can be replaced by alternative proposals and as such do not

destabilise the Financial Strategy. In addition, the Period 3 monitor has

identified £4.727m of pressures that have arisen in-year, but have the

potential to continue into future years, causing an issue that needs to be

recognised and managed within the Medium Term Financial Plan. The

current estimate of the net pressures requiring resolution in the longer

term is £5.296m (as shown in Table 3). In the main this pressure consists

of the ongoing pressure identified late in 2013/14 relating to the revenue

and capital split in redesigned highways and environmental maintenance

work, and growth in Adult Social Care placements currently appearing to

exceed the modelled growth identified over the Medium Term Financial

Plan period. These issues are not yet at a stage where financial

implications can be built into the Financial Strategy, instead they are

currently being flagged as issues for further investigation only.

4.16. The monitoring and balancing of the 2014/15 budget will continue to be

reported throughout 2014/15 as part of the monitoring reports.

Page 171



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

4.17. For 2014/15, any projected overspend would have to be financed by the

general reserve which has a balance as at 1 April 2014 of £14.497m.

5. Resource and Expenditure Projections 2015/16 and 16/17

5.1. The Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council in

February identified the expenditure and resource projections for 2015/16

and 2016/17.

5.2. The projections have been revised to reflect the latest information and also

to include initial projections for 2017/18. The table below provides the

information provided at Council and the updated information with further

explanation of any changes detailed in the paragraphs below.

Table 3: Resource and Expenditure Projections 2015/16-2017/18

2014/15

Feb 14
Council

£’000

2015/16

Feb 14
Council

£’000

2015/16

Revised

£’000

2016/17

Feb 14
Council

£’000

2016/17

Revised

£’000

2017/18

Projection

£’000

Resources 558,886 551,510 548,424 540,015 531,072

Expenditure
Projections

579,022 572,125 586,893 578,678 582,483

Cumulative
Savings
Target

38,469 38,664 51,410

Achieved in
Previous
Year(s)

41,531 20,136 20,615 38,664

In Year
Savings

20,136 20,615 18,333 18,048 12,746

Change
(Cum)

479 194

Resource Projections

5.3. Government funding to Shropshire includes Revenue Support Grant and, in

Shropshire’s case, top up grant. When the current Local Government

Finance system was introduced in April 2013, approximately 50% of funding

came from Revenue Support Grant and the remainder from locally retained

Business Rates adjusted by top ups and tariffs. The government made

Page 172



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

assumptions about the amount of locally retained business rates to

calculate top up and tariff payments at the start of the system to ensure the

new system did not inadvertently adjust any local authority’s total

government funding. The Assumed Locally Retained Business Rates, Top

Up Payment and the Revenue Support Grant together are referred to as the

Authority’s Settlement Funding Assessment. The Assumed or Baseline

Business Rates and Top Up figure are fixed in real terms and increased

annually by RPI as part of the funding mechanism. Any change to the total

government funding is therefore only implemented by a change in Revenue

Support Grant as the other two funding components are fixed.

5.4. The Settlement Funding Assessment is important for the Authority as it is

used not only to calculate % reductions going forward but also the Baseline

Business Rates is used to calculate Shropshire’s safety net. However, for

resource projections Shropshire uses its own projections on locally retained

Business Rates based on up to date local information which is also included

in government returns.

5.5. The 2014/15 Local Government Finance Settlement in February 2014

provided illustrative figures for 2015/16. These showed a reduction in

Settlement Funding Assessment of 14% and a consequence reduction in

the Revenue Support Grant Element of 27.5% for 2015/16. Our current

assumptions for 2016/17 assume a reduction of 11.5% in Settlement

Funding Assessment and 25.5% in Revenue Support Grant. A recent

survey carried out by the Society of County Treasurers Technical Team in

Somerset indicates that other authorities are assuming reductions in

funding between 8% and 14%.

5.6. In terms of Locally Retained Business Rates, projections for 2015/16 have

been updated following the outturn position for 2013/14 and increased

information about appeals, reliefs and adjustments between the collection

and general fund. No growth has been built into Business Rates projections

going forward. Although the business rates multiplier will increase by RPI

each year (unless restricted), the rateable value projections are too volatile

for any growth to be assumed at this stage. This assumption is in line with

assumptions around future Business Rates levels made by other authorities

who replied to the technical team survey referred to above.

5.7. Council tax income projections have been updated to increase the growth in

council tax base projected from 0.2% to 0.5%. Council Tax has been frozen

at 2014/15 levels going forward.

5.8. The Local Government Department Expenditure Limit (DEL) used in the

calculation of illustrative 2015/16 funding calculations has been top sliced

for several things such as new homes bonus, safety net payments and

Page 173



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

capitalisation of transformation expenditure. The government policy on this

top slicing is that any unused top sliced amounts will be returned to local

authorities. The current projections include a returned amount for new

homes bonus as indicated in the settlement details but no return for other

items. In 2013/14, the Council received notification of £354k for return of

unused capitalisation top slice on 27 March 2014. Further returns could be

made in 2014/15 and future years providing an in year bonus.

5.9. Income from Specific Grants has been revised to reflect the latest

information. Revised amounts for 2014/15 will be dealt with as part of

revenue monitoring. In 2015/16 there has been a reduction from the initial

projections of £6.8m. Of this, £3m, is a net adjustment for grant

recoupment for academy status and additional funding for High Needs.

Also within Children’s services, Education Services Grant (ESG) has

reduced significantly both in 2014/15 and further in 2015/16. In addition, a

number of grants will cease in 2015/16 including Local Sustainable

Transport Fund and Social Fund Grant. The current assumption is that

reductions in specific grants will be offset by reductions in expenditure in the

service areas. This assumption may need to be revisited as services

continue to be reviewed throughout this year.

5.10. Assumptions on the payment of Council tax freeze grant are based on

budget announcements and are as follows:

2011/12 was paid as specific grant in 2011/12 and was then rolled

into the base funding

2012/13 was paid for 1 year only

2013/14 was paid as a grant in 2013/14 and then added to the Local

Government Departmental Expenditure Limit (LG DEL) in 2014/15

2014/15 will be paid as a grant in both 2014/15 and 2015/16 and will

then be built into spending review baselines

2015/16 will be paid as a grant in 2015/16 only

2016/17 and future years – no announcement has been made

regarding further grants in 2016/17 and beyond.

5.11. Included within specific grants are additional grants paid to the Council as

a result of government policies on business rates which have reduced the

Council’s share of Business Rates income. Examples of these are the cap

of 2% on the increase in the rateable value multiplier and the temporary

extension of the doubling of small business rate relief scheme.

Page 174



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

5.12. Income from fees and charges has been left at current levels in the

projections. As savings are implemented and services are redesigned

income from fees and charges will change however at this stage there is

insufficient information to amend the current figures.

5.13. Detailed Resource projections are shown in Appendix 2

Expenditure Projections

5.14. The expenditure projections include growth for pay and prices,

demography, use of New Homes Bonus funding and adjustments to reflect

changes between years for grants.

5.15. A review of pay and prices inflation has resulted in small net adjustments

in both 2015/16 and 2016/17 using the latest employee costs and contract

information. It is clear that going forward there will be a change in the

relative size of each of these expenditure groups. This will effect pay and

prices calculations. The Council will need to ensure that as it moves to a

commissioning council, it does not increase the financial risk of increased

costs due to inflationary linked contracts.

5.16. Although a debt charge figure is shown in 2015/16 and 2016/17, this has

been used as a saving. The current projections assume that the Council

will not increase it’s borrowing. A change in the capital strategy to borrow

would mean that this saving could not be achieved and revenue growth for

debt charges would need to be found.

5.17. The figures included for demographic growth for Adults and Children’s

were reviewed last Autumn. Both Adults and Children’s services are

monitoring the actual growth the services are encountering and further

information on this will be provided in future financial strategies.

5.18. As detailed above in the Resource projections, changes in specific grants

are assumed to change expenditure projections by the same amount. If

reductions in specific grant funding can not be matched by a reduction in

expenditure this would increase savings requirements.

5.19. There are a number of grants currently being received which the Council

has no budgeted expenditure against. These include the s31 grants for

Business Rates, Council Tax freeze Grant and any return of top sliced

amounts. In 2013/14, growth of £2.277m was built in for a provision for

business rates appeals. This figure was required on a one off basis in

2013/14 and it is anticipated that future appeals liabilities will be dealt with

through the Business Rates Collection Fund.

Page 175



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

5.20. The current expenditure projections do not include any new base budget

commitments which may arise as the Council develops it’s plans towards

a University for Shropshire. This is considered later in section 7.

5.21. At this stage the revised resource and expenditure projections change the

2015/16 position by less that £0.5m and in 2016/17 the change is reduced

to less than £0.2m. On this basis the savings target within the Council

Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council on 27 February 2014 of

£80m over 3 years will not be revised. As we continually refine and

update the financial strategy this target will remain under review.

5.22. Detailed Expenditure projections are shown in Appendix 3

6. 2017/18 Initial Projections

6.1. Resource projections for 2017/18 indicate a further reduction in revenue

support grant of £9.5m. This reduction in resources is offset slightly by

growth in Council tax base which is estimated to increase the income from

Council Tax by £0.6m. In addition to this reduction in resources, current

projections for inflationary growth are £4.1m. The Council is therefore

facing a shortfall in resources of at least £13m in 2017/18. Services

pressures including demography or increased borrowing would add to this

funding shortfall.

6.2. Service pressures identified to date which would impact on 2017/18

budget include auto enrolment. Auto enrolment was introduced in April

2013. The scheme means that employees not currently opted into the

pensions scheme would be periodically opted in and would have to

physically request to be left out. It is therefore envisaged that more

employees will become scheme Members. This comes at a cost to

Shropshire Council by way of having to make pension contributions for

those employees newly opted in. Shropshire Council has been able to

defer the staging date for the scheme so that it does not commence until

April 2017 therefore no extra pension cost will be incurred until the

financial year 2017/18. It is difficult to estimate the financial implications of

this as it will depend on the employees who decide to remain opted in. It

has previously been estimated that on the basis of a worst case scenario

costs could be in excess of £1m.

6.3. In addition a major pressure facing Adult Social Services is the

introduction of the Care Act 2014. Members were provided with a briefing

note on the Dilnot Report – Implications for Shropshire Council as part of

the Financial Strategy report considered by Cabinet on 15 January 2014.

In May 2014, the Care Bill received royal assent and the Act introduces

legislative changes based on the findings and recommendations in the

Page 176



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

Dilnot Report. Changes arising from the Act are phased with some

changes around assessments coming in from 1 April 2015 the financial

implications of which are currently uncertain. Changes around thresholds

and the cap will be introduced from 1 April 2016 which will create

additional funding pressures in 2016/17 which will increase in 2017/18 as

client contributions reach the cap. The government has indicated that

additional funding will be made available to local authorities to fund

additional costs including implementation costs. The financial

implications of the Act are currently being modelled and further information

will be provided later in this financial year.

7. University of Shropshire

7.1. Council received a report on 17 July 2014 outlining plans for a University

for Shropshire and approved a project budget of up to £1m to allow the

development of plans including pre contract/construction activity and any

costs associated with decanting staff from buildings. This funding is within

existing budgets previously earmarked for transformation.

7.2. Council will receive a further report on a developed Business Case for the

University at its meeting on 25 September 2014. The financial

implications of any proposals will be included in an updated Council

Business Pan and Financial Strategy which will be taken to the same

meeting for approval.

8. The impact on the Council’s budget of Transfers to the Council’s wholly

owned company i,p&e

8.1. There have been two areas of service which have transferred to ip&e to

date, Media Services known as ThreeSixty Communications and the

Project Management Office and the Business Design team, known at the

time as ‘Change for the Best’. The estimated budget available to

commission these services is shown below:

Table 3: Budgets identified to commission services from ip&e

2015/16
-
Estimate

2016/17 -
Estimate

£ £
Programme Management
Office

315,160 186,660 (TBC)

Business Design Team 209,160 166,260
“Change for the Best”

sub total
524,320 352,920

ThreeSixty
Communications

272,680 242,980

Page 177



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

Total 797,000 595,900

8.2. As reported in February to Council, the budget for “Change for the Best”

for 2016/17 has still to be agreed. It can be seen that a substantial

reduction has been made to the budgets available to commission services.

It is envisaged that the services within ip&e will strive to generate external

income to offset the reductions in council spending. Alternatively, savings

will need to be found from expenditure budgets.

8.3. Other services which have currently been agreed for consideration to

transfer to ip&e include Public Health Services – ‘Help to Change’, School

Support Services - ‘Inspire to Learn’ and Regulatory and Business Support

Services - ‘Fulcrum’.

8.4. ip&e are currently preparing it's Annual Business Plan which has been

held back while the potential for the above services and implications of the

University proposal are given due consideration. Once available, the ip&e

Annual Business Plan will allow costings to be included In the Council’s

financial Strategy over a three year period.

8.5. As further services are considered for transfer to ip&e, full consideration

will be given to the budget available both in the current year and future

years for the council to commission transferring services. Services

transferring will be clear about future savings to be made by the council

from the budget available to commission services from ip&e.

9. Longer Term Financial Outlook

9.1. The longer term financial outlook as detailed in the Council’s Business

Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council in February 2014 is

continually being updated and refined. Details of how the Council is

working differently now and how this will develop over the coming years

will be set out in more detail over the coming months, ahead of a refresh

of the Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy for the next Medium

Term Financial Plan 2016/17 to 2018/19.

Page 178



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014-17 – Council 27 February 2014

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
Keith Barrow – Leader

Local Member
All

Appendices

Appendix 1 2014-17 Savings RAG Rated

Appendix 2 Resource Projections 2015/16 – 2017/18

Appendix 3 Expenditure Projections 2015/16 – 2017/18

Page 179



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

APPENDIX 1

2014/15, 2015/16 AND 2016/17 SAVINGS RAG RATED

2014/15

Savings RAG

Ratings

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 0 0 10,233,360 10,233,360

Children's Services 1,908,329 0 5,303,671 7,212,000

Commissioning 1,287,072 773,757 6,144,378 8,205,207

Public Health 0 0 54,727 54,727

Resources &

Support 683,432 123,000 13,379,830 14,186,262

Council 3,878,833 896,757 35,115,966 39,891,556

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

Adult Services Children's

Services

Commissioning Public Health Resources &

Support

2014/15 Savings RAG Rated by Service Area

Green Rated

Amber Rated - Finance Team Initial Assessment

Amber Rated - Reviewed and Agreed Projection

Red Rated - Reviewed and Agreed Projection

Red Rated - Finance Team Initial Assessment

Page 180



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

APPENDIX 1 (CONTINUED)

2015/16 Savings RAG Ratings

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 200,000 8,214,237 306,500 8,720,737

Children's Services 2,915,000 350,000 300,000 3,565,000

Commissioning 4,958,574 997,387 481,618 6,437,579

Public Health 0 0 0 0

Resources &

Support 4,772,581 1,761,185 1,184,351 7,718,117

Council 12,846,155 11,322,809 2,272,469 26,441,433

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

10,000,000

Adult Services Children's

Services

Commissioning Public Health Resources &

Support

2015/16 Savings RAG Rated by Service Area
Green

Amber

Red

Page 181



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

APPENDIX 1 (CONTINUED)

2016/17 Savings RAG Ratings

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 5,496,246 0 0 5,496,246

Children's Services 1,890,000 0 0 1,890,000

Commissioning 3,511,238 871,609 0 4,382,847

Public Health 0 0 0 0

Resources &

Support 2,967,906 190,848 1,645,459 4,804,213

Council 13,865,390 1,062,457 1,645,459 16,573,306

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

2016/17 Savings RAG Rated by Service Area

Green

Amber

Red

Page 182



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

Total Council Savings 2014/15 To 2016/17

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 8,207,179 13,026,408 3,216,756 24,450,343

Children's Services 5,814,329 918,960 5,933,711 12,667,000

Commissioning 10,144,459 2,255,178 6,625,996 19,025,633

Public Health 0 0 54,727 54,727

Resources &

Support 8,423,919 2,303,928 15,980,745 26,708,592

Council 32,589,886 18,504,474 31,811,935 82,906,295

Page 183



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 – Financial Strategy

APPENDIX 3

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL - FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2015/16 to 2017/18

2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18

27 Feb 2014 30 July 2014 27 Feb 2014 30 July 2014 30 July 2014

£ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Original Gross Budget Requirement 572,138,661 572,138,661 579,022,206 572,125,394 578,678,441

Current Year Monitoring Issues with ongoing implications

- Asset Sales - Removal of income stream 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0

- As identified as at P3- no growth included as at P3 0 0 0

2014/15 - New Budget Growth

Inflation

- Prices 2,852,381 2,796,947 3,006,053 2,921,147 3,058,689

- Pay 1% award 885,196 710,957 839,083 723,654 734,834

- Pay Increment 496,988 637,769 281,097 480,607 332,950

- Pension Costs 0 0 3,500,000 3,500,000 0

- Auto Enrolment (impacts 2017/18)-ESTIMATE 0 0 TBC

Committed Growth

- Debt Charges (Reduced as part of Savings) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0

New Growth

- Demography: Adults 1,758,000 1,758,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 0

- Demography: Childrens services 1,183,000 1,183,000 1,183,000 1,183,000 0

New Service Pressures

New Investment funding- One year only (2,000,000) (2,000,000)

Repaying for borrowing for Redundancies 2,000,000 2,000,000 0

Care Act implications TBC

Changes to Expenditure Reflected in Resources

Specific Grant Changes from Previous Year Including New Responsibilities 2,724,070 (4,083,850) 0 (1,317,000) (321,980)

Offsetting Budget Adjustments

Use of NHB Smoothing (1,609,000) (1,609,000) (1,909,000) (1,909,000) 0

Reallocation of Business Rates Appeals Base Budget (2,277,816)

Additional Contribution to offset Delay in Savings Achievement 2,277,816

Contributions to Savings for changes in Projections

- Net Growth Change 2,167,600 2,167,600 (3,749,700) (3,749,700)

- Net Resources Change-14/15 one year only -2,454,351 -2,454,351

- Net Resources Change-15/16 one year only (170,339) (170,339) 170,339 170,339

Gross Budget Requirement (Excluding Internal Market ) 579,022,206 572,125,394 586,893,078 578,678,441 582,482,934

Page 184



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

Committee and Date

Cabinet

30th July 2014
12:30pm

Item

7

Public

FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 – 2017/18

Responsible Officer James Walton
e-mail: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 255011

1. Summary

This overview includes the latest estimates of the Council’s revenue resources
and expenditure. It is set in the context of the Council’s other key strategic
documents, in particular, the Treasury Management Strategy and the Capital
Strategy which is now incorporated within the Business Plan.

The Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17 was
agreed by Full Council on 27 February 2014. The Plan identified a funding gap
of £80m over the 3 years 2014/15 to 2016/17 and sets out the Council’s
approach to redesigning services and delivering the required savings by making
the best use of resources available. The Financial Strategy is a rolling plan which
is revised throughout each financial year, usually quarterly, as more information
becomes available about the level of resources, service pressures and service
delivery changes. This report is the first Financial Strategy in 2014/15. The
report will consider the information from current year monitoring reports and any
implications of this for future year’s budgets. It will also consider revised
information for years 2 and 3, 2015/16 and 2016/17 of the current financial plan
and outline initial projections for 2017/18.

2. Recommendations

It is recommended that members:

A. Note that the funding gap of £80m for the period 2014-17 identified in the
Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council in
February 2014 is retained for planning purposes.

B. Note the initial funding gap identified for 2017/18, which will be refined
before being built into the Council’s next Medium Term Financial Plan

Page 185



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

C. Note that a further, updated report, is due to be presented to Council in
September to reflect the financial implications of the planned university and
Annual Business Plan for ip&e.

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1. The development and delivery of the Council’s Business Plan and Financial
Strategy for the next three years is the key process in managing many of
the Council’s strategic risks. The opportunities and risks arising are
assessed each time the document is refreshed for Cabinet consideration.
The Council’s Strategic Risks are reported separately, but the Business
Plan and Financial Strategy makes specific reference to the significant
financial uncertainty across Local Government in the Medium Term.

Financial Uncertainty

3.2. The 2014/15 funding settlement gave illustrative figures for 2015/16 only.

There is a risk that these figures are further reduced when the provisional

2015/16 settlement is announced in December 2014. Also there is

increased uncertainty around funding levels beyond the current

parliamentary term. This increases uncertainty both in 2015/16 and future

years as previously incoming governments have made in year as well as

future year changes to local government departmental expenditure limits.

3.3. As government funding reduces, the Council becomes more reliant on

locally retained business rates. As detailed in previous reports, a reduction

in business rate income in any year would have to be around 10% before a

safety net payment would be invoked. This drop is higher than the 7.5%

indicated in the funding mechanism as the Council’s budgeted business

rate income is higher than the baseline level that the 7.5% drop would be

measured against.

3.4. Locally retained business rates introduce uncertainty to the Council’s in

year available resources; previously the Council was informed of the

amount of redistributed business rates it would receive before the start of

the financial year, under the new system the resources the Council actually

receives will only be estimated in advance and could vary significantly.

3.5. Variations from budgeted revenues for both Business Rates and Council

Tax are dealt with through the relative collection fund account. The timing

of the availability of the final figures means that adjustments required, i.e.

deficits or surpluses on the collection fund, fall 2 years after the year in

which they relate. To mitigate the risk of large variations in estimated

Business Rates, monitoring of Business Rates income will be further

Page 186



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

developed and reported regularly, reducing risk as the level and quality of

data is increased.

3.6. The funding mechanism does not reflect any service needs changes from

year to year. It is proposed that the system will not be reset for 7 years i.e.

until 2020/21.

3.7. By creating a Financial Strategy that continues to look beyond the next

three years at the longer-term and is regularly updated to reflect new

information, the Council is in a stronger position to approach future

challenges proactively, rather than reactively.

3.8. While the Financial Strategy represents our approach to the mitigation of

the financial uncertainty we are faced with, the tight and uncertain financial

climate over the medium to long term still presents a high risk to the

authority. In addition to the known uncertainties we have planned for, there

remains potential for further, as yet unrecognised, risks. For this reason, a

prudent approach to the level of reserves held by the Council remains

sensible and necessary. As the new Business Rates Retention system

becomes embedded this will mean the revision of newly introduced

provisions for rating appeals and other fluctuations.

3.9. The Council has started the financial year 2014/15 with a reasonable level

of general reserve to help mitigate against the risk of delay in

implementation of the significant savings proposals. It is essential that this

is kept under review both in the current year and with a view to future years

and balancing the budget.

Other Risks and Opportunities

3.10. The Business Plan and Financial Strategy sets the resource parameters

within which the Council can commission services to meet its priority

outcomes. All risks and opportunities which have a material monetary value

are considered within the strategy.

3.11. The Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy recognises that there

are risks and opportunities associated with ip&e as it is a wholly owned

company of the Council. The development of the Council’s future financial

strategy will be clear about the financial expectations of ip&e and how this

will impact on the Council’s budget.

3.12. Setting the Financial Strategy and agreeing the detailed changes necessary

to deliver the agreed budget for the next financial year, will take into

account the requirements of the Human Rights Act, any necessary

environmental appraisals and the need for Equalities Impact Needs

Assessments and any necessary service user consultation.

Page 187



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

4. The Current Year Budget, 2014/15

4.1. In February, Council agreed a savings target of £41.531m for 2014/15 and
savings identified against this target of £39.892m. It was recognised that
there was a shortfall on savings target of £1.639m in 2014/15 which would
need to be identified from within 2014/15 budget.

4.2. The proposals put forward for 2014/15 were reviewed to consider risks

associated with delivery within available timescales as follows:

Green – Saving identified, quantified and confirmed and achieved

Amber – Saving identified, quantified and confirmed but not yet achieved

Red, either – Saving identified but not quantified and confirmed or achieved,

or – Saving unachievable

4.3. The report recognised that revision and re-phasing of growth proposals

reflected an increase in, and addition to, the resources available to offset

savings of £6.262m in 2014/15 on a one off basis. The first call on this is

the shortfall on savings identified in 2014/15 of £1.639m. The remaining

balance is available to address financial issues within 2014/15.

4.4. Following Council in February, work has been undertaken to review the

RAG categorisation of savings, extend the categorisation to all 3 years of

the financial strategy and identify any areas were the achievement of saving

and/or redesign of service is at risk of being significantly delayed or

unachievable. These areas have been referred to as Key Areas of Concern

and have been the subject of heightened management action by Directors

and Cabinet Members from 11 June 2014.

4.5. Table 1 below identifies the RAG rating for all 2014/15 proposals based on:

An initial assessment;

Review by the Finance Team based on financial evidence available;

and finally

Overlay by Directors and Portfolioholders based on delivery of

milestones and action being undertaken on the ground (in the absence

of financial data to justify projections).

Page 188



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

Table 1: Update on Delivery of 2014/15 Savings Proposals
Service Area Position

as at 11th

June 2014
£’000

Finance
Team
Initial
Assessme
nt as at
Period 3
£’000

Reviewed and
Agreed
Projection for
Period 3
£’000

Red Savings
Adult Services 1,304 2,511 0
Children’s Services 2,922 1,908 1,908
Commissioning 1,287 1,287 1,287
Public Health 0 0 0
Resources & Support 684 684 684
Corporate 0 0 0

6,197 6,390 3,879

Amber Savings
Adult Services 5,781 4,812 0
Children’s Services 999 569 0
Commissioning 774 774 774
Public Health 0 0 0
Resources & Support 352 352 123
Corporate 0 0 0

7,906 6,507 897

Green Savings
Adult Services 3,148 2,910 10,233
Children’s Services 3,291 4,735 5,304
Commissioning 6,144 6,144 6,144
Public Health 55 55 55
Resources & Support 6,351 6,351 6,580
Corporate 6,800 6,800 6,800

25,789 26,995 35,116

TOTAL SAVINGS 39,892 39,892 39,892

4.6. The most recent categorisation, as at Period 3, is shown in the pie charts

below with detail by service area and change since the last reported

position detailed in Appendix 1.

Page 189



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

2,510,933

3,878,833

896,652

5,610,131

26,995,007

2014/15 Savings (£) RAG Ratings

Red Rated - Finance Team

Initial Assessment
Red Rated - Reviewed and

Agreed Projection
Amber Rated - Reviewed

and Agreed Projection
Amber Rated - Finance

Team Initial Assessment
Green Rated

12,846,15511,322,809

2,272,469

2015/16 Savings (£) RAG Ratings

Red

Amber

Green

Page 190



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

4.7. The key areas of concern around achievement of savings and service

redesign identified to date are:-

Adults services – Contracts, Direct Payments, Purchasing and

Transition

Children’s Services – Looked After Children, Learning and Skills

(savings from Inspire To Learn Project)

Commissioning Services – Environmental Maintenance, Waste

Management

Resources and Support – Property (rationalisation of assets)

4.8. Savings relating to these key areas of concern form a significant amount of

red rated saving identified in 2014/15 and into future years and by

identifying them as key areas early in the process, it is possible to provide

greater resilience to the Medium Term Financial Plan. Where further review

identifies areas where savings are delayed or not achievable in 2014/15,

there is the possibility that they can be covered in 2014/15 by the use of

one off savings/ grants/ reserves when the underlying saving still remains to

be implemented. Where the on-going saving can be implemented, but over

a longer timescale, this approach does not destabilise the Financial

Strategy. Where a saving proves unachievable, for whatever reason, this

will be reported back through the Financial Strategy and alternative

approaches identified. This is discussed in more detail below.

13,865,390

1,062,457

1,645,459

2016/17 Savings (£) RAG Ratings

Red

Amber

Green

Page 191



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

4.9. A separate report to Cabinet on 30 July 2014 considers Period 3 Revenue

Monitoring position. At this early stage in the year the projection is that the

revenue budget for 2014/15 will be £3.225m overspent.

4.10. The monitoring report provides detail on the build up of this overspend

projection, in terms of unachievable 2014/15 savings and other service

pressures or funding.

4.11. For the Financial Strategy it is the impact of any 2014/15 monitoring issues

in future years which is important. Often pressures arising within a year are

dealt with on a one off basis within year and the ongoing pressure then

needs to be addressed in the next financial year. This is true for both

unachievable savings and new service pressures.

4.12. As we move into 2015/16 budget, the current assumption is that £41.531m

of savings have been achieved and expenditure to be incurred in 2015/16

can be financed by the resources identified for 2015/16. Where information

arising from 2014/15 monitoring makes this assumption incorrect it is

important this is identified.

4.13. The tables below provide a summary by service area of budget issues

identified in the current year monitoring projections which will impact on

future years budgets

Table 2: Red and Amber rated Savings in 2014/15 which may have
implications for future years

Red Savings
detailed in
Projection

Amber Savings
detailed in
Projection

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000

Adult Services 0 0 0
Children’s Services 1,908 0 1,908
Commissioning 1,287 774 2,061
Public Health 0 0 0
Resources & Support 683 123 806
Corporate 0 0 0
TOTAL 3,878 897 4,775

Page 192



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

Table 3: Pressures identified in 2014/15 which may have implications for
future years

Ongoing
Monitoring
Pressures
Identified

Ongoing
Savings

Delivered

Ongoing
Monitoring

Savings
Identified

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Adult Services 2,846 0 -34 2,812
Children’s Services 416 -3 -416 -3
Commissioning 2,542 -483 0 2,059
Public Health 0 0 0 0
Resources & Support 428 0 0 428
Corporate 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 6,232 -486 -450 5,296

4.14. At this stage in the financial year, the issues identified above are being

actively monitored and regular meetings with Portfolio holders are being

held to accelerate decision making to progress achievement of savings. It

has been made clear that savings must be achieved or alternatives found.

Any delay in implementation must be offset by one off savings.

4.15. The Period 3 Monitor identifies savings flagged as Red and Amber for

which there is a degree of uncertainty over deliverability and also

pressures within services that fall outside of savings proposals. The total

proposals flagged Red and Amber sum to £4.775m (as shown in Table 2),

although at this stage it is anticipated that these are deliverable in a longer

timeframe or can be replaced by alternative proposals and as such do not

destabilise the Financial Strategy. In addition, the Period 3 monitor has

identified £4.727m of pressures that have arisen in-year, but have the

potential to continue into future years, causing an issue that needs to be

recognised and managed within the Medium Term Financial Plan. The

current estimate of the net pressures requiring resolution in the longer

term is £5.296m (as shown in Table 3). In the main this pressure consists

of the ongoing pressure identified late in 2013/14 relating to the revenue

and capital split in redesigned highways and environmental maintenance

work, and growth in Adult Social Care placements currently appearing to

exceed the modelled growth identified over the Medium Term Financial

Plan period. These issues are not yet at a stage where financial

implications can be built into the Financial Strategy, instead they are

currently being flagged as issues for further investigation only.

4.16. The monitoring and balancing of the 2014/15 budget will continue to be

reported throughout 2014/15 as part of the monitoring reports.

Page 193



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

4.17. For 2014/15, any projected overspend would have to be financed by the

general reserve which has a balance as at 1 April 2014 of £14.497m.

5. Resource and Expenditure Projections 2015/16 and 16/17

5.1. The Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council in

February identified the expenditure and resource projections for 2015/16

and 2016/17.

5.2. The projections have been revised to reflect the latest information and also

to include initial projections for 2017/18. The table below provides the

information provided at Council and the updated information with further

explanation of any changes detailed in the paragraphs below.

Table 3: Resource and Expenditure Projections 2015/16-2017/18

2014/15

Feb 14
Council

£’000

2015/16

Feb 14
Council

£’000

2015/16

Revised

£’000

2016/17

Feb 14
Council

£’000

2016/17

Revised

£’000

2017/18

Projection

£’000

Resources 558,886 551,510 548,424 540,015 531,072

Expenditure
Projections

579,022 572,125 586,893 578,678 582,483

Cumulative
Savings
Target

38,469 38,664 51,410

Achieved in
Previous
Year(s)

41,531 20,136 20,615 38,664

In Year
Savings

20,136 20,615 18,333 18,048 12,746

Change
(Cum)

479 194

Resource Projections

5.3. Government funding to Shropshire includes Revenue Support Grant and, in

Shropshire’s case, top up grant. When the current Local Government

Finance system was introduced in April 2013, approximately 50% of funding

came from Revenue Support Grant and the remainder from locally retained

Business Rates adjusted by top ups and tariffs. The government made

Page 194



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

assumptions about the amount of locally retained business rates to

calculate top up and tariff payments at the start of the system to ensure the

new system did not inadvertently adjust any local authority’s total

government funding. The Assumed Locally Retained Business Rates, Top

Up Payment and the Revenue Support Grant together are referred to as the

Authority’s Settlement Funding Assessment. The Assumed or Baseline

Business Rates and Top Up figure are fixed in real terms and increased

annually by RPI as part of the funding mechanism. Any change to the total

government funding is therefore only implemented by a change in Revenue

Support Grant as the other two funding components are fixed.

5.4. The Settlement Funding Assessment is important for the Authority as it is

used not only to calculate % reductions going forward but also the Baseline

Business Rates is used to calculate Shropshire’s safety net. However, for

resource projections Shropshire uses its own projections on locally retained

Business Rates based on up to date local information which is also included

in government returns.

5.5. The 2014/15 Local Government Finance Settlement in February 2014

provided illustrative figures for 2015/16. These showed a reduction in

Settlement Funding Assessment of 14% and a consequence reduction in

the Revenue Support Grant Element of 27.5% for 2015/16. Our current

assumptions for 2016/17 assume a reduction of 11.5% in Settlement

Funding Assessment and 25.5% in Revenue Support Grant. A recent

survey carried out by the Society of County Treasurers Technical Team in

Somerset indicates that other authorities are assuming reductions in

funding between 8% and 14%.

5.6. In terms of Locally Retained Business Rates, projections for 2015/16 have

been updated following the outturn position for 2013/14 and increased

information about appeals, reliefs and adjustments between the collection

and general fund. No growth has been built into Business Rates projections

going forward. Although the business rates multiplier will increase by RPI

each year (unless restricted), the rateable value projections are too volatile

for any growth to be assumed at this stage. This assumption is in line with

assumptions around future Business Rates levels made by other authorities

who replied to the technical team survey referred to above.

5.7. Council tax income projections have been updated to increase the growth in

council tax base projected from 0.2% to 0.5%. Council Tax has been frozen

at 2014/15 levels going forward.

5.8. The Local Government Department Expenditure Limit (DEL) used in the

calculation of illustrative 2015/16 funding calculations has been top sliced

for several things such as new homes bonus, safety net payments and

Page 195



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

capitalisation of transformation expenditure. The government policy on this

top slicing is that any unused top sliced amounts will be returned to local

authorities. The current projections include a returned amount for new

homes bonus as indicated in the settlement details but no return for other

items. In 2013/14, the Council received notification of £354k for return of

unused capitalisation top slice on 27 March 2014. Further returns could be

made in 2014/15 and future years providing an in year bonus.

5.9. Income from Specific Grants has been revised to reflect the latest

information. Revised amounts for 2014/15 will be dealt with as part of

revenue monitoring. In 2015/16 there has been a reduction from the initial

projections of £6.8m. Of this, £3m, is a net adjustment for grant

recoupment for academy status and additional funding for High Needs.

Also within Children’s services, Education Services Grant (ESG) has

reduced significantly both in 2014/15 and further in 2015/16. In addition, a

number of grants will cease in 2015/16 including Local Sustainable

Transport Fund and Social Fund Grant. The current assumption is that

reductions in specific grants will be offset by reductions in expenditure in the

service areas. This assumption may need to be revisited as services

continue to be reviewed throughout this year.

5.10. Assumptions on the payment of Council tax freeze grant are based on

budget announcements and are as follows:

2011/12 was paid as specific grant in 2011/12 and was then rolled

into the base funding

2012/13 was paid for 1 year only

2013/14 was paid as a grant in 2013/14 and then added to the Local

Government Departmental Expenditure Limit (LG DEL) in 2014/15

2014/15 will be paid as a grant in both 2014/15 and 2015/16 and will

then be built into spending review baselines

2015/16 will be paid as a grant in 2015/16 only

2016/17 and future years – no announcement has been made

regarding further grants in 2016/17 and beyond.

5.11. Included within specific grants are additional grants paid to the Council as

a result of government policies on business rates which have reduced the

Council’s share of Business Rates income. Examples of these are the cap

of 2% on the increase in the rateable value multiplier and the temporary

extension of the doubling of small business rate relief scheme.

Page 196



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

5.12. Income from fees and charges has been left at current levels in the

projections. As savings are implemented and services are redesigned

income from fees and charges will change however at this stage there is

insufficient information to amend the current figures.

5.13. Detailed Resource projections are shown in Appendix 2

Expenditure Projections

5.14. The expenditure projections include growth for pay and prices,

demography, use of New Homes Bonus funding and adjustments to reflect

changes between years for grants.

5.15. A review of pay and prices inflation has resulted in small net adjustments

in both 2015/16 and 2016/17 using the latest employee costs and contract

information. It is clear that going forward there will be a change in the

relative size of each of these expenditure groups. This will effect pay and

prices calculations. The Council will need to ensure that as it moves to a

commissioning council, it does not increase the financial risk of increased

costs due to inflationary linked contracts.

5.16. Although a debt charge figure is shown in 2015/16 and 2016/17, this has

been used as a saving. The current projections assume that the Council

will not increase it’s borrowing. A change in the capital strategy to borrow

would mean that this saving could not be achieved and revenue growth for

debt charges would need to be found.

5.17. The figures included for demographic growth for Adults and Children’s

were reviewed last Autumn. Both Adults and Children’s services are

monitoring the actual growth the services are encountering and further

information on this will be provided in future financial strategies.

5.18. As detailed above in the Resource projections, changes in specific grants

are assumed to change expenditure projections by the same amount. If

reductions in specific grant funding can not be matched by a reduction in

expenditure this would increase savings requirements.

5.19. There are a number of grants currently being received which the Council

has no budgeted expenditure against. These include the s31 grants for

Business Rates, Council Tax freeze Grant and any return of top sliced

amounts. In 2013/14, growth of £2.277m was built in for a provision for

business rates appeals. This figure was required on a one off basis in

2013/14 and it is anticipated that future appeals liabilities will be dealt with

through the Business Rates Collection Fund.

Page 197



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

5.20. The current expenditure projections do not include any new base budget

commitments which may arise as the Council develops it’s plans towards

a University for Shropshire. This is considered later in section 7.

5.21. At this stage the revised resource and expenditure projections change the

2015/16 position by less that £0.5m and in 2016/17 the change is reduced

to less than £0.2m. On this basis the savings target within the Council

Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council on 27 February 2014 of

£80m over 3 years will not be revised. As we continually refine and

update the financial strategy this target will remain under review.

5.22. Detailed Expenditure projections are shown in Appendix 3

6. 2017/18 Initial Projections

6.1. Resource projections for 2017/18 indicate a further reduction in revenue

support grant of £9.5m. This reduction in resources is offset slightly by

growth in Council tax base which is estimated to increase the income from

Council Tax by £0.6m. In addition to this reduction in resources, current

projections for inflationary growth are £4.1m. The Council is therefore

facing a shortfall in resources of at least £13m in 2017/18. Services

pressures including demography or increased borrowing would add to this

funding shortfall.

6.2. Service pressures identified to date which would impact on 2017/18

budget include auto enrolment. Auto enrolment was introduced in April

2013. The scheme means that employees not currently opted into the

pensions scheme would be periodically opted in and would have to

physically request to be left out. It is therefore envisaged that more

employees will become scheme Members. This comes at a cost to

Shropshire Council by way of having to make pension contributions for

those employees newly opted in. Shropshire Council has been able to

defer the staging date for the scheme so that it does not commence until

April 2017 therefore no extra pension cost will be incurred until the

financial year 2017/18. It is difficult to estimate the financial implications of

this as it will depend on the employees who decide to remain opted in. It

has previously been estimated that on the basis of a worst case scenario

costs could be in excess of £1m.

6.3. In addition a major pressure facing Adult Social Services is the

introduction of the Care Act 2014. Members were provided with a briefing

note on the Dilnot Report – Implications for Shropshire Council as part of

the Financial Strategy report considered by Cabinet on 15 January 2014.

In May 2014, the Care Bill received royal assent and the Act introduces

legislative changes based on the findings and recommendations in the

Page 198



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

Dilnot Report. Changes arising from the Act are phased with some

changes around assessments coming in from 1 April 2015 the financial

implications of which are currently uncertain. Changes around thresholds

and the cap will be introduced from 1 April 2016 which will create

additional funding pressures in 2016/17 which will increase in 2017/18 as

client contributions reach the cap. The government has indicated that

additional funding will be made available to local authorities to fund

additional costs including implementation costs. The financial

implications of the Act are currently being modelled and further information

will be provided later in this financial year.

7. University of Shropshire

7.1. Council received a report on 17 July 2014 outlining plans for a University

for Shropshire and approved a project budget of up to £1m to allow the

development of plans including pre contract/construction activity and any

costs associated with decanting staff from buildings. This funding is within

existing budgets previously earmarked for transformation.

7.2. Council will receive a further report on a developed Business Case for the

University at its meeting on 25 September 2014. The financial

implications of any proposals will be included in an updated Council

Business Pan and Financial Strategy which will be taken to the same

meeting for approval.

8. The impact on the Council’s budget of Transfers to the Council’s wholly

owned company i,p&e

8.1. There have been two areas of service which have transferred to ip&e to

date, Media Services known as ThreeSixty Communications and the

Project Management Office and the Business Design team, known at the

time as ‘Change for the Best’. The estimated budget available to

commission these services is shown below:

Table 3: Budgets identified to commission services from ip&e

2015/16
-
Estimate

2016/17 -
Estimate

£ £
Programme Management
Office

315,160 186,660 (TBC)

Business Design Team 209,160 166,260
“Change for the Best”

sub total
524,320 352,920

ThreeSixty
Communications

272,680 242,980

Page 199



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

Total 797,000 595,900

8.2. As reported in February to Council, the budget for “Change for the Best”

for 2016/17 has still to be agreed. It can be seen that a substantial

reduction has been made to the budgets available to commission services.

It is envisaged that the services within ip&e will strive to generate external

income to offset the reductions in council spending. Alternatively, savings

will need to be found from expenditure budgets.

8.3. Other services which have currently been agreed for consideration to

transfer to ip&e include Public Health Services – ‘Help to Change’, School

Support Services - ‘Inspire to Learn’ and Regulatory and Business Support

Services - ‘Fulcrum’.

8.4. ip&e are currently preparing it's Annual Business Plan which has been

held back while the potential for the above services and implications of the

University proposal are given due consideration. Once available, the ip&e

Annual Business Plan will allow costings to be included In the Council’s

financial Strategy over a three year period.

8.5. As further services are considered for transfer to ip&e, full consideration

will be given to the budget available both in the current year and future

years for the council to commission transferring services. Services

transferring will be clear about future savings to be made by the council

from the budget available to commission services from ip&e.

9. Longer Term Financial Outlook

9.1. The longer term financial outlook as detailed in the Council’s Business

Plan and Financial Strategy agreed by Council in February 2014 is

continually being updated and refined. Details of how the Council is

working differently now and how this will develop over the coming years

will be set out in more detail over the coming months, ahead of a refresh

of the Council’s Business Plan and Financial Strategy for the next Medium

Term Financial Plan 2016/17 to 2018/19.

Page 200



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Council Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014-17 – Council 27 February 2014

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
Keith Barrow – Leader

Local Member
All

Appendices

Appendix 1 2014-17 Savings RAG Rated

Appendix 2 Resource Projections 2015/16 – 2017/18

Appendix 3 Expenditure Projections 2015/16 – 2017/18

Page 201



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

APPENDIX 1

2014/15, 2015/16 AND 2016/17 SAVINGS RAG RATED

2014/15

Savings RAG

Ratings

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 0 0 10,233,360 10,233,360

Children's Services 1,908,329 0 5,303,671 7,212,000

Commissioning 1,287,072 773,757 6,144,378 8,205,207

Public Health 0 0 54,727 54,727

Resources &

Support 683,432 123,000 13,379,830 14,186,262

Council 3,878,833 896,757 35,115,966 39,891,556

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

Adult Services Children's

Services

Commissioning Public Health Resources &

Support

2014/15 Savings RAG Rated by Service Area

Green Rated

Amber Rated - Finance Team Initial Assessment

Amber Rated - Reviewed and Agreed Projection

Red Rated - Reviewed and Agreed Projection

Red Rated - Finance Team Initial Assessment

Page 202



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

APPENDIX 1 (CONTINUED)

2015/16 Savings RAG Ratings

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 200,000 8,214,237 306,500 8,720,737

Children's Services 2,915,000 350,000 300,000 3,565,000

Commissioning 4,958,574 997,387 481,618 6,437,579

Public Health 0 0 0 0

Resources &

Support 4,772,581 1,761,185 1,184,351 7,718,117

Council 12,846,155 11,322,809 2,272,469 26,441,433

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

10,000,000

Adult Services Children's

Services

Commissioning Public Health Resources &

Support

2015/16 Savings RAG Rated by Service Area
Green

Amber

Red

Page 203



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

APPENDIX 1 (CONTINUED)

2016/17 Savings RAG Ratings

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 5,496,246 0 0 5,496,246

Children's Services 1,890,000 0 0 1,890,000

Commissioning 3,511,238 871,609 0 4,382,847

Public Health 0 0 0 0

Resources &

Support 2,967,906 190,848 1,645,459 4,804,213

Council 13,865,390 1,062,457 1,645,459 16,573,306

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

2016/17 Savings RAG Rated by Service Area

Green

Amber

Red

Page 204



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

Total Council Savings 2014/15 To 2016/17

Red Amber Green Total

£ £ £ £

Adult Services 8,207,179 13,026,408 3,216,756 24,450,343

Children's Services 5,814,329 918,960 5,933,711 12,667,000

Commissioning 10,144,459 2,255,178 6,625,996 19,025,633

Public Health 0 0 54,727 54,727

Resources &

Support 8,423,919 2,303,928 15,980,745 26,708,592

Council 32,589,886 18,504,474 31,811,935 82,906,295

Page 205



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

Appendix 2

2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16& Beyond Notes & Assumptions 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18

FINAL Original Revised ORIGINAL REVISED ORIGINAL
C abinet

12th F eb. 2014

C abine t

12 th F eb. 2014

C abinet 30 July

2014

C abinet

19th F eb. 2014

C abinet 30 July

2014

C abinet 30 July

2014

RSG 57,058,059 41,368,409 41,368,409 Figures as publ ished on 5 February 2014 for the Local

Government Final Finance Settlemet 2014/15 and

Provisional 2015/16. 2016/17 estimates adjusted for

Council tax freeze grant only.

31,230,562 30,794,514 21,377,294

Business Rates Retention Allocation:

NNDR (as raised and then retained locally)includeing appeals provision 38,325,286 38,325,286 37,406,389 NNDR1 2014-15 figure. The deficit on the col lection fund

from the previous year, shown below, is netted off.

38,325,286 37,406,389 37,406,389

Top Up 9,848,092 10,119,908 10,119,908 Figure as per CLG 2014/15Final Local Government Finance

Settlement. Assume 2% RPI increase

9,956,192 10,322,306 10,528,752

Safety Net Payments

NDR Surplus/Deficit on Collection Fund

Prior year adjustments (e.g. correction to safety net payments)

TOTAL STARTUP FUNDING RECEIPT: 105,231,437 89,813,603 88,894,706 79,512,040 78,523,210 69,312,435

Return of amounts topsliced from RSG/BRRA Allocation

Share of £2bn unused New Homes Bonus topslice 154,558 394,940 394,940 Final Local Government Finance Settlement 0 0 0

Share of returned damping (unused safety net held back) 0 0 This may be an in year bonus. More information 0 0 0

TOTAL FUNDING FROMCENTRAL/LOCAL SHARE 105,385,995 90,208,543 89,289,646 79,512,040 78,523,210 69,312,435

Movement on previous year's funding

Taxbase 100,475 100,475 100,978 Actual taxbase for 2014/15 and increase in Counci l Tax

Taxbase assumed in 2015/16 and 2016/17 increased to

0.5% from 0.2%

100,877 101,482 101,990

Council Tax Income 117,025,463 117,259,514 117,610,591 Council tax freeze assumed 117,494,033 118,198,644 118,789,637

Collection Fund Surplus- Council Tax 2,018,834 500,000 Based on Previous years 500,000 500,000

Business Rates Collection fund -985,341 -500,000 Based on previous years -500,000 -500,000

TOTAL NET RESOURCES - 2013-14 onwards 223,444,951 207,468,057 206,900,237 197,006,073 196,721,853 188,102,072

-567,821

(567,821) (284,220) (8,619,782)

2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 2014/15Notes & Assumptions 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18

REVISED REVISED Revised ORIGINAL REVISED ORIGINAL
C abinet

12th F eb. 2014

C abine t

12 th F eb. 2014

C abinet 30 July

2014

C abinet

19th F eb. 2014

C abinet 30 July

2014

C abinet 30 July

2014

GOVERNMENTGRANTS 255,976,900 258,700,970 251,893,050 Latest Information on Specific Grants 258,700,970 250,576,050 250,254,070

OTHERGRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 28,425,620 28,425,620 28,425,620 Left unchanged at this stage 28,425,620 28,425,620 28,425,620

FEES & CHARGES 57,137,050 57,137,050 57,137,050 Left unchanged at this stage 57,137,050 57,137,050 57,137,050

INTERNALMARKET& INTERNAL RECHARGES

Internal Recharges only 7,154,140 7,154,140 7,154,140 Left unchanged at this stage 7,154,140 7,154,140 7,154,140

Total Income outside of Net 348,693,710

TOTAL GROSS RESOURCES - 2013-14 onwards, after income Savings 572,138,661 558,885,837 551,510,097 548,423,853 540,014,713 531,072,952

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL - NET AND GROSS RESOURCES PROJECTIONS SUMMARY 2015/16 to 2017/18

Page 206



Cabinet – 30th July 2014 Finance Strategy including appendix 2

APPENDIX 3

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL - FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2015/16 to 2017/18

2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18

27 Feb 2014 30 July 2014 27 Feb 2014 30 July 2014 30 July 2014

£ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Original Gross Budget Requirement 572,138,661 572,138,661 579,022,206 572,125,394 578,678,441

Current Year Monitoring Issues with ongoing implications

- Asset Sales - Removal of income stream 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0

- As identified as at P3- no growth included as at P3 0 0 0

2014/15 - New Budget Growth

Inflation

- Prices 2,852,381 2,796,947 3,006,053 2,921,147 3,058,689

- Pay 1% award 885,196 710,957 839,083 723,654 734,834

- Pay Increment 496,988 637,769 281,097 480,607 332,950

- Pension Costs 0 0 3,500,000 3,500,000 0

- Auto Enrolment (impacts 2017/18)-ESTIMATE 0 0 TBC

Committed Growth

- Debt Charges (Reduced as part of Savings) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0

New Growth

- Demography: Adults 1,758,000 1,758,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 0

- Demography: Childrens services 1,183,000 1,183,000 1,183,000 1,183,000 0

New Service Pressures

New Investment funding- One year only (2,000,000) (2,000,000)

Repaying for borrowing for Redundancies 2,000,000 2,000,000 0

Care Act implications TBC

Changes to Expenditure Reflected in Resources

Specific Grant Changes from Previous Year Including New Responsibilities 2,724,070 (4,083,850) 0 (1,317,000) (321,980)

Offsetting Budget Adjustments

Use of NHB Smoothing (1,609,000) (1,609,000) (1,909,000) (1,909,000) 0

Reallocation of Business Rates Appeals Base Budget (2,277,816)

Additional Contribution to offset Delay in Savings Achievement 2,277,816

Contributions to Savings for changes in Projections

- Net Growth Change 2,167,600 2,167,600 (3,749,700) (3,749,700)

- Net Resources Change-14/15 one year only -2,454,351 -2,454,351

- Net Resources Change-15/16 one year only (170,339) (170,339) 170,339 170,339

Gross Budget Requirement (Excluding Internal Market ) 579,022,206 572,125,394 586,893,078 578,678,441 582,482,934

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2014
	6 Final report of the Public Service Network [PSN] Task and Finish Group
	7 Scrutiny of the progress in delivering the Council's Financial Strategy
	7b Appendix 1 - Your Council Outcome infographic
	7b Appendix 2 - Shropshire Outcomes Infographics
	7c Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2014 to 17 Cover Report
	7c Appendix1 CouncilBusinessPlanFeb14 Rev26- FINAL
	7c Appendix2 Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves
	7c Appendix3 Pay Reward Policy For All Council Staff 2014-15
	7d Finance Strategy Report 1
	7d Finance Strategy report including appendix 2


